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DEPRECIArlON OF FIXED ASSETS 

This article looks at the overlapping nature of the depreciation of fixed assets and in 

particular the disposal of fixed assets . This section affects the following areas 

► Company final accounts

► Sole Traders

► Manufacturing accounts

► Cash flow statements

► Tabular statements

It is important to learn the rules of disposal and to practise these in account format. 

They will appear at least once in the June exam. 

Remember that the depreciation charge for the year is an expense. The aggregate 

depreciation is kept separately and reflects the overall wear and tear of an asset. 

The fixed asset account keeps records of all inflows and outflows at COST. 

We will look at the various workings affecting depreciation on a topic by topic basis 

Company final accounts 2004 

Provide for depreciation on delivay vans at the annual rate of 20% of cost from the date of purchase to the date of 
�ale. 
NOTE: On 3tt9/2003 adeliveiyvan, which hadcost€60,000 on 1/6/2001, was traded i:n against a new van which 
cost €84,000. An allowance of €22,000 was gi.-en on the old van. The cheque for the net amount of this 
transaction was mc01ll.\Ctly treated as a purchase of trading stock. This was the only entty made in the books m 
respect of this transaetioo.. 

In this 2004 question we were told that the cost of delivery vans at 1-1-03 was 

172000 and Accumulated Depreciation was 72,000. 

Depreciation and disposal 

We need to calculate the depreciation charge for the year and given the different dates 

involved we use; 

SOLD VAN (Date of disposal) = 60,000 x 20% x 9/12 = 9,000 

REST (Full year) = 112,000 x 20% = 22,400 

NEW VAN (Date of Acquisition)= 84,000 x 20% x 3/12 = 4,200 

35,600 
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The rest refers to the portion of the original vehicles at cost that were not disposed of 

that year and so were there for a full year {172,000 - 60,000} 

Backdate 

We must backdate the depreciation on the disposed item as we will need this figure 

when we are recording the disposal. 

We bought it on the 1-6-01 and sold it on the 30-09-03. 

The depreciation to date is on 2 years and 4 months. 

60,000 x 20% x 2 and 1/3 = 28,000 

Purchases a/c Vans a/c 

Balance 620,000 Van 62,000 Bal b/d 172,000 Disposal (1) 

558,000 Allowance 22,000 Bal 

(3) 

Purchases 62,000 

Ace Dep a/c Disposal a/c 

Disposal 28,000 Bal 78,000 Van (1) 60,000 

(2) b/d 

Bal c/d 85,600 P+L 35,600 

113,600 113,600 

The 4 key figures for the final accounts are in bold 

In the above question the rules of disposal are numbered 1-4 

Debit Disposal 

Credit Asset 

With the COST of the disposed item 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

Allowance{3) 

Ace dep (2) 

LOSS (4) 

60,000 

196,000 

22,000 

28,000 

10,000 
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Debit Accumulated Depreciation 

Credit Disposal 

With the DEPRECIATION TO DATE on the disposed asset 

Debit Benefit a/c (usually bank or trade in allowance} 

Credit Disposal 

With PROCEEDS of the disposal. 

Balance the disposal to reveal a profit or a loss 

Provide for depreciation on delivery vans at the annual rate of 12 ½%of 

cost from the date of purchase to the date of sale. 

NOTE: On 31/3/06 a delivery van which had cost €24,000 on 30/6/00 was 

traded in against a new van which cost €56,000. An allowance of €10,000 

was given on the old van. The cheque for the net amount of this transaction 

was incorrectly treated as a purchase of trading stock. This was the only 

entry made in the books in respect of this 

In this 2007 question we were told that the cost of delivery vans at 1-1-06 was 

€280,000 and Net Book Value was €190,000 

Depreciation and disposal 

We need to calculate the depreciation charge for the year and because of the different 

dates involved we must use; 

SOLD VAN (Date of disposal) = 24,000 x 12.5% x 3/12 =  750 

REST (Full year) = 256,000 x 12.5% =         32,000 

NEW VAN (Date of Acquisition)= 56,000 x 12.5% x 9/12 = 5,250 

38,000 
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The rest refers to the portion of the original vehicles at cost that were not disposed of 

that year and so were there for a full year (280,000 - 24,000) 

Backdate 

We must backdate the depreciation on the disposed item as we will need this figure 

when we are recording the disposal. 

We bought it on the 30-06-00 and sold it on the 31-03-06. 

The depreciation to date is on 5 years and 9 months. 

24,000 x 12.5% x 5. 75 years= 17,250 

Purchases a/c Vans a/c 

Balance 1,320,000 Van 46,000 Bal b/d 280,000 Disposal (1) 24,000 

1,274,000 Allowance 10,000 Bal 312,000 

(3) 

Purchases 46,000 

Ace Dep a/c Disposal a/c 

Disposal 17,250 Bal 90,000 Van (1) 24,000 Allow a nee( 3) 10,000 

(2) b/d 

Bal c/d 110,750 P+L 38,000 PROFIT 3,250 Ace dep (2} 17,250 

The 4 key figures for the final accounts are in bold

In the above question the rules of disposal are numbered 1-4 

Manufacturing accounts 2005 

Included in the figure fur Sale of Scrap Materiali is € 1,800 received ftom the sale of an old machine oo 30/6/2004 
This machine had cost €22,000 on t /4/2000. The cheque had been entered in the bank account. This was the oB1y 
entry made in the books. 

The Plant and Machinery at 1-1-04 was at a cost of 260,000 and had a book value of 

156,000. 
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This means that depreciation to date is 260,000 - 156,000 = 104,000 

Depreciation is 20% at cost 

Sale of scrap a/c 
Disposal 1,800 Bal 5,500 
Bal 3,700 

5,500 5,500 

Ace Dep a/c 
Disposal 18,700 Bal b/d 104,000 

Bal c/d 135,100 P+l 49,800 

153,800 153,800 

Sold 
238,000 

22000 X 20% X 

X 20% 

Backdate 1-4-00 to 30-06-04 
= 4.25 years 

22,000 X 20% X 4.25 

= 18,700 

Plant and Machinery a/c 
Bal b/d 260,000 Disposal 22,000 

Plant 

6/12 = 
47,600 

Bal 238,000 

260,000 260,000 

Disposal a/c 
22,000 • Sale of 

i scrap 

�
Acc dep 

00 

2,200 

49,800 

LOSS

1,800 

18,700 
1,500 

22,000 

Rest 

The bold items are the figures that affect the final accounts and gain most marks. 

TABULAR STATEMENTS 2007 

A vehicle which cost €15,000 was traded in against a n�w vehicle costing €34,000. An allowance of 
€10,000 was made for the old van. Depreciation to date on the old van was €4,500. 

The 4 rules of disposal are at the core of this adjustment and it is well worth noting that 
only the CHANGES to the accounts are recorded in the Tabular Statement on a + and -
basis 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 7 
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2004 question April extract 

A delivery van which cost €20,000 was traded-in against a new van costing €36,000. An 
allowance of €12.500 was made for the old van. Depreciation to date on the old van was 
€6,600. 

The 4 rules of disposal are at the core of this adjustment and it is well worth noting that 

only the CHANGES to the accounts are recorded in the Tabular Statement on a + and -

basis 

P + L a/c Vans a/c 

Loss on 900 Balb/d 76,000 Disposa 20,000 

disposal I (1) 

(4) 

Allowa 12,500 

nee (3) 

Bank 23,500 

Ace Dep a/c Disposal a/c 

Disposal 6,600 Balb/d 33,000 Vans 20,000 Allowan 12,500 

(2) (1) ce (3) 

Ace dep 6,600 

(2) 

LOSS (4) 900 

0 

Bank a/c -- Van 23,500 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 9 
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Machinery 
Disposal a/c 

70,000 I Acc. Depree. 
! Bank

--------, 

. LOSS {step 3}
---------

70,000 

35,000 
24,000 
11,000 
70,000 

We are told that there were no purchases of buildings therefore the difference in 
opening and closing balances is the COST of the disposal 

We also know the opening and closing accumulated depreciation and the CHARGE for 
the year. This allows us to work out the DEPRECIATION TO DATE on the sold item 

The loss is based on the fact that the COST was 70,000 and depreciation to date is 
35,000 and that leaves 35,000 of a net value. We only got 24,000 in proceeds giving a 
LOSS of 11,000 
The relevant figures for the Cash flow statement are; 

Proceeds of sale 24,000 
Depreciation for the year 55,000 
Loss on disposal 11,000 

Cesc Transport Ltd prepares its final accounts to the 31st December each year. The 
company's policy is to depreciate its vehicles at the rate of 20% of cost per annum 
calculated from the date of purchase to the date of disposal and to accumulate this 
depreciation in a provision for depreciation account. 

On 1/1/2003 Cesc Transport Ltd owned the following vehicles. 
No.1 Purchased on 1/1/1999 for €70,000 
No.2 Purchased on 1/1/2000 for €92,000 
No.3 Purchased on 1/1/2002 for €90,000 

On 1/7/2003 Vehicle No 1 was traded in for €30,000 against a new vehicle costing 
€115,000. Vehicle No 1 had a cooling unit fitted on 1/1/2001 costing €8,000. This 
cooling unit was depreciated at the rate of 30% in year one and thereafter at the 
rate of 20% of cost. On 1/4/2004 vehicle No. 3 was crashed and traded in against a 
new vehicle costing €125,000. The company received compensation to the value of 
€32,000 and the cheque paid for the new vehicle was €86,000. 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 13 1
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3. Depreciation of Fixed Assets

Trans Haulage Ltd prepares its final accounts to 31st December each year. The company's policy is to
depreciate its vehicles at the rate of20% of Book Value (reducing balance) per annum, calculated from
the date of purchase to the date of disposal and to accumulate this depreciation in a Provision for
Depreciation Account. (Calculations to the nearest Euro.)

On 01/01/2008, Trans Haulage Ltd owned the following vehicles:

No. 1 purchased on O l /01/2004 for €40,000
No. 2 purchased on O 1/01/2005 for €50,000
No. 3 purchased on 01/01/2006 for€60,000

On 01/08/2008, Vehicle No. l was traded in for €12,000 against a new vehicle costing €66,000. Vehicle
No. l had a refrigeration unit fitted on 01/01/2007 costing €16,000. This refrigeration unit was
depreciated at the rate of 40% for the first year and thereafter at the same rate as Vehicle No. 1. On
01/05/2009, Vehicle No. 3 was crashed and traded in against a new vehicle costing €72,000. The
company received compensation from the insurance company to the value of€20,000 and the cheque paid
for the new vehicle was €61,000.

You are required to show, with workings, for each of the two years 2008 and 2009:

(a) The Vehicles Account.

(b) The Provision for Depreciation Account.

(c) The Vehicles Disposal Account.

(d) (i) Explain what is meant by depreciation.

(6) 
(32) 
(14) 

(ii) Why does a company charge depreciation in calculating profit? (8) 

(60 marks) 

4. Creditors Control Account

The Creditors Ledger Control Account of P. Whelan showed the following balances -€54,225 er and €650 
dr on 31/12/2009. These figures did not agree with the Schedule (List) of Creditors' Balances extracted 
from the creditors ledger on the same date. An examination of the books revealed the following: 

(i) A credit note was received from M. Jones for€215. The only entry made in the books was €251
credited to the creditors account.

(ii} An invoice received from K. Kelly showing the purchase of goods for €1 ,500 less trade discount
l 0% had been entered correctly in the appropriate day book but had not been posted to the
personal account.

(iii} A creditor had charged Whelan interest of€95 on an overdue account. The only entry made in
Whelan's books for this interest had been €35 debited to the creditors account. After a complaint
by Whelan this charge had been reduced to €55 but this reduction had not been reflected in the
books.

(iv) Discount disallowed by a supplier of€52 had been treated as discount received in the books.
(v) Cash purchases by Whelan of€900 had been debited to a suppliers account.

(vi) Whelan had returned goods €840 to a supplier and entered this correctly in the books. A credit
note arrived showing a deduction of I 0% as a restocking charge. The total amount of this credit
note was credited to the creditors account. No other entry was made in the books.

You are required to: 

(a) 
(b) 
(c) 

Prepare the Adjusted Creditors Ledger Control Account. 
Prepare the Adjusted Schedule of Creditors showing the original balance. 
Give reasons why the balance in the Creditors' Control Account may not agree with the 
balance in the Schedule of Creditors. 

(24) 
(28) 

(8) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 3 

(a) 

Vehicles Account 

1/1/2008 
1/8/2008 

Balance b/d (WI) 
Bank & trade-in No 4 

166,000 

66,000 

232.000

176,000 
12,000 11 

248,000 

01/08/2008
31/12/2008

1/1/2009 
1/5/2009

(b) 

Balance b/d
Bank No 5 

01/05/2009
31/12/2009

Provision for Depreciation Account 

01/08/2008 Disposal (W3) 
31/12/2008 Balance c/d 

II 
01/05/2009 Disposal (W5) 
31/12/2009 Balance c/d 

(c) 

01/08/2008 Vehicle No 1 

01/05/2009 Vehicle No 3 
31/12/2009 Profit & Loss 

(d) 

33,047 [II 01/01/2008
64,300 31/12/2008
2:z.JiZ 
31,328 1 01/01/2009 
60,816 31/12/2009 
92.144

01/01/2010 

Disposal of Vehicles Account 

s6,ooo 11 0110812008 

31/12/2008 

60,000 

I 
01/05/2009 

2,328 

Disposal 
Balance c/d

Disposal 
Balance c/d

Balance b/d 
Profit & Loss

Balance b/d 
Profit & Loss

Balance b/d 

(W2)
(W4)

(W6) 

I 
56,000 

176,000 
232.000 
60,000 

I188,000 

248,000 

76,016 [I
21,331 .• ,
2:z.JiZ 
64,300 

21,844 II
92,144 
60,816

Trade In 12,000 I 
Provision for Depreciation33,047 
Profit & Loss I 0,953 

� 

Compensation 20,000 ITrade In 11,000 

Provision for Depreciation3 I ,328 
� 

I 
(i) Depreciation is the measure of the wearing away or loss in value ofa fixed asset

as a result of wear and tear, passage of time, obsolescence or extraction■ 

(ii) Depreciation is an expense. Failure to include depreciation in the final accounts will ■
result in the profits being overstated and the net assets in the balance sheet will not show a
true value. 

1
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Number Cost Dep to B.V.on Dep for RV.on Dep for Total 

1/1/2008 1/1/2008 2008 1/1/2009 2009 Dep 

I 40,000 23,616 16,384 1,911 - 25,527 33,047W3 

Unit 16,000 6,400 9,600 1,120 - 7,520 

2 50,000 24,400 25,600 5,120 20,480 4,096 

3 60,000 21,600 38,400 7,680 30,720 2,048 31,328 ws

4 66,000 - - 5,500 60,500 12,100 

5 72,000 9,600 

76,016 21,331 27,844 

(W2) (W4) (W6) 

(Wt) 1/1/2008 Cost Balance 40,000 + 16,000 + 50,000 + 60,000 166,000 
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2. Depreciation of Fixed Assets

Blue Haulage Ltd prepares its final accounts to 31 December each year. The company's policy is to
depreciate its vehicles at the rate of 15% of cost per annum, calculated from the date of purchase to
the date of disposal and to accumulate this depreciation in a Provision for Depreciation Account.
(Calculations to the nearest Euro.)

On 01/01/2011, Blue Haulage Ltd owned the following vehicles:

No. I purchased on 01/01/2007 for €50,000 
No. 2 purchased on 01/04/2008 for€60,000 
No. 3 purchased on 01/09/2009 for€70,000 

On 01/09/2011, Vehicle No. 1 was traded in for€20,000 against a new vehicle costing €75,000. 
Vehicle No. 1 had a refrigeration unit fitted on 01/01/2009 costing €15,000. This refrigeration unit 
was depreciated by 30% for the first two years and thereafter at the same rate as Vehicle No. I. On 
01/04/2012, Vehicle No. 3 was crashed and traded in against a new vehicle costing €86,000. The 
company received compensation from the insurance company to the value of€25,000 and the Profit 
and Loss Account at 31/12/2012 showed a profit on disposal of€l ,125 for Vehicle No. 3. 

You are required to show, with workings, for each of the two years 2011 and 2012: 

(a) The Vehicles Account.

(b) The Provision for Depreciation Account.

(c) The Vehicles Disposal Account.

(d) (i) Why does a company charge depreciation in calculating profit? 

(6) 
(32) 
(14) 

(ii) Why would a company choose one method of depreciation over another? (8) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 2 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

i 

Vehicles Account 

01/01/2011 Balance b/d (WI) 195,000 

I 01/9/2011 Bank No 4 75,000 
0 l /09/201 l Disposal 
31/12/2011 Balance c/d

65,000
1
., 

205,000 

270.000 

70,000 ■
221,000 

291.000 

270,000 
01/01/2012 Balance b/d 205,000 0 I/04/2012 Disposal 

31/12/2012 Balance c/d 01/04/2012 Bank No 5 86,000 II

0 l /01/2013 Balance BID

■ 
01/09/2011 Disposal (W3)
31/12/2011 Balance c/d 

■ 
01/04/2012 Disposal (WS)
31/12/2012 Balance c/d 

01/09/2011 Vehicle No 1 
31/12/2011 Profit& Loss ale 

01/04/2012 Vehicle No 3 
31/12/2012 Profit & Loss ale 

Number Cost 

1 50,000 

Unit 15,000

2 60,000

3 70,000 

4 75,000

5 86,000 

291,000 

221,000 

Provision for Depreciation Account 

45,500 ■ 01/01/201 l 
62,000 31/12/2011 

107.500 

27,125
1 

01/01/2012 
67,425 31/12/2012 
� 

01/01/2013 

Balance bid (W2) 
Profit & Loss (W4)

Balance b/d 
Profit & Loss (W6)

Balance b/d 

77,750 

I29,750 

107.500 

62,000 

32,sso 111
� 

67,425 

Disposal of Vehicles Account 
65,000 

I
Trade-in allowance 20,000 

I500 Provision for Depreciation 45.500 

� � 

70,000 
I1,125 

Dep to 
1/1/2011 

30,000 

9,000 

24,750 

14,000

77,750 

(W2) 

Dep for 
2011 

5,000 

1,500 

9,000 

10,500 
3,750 

-

29,750 

(W4) 

Compensation Insurance 25,000 

I Bank 19,000 

Provision for Depreciation 27,125 

� 

Depfor Total 
2012 Dep 

- 35,000 

- 10,500 45,500 (W3) 

9,000 

2,625 27,125 (WS) 

11,250 

9,675

32,550 

(W6) 

(Wt) 01/01/2011 - Cost Balance [50,000 + 15,000 + 60,000 + 70,000] 195,000 
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(d) 

Why make a charge for depreciation■ 
Depreciation is an expense. Failure to include depreciation in the final accounts will result in the 
profits being overstated and the net assets in the balance sheet will not show a true value. 

Why would a company choose one method over another Ill 
A method of depreciation is chosen by a company because of its policy on depreciation and 
ensuring that the consistency concept is applied when preparing accounts. 

Straight Line Method is where the same amount of the cost of the asset is written off each year. It 
is appropriate in the case of an asset that remains in the business over a long period of time and 
loses value slowly, for example Buildings, (assets that generate profit over many years). 

Reducing Balance Method is where a fixed percentage of the value of the asset is written off each 
year. The amount written off is high in early years and reduces each year until written off. This 
method is appropriate in the case of an asset which loses most of its value in the years immediately 
after purchase e.g. vehicles, computer, equipment etc., (assets that become obsolete quickly because 
of changes in technology). 

The general principle of providing depreciation is based on the matching concept. 

1
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Incomplete Records 

Method A 

This article looks at a summary of the topic and there is also a fully worked solution 

of the 2007 question 

Step 1 Test for Goodwill 

The owner buys a business and acquires assets and liabilities we add the assets and 

deduct the liabilities to find the net worth. 

We ask why the purchase price is bigger than the net worth. 

Owner is paying for the goodwill of the business. 

This is an intangible asset on the balance sheet. 

Step 2 Find credit sales 

Open a debtor's account 

Opening Balance ✓ 

CREDIT SALES ????? 

Missing figure = credit sales 

Step 3 Find cash sales 

Open a cash account 

Debtors a/c 

Bank 

Closing balance 

Put in the three obvious payments on the credit side 

Do not forget cash drawings or the closing cash balance 

Opening cash balance 

Cash sales 

Cash sales + credit sales

This goes in the Trading account 

Step 4 Find credit purchases 

Open a Creditors account 

Cash a/c 

Bank 

General Expenses 

Purchases 

DRAWINGS 

CLOSING BALANCE 

= total sales 

Creditors a/c 

✓ 

✓ 

✓ 

✓ 

✓ 

Bank ✓ Opening Balance ✓ 

Closing balance ✓ CREDIT PURCHASES ???? 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Cash purchases is always given in the question 

Cash purchases + credit purchases = total purchases 

At this point we deduct drawings of stock from purchases 

The resultant net purchases figure goes in the trading account 

Complete the Trading account 

Open a bank account and put in the obvious lodgements and payments 

Bank a/c 

Debtors ✓ Vans ✓ 

Cash ✓ Creditors ✓ 

Dividends ✓ Light & Heat ✓ 

LOAN RECEIVED Interest ✓ 

Annual Insurance ✓ 

Covenant for charity ✓ 

Furniture/Equipment ✓ 

PREMISES 

FUND 

CLOSING BALANCE 

Step 7 Go to beginning of question and take every adjustment in order 

Example 

The purchase price is capital introduced 

Step 8 

Premises at the beginning 
+ 

New premises 
= 

New fixed asset figure 

Step 9 Insurance adjustment 

Prepaid at 1/1 

e.g. 3 months
+ 

¾ of annual insurance premium 

9 months 
= 

insurance expense for the year 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Step 10 Wages due at the beginning are always deducted from general expenses 

as the wages are from last year. 

Rest of general expenses are this year's expense 

Step 11 

Light & Heat paid 

+ 

due at end 
= 

Light & heat used 

Drawings portion 
= 

Light & heat expense 

Step 12 

Loan x 
= 

To calculate loan interest= 

% x # months/12 

interest PAYABLE 

interest PAID 
= interest DUE 

Don't forget to remove drawings of interest from interest payable 

Rest of interest payable is an expense 

Step 13 Covenant for charity is an expense 

Step 14 Buying furniture or equipment increases fixed assets but there's usually a 

private portion which goes in drawings. 

Step 15 

Investment fund = # months x monthly transfer to fund + interest earned by the fund 

This is an intangible asset 
Note: interest earned by the fund is also added to gross profit as it is a gain 

Step 16 

Step 17 

The usual drawings are 

Stock 

Cash 

Light & Heat 

Interest 

Furniture or equipment 

Dividends without any obvious source are capital introduced 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

1

025



Incomplete Records 
On 1/1/2006, P. Lynch purchased a business for €590,000 which included the following 
tangible assets and liabilities: Premises €560,000; Stock €19,000; Debtors €12,000; 3 
months Premises Insurance prepaid €1,600; Trade Creditors €18,200; Wages due €2,600 
and Cash €200 

During 2006 Lynch did not keep a full set of accounts but was able to supply the 
following information on 3 l /12/2006. 

Cash Payments: Lodgements €116,000, General Expenses €73,800, Purchases €10 5,200. 

Bank Payments: Furniture €14,000, Creditors €38,800, Light and Heat €5,400, Interest 
€2,250, annual Premises Insurance Premium €6,800, Delivery Van €28,400. 

Bank Lodgements: Debtors €61,000, Cash €116,000, Dividends €3,000. 

Each week Lynch took goods from stock to the value of€150 and cash €200 for 
household expenses. 

Lynch borrowed €180,000 on 1/9/2006, part of which was used to purchase an adjoining 
premises and residence costing €155,000. It was agreed that Lynch would pay interest on 
the last day of each month at a rate of 5% per annum. The capital sum was to be repaid in 
a lump sum in the year 2015 and to provide for this the bank was to transfer €1,200 on 
the last day of each month from Lynch's business bank account into an investment fund 
commencing on 30/9/2006. 

Lynch estimated that 25% of the Furniture, 20% of interest payable for the year and 25% 
of Light and heat used should be attributed to the private section of the premises. 
Included in the assets and liabilities of the firm on 31/12/2006 were: Stock €16,400, 
Debtors €20,200, 
Trade Creditors €30,400, Cash €400, Electricity due €480 and €25 interest earned by the 
fund to date. 

You are required to: 
(a) Prepare with workings the Trading and Profit and Loss Accounts for the year ended
31/12/2006. (52)
(b) Show the Balance Sheet with workings as at 31/12/2006. ( 40)

( c) (i) Explain the term Accounting Concept?

(ii) Name TWO fundamental accounting concepts.
(iii) Illustrate an accounting concept applying to the accounts of P. Lynch. (8)
(100 marks)

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Step 1 Test for Goodwill 

SOLUTION TO P. LYNCH 

The owner buys a business and acquires assets and liabilities we add the assets and 

deduct the liabilities to find the net worth. 

We ask why the purchase price is bigger than the net worth. 

Owner is paying for the goodwill of the business. 

This is an intangible asset on the balance sheet. 

Assets= 560,000 + 19000 +12000 +1600 +200 = 592,800 

Liabilities= 18200 +2600 = 20,800 

Net worth A-l = 572,000 

Purchase price - net worth = Goodwill 

590,000 - 572,000 = 18,000 

Step 2 Find credit sales 

Open a debtor's account 

Opening Balance 12000 

CREDIT SALES 69200 

Missing figure = credit sales 

Step 3 Find cash sales 

Open a cash account 

Debtors a/c 

Bank 

Closing balance 

Put in the three obvious payments on the credit side 

Do not forget cash drawings or the closing cash balance 

Cash a/c 

=O....,p e__ n=i=n""'g-B=a=la:.::.:n=ce"'--------'2=0=0 Bank 
Cash sales 305600 General Expenses 

Purchases 

DRAWINGS 

CLOSING BALANCE 

Cash sales + credit sales = total sales 

This goes in the Trading account 

305600+ 69200 = 374,800

Step 4 Find credit purchases 

Open a Creditors account 
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61000 

20200 

116000 

73800 

105200 

10400 

400 
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Debtors 61000 

Cash 116000 

Dividends 3000 

LOAN RECEIVED 180000 

Bank a/c 

Furniture 14000 

Creditors 38800 

Light & Heat 5400 

Interest 

Annual Insurance 6800 

Vans 28400 

PREMISES 155000 

FUND (4x1200) 4800 

CLOSING BALANCE 104550 

2250 

Step 7 Go to beginning of question and take every adjustment in order 

Example 

The purchase price is capital introduced = 590000 

Step 8 

Premises at the beginning =560000 

+ 

New premises 155000 
= 

New fixed asset figure 715000 

Step 9 Insurance adjustment 

Prepaid at 1/1 

e.g. 3 months = 1600

+ 

¾ of annual insurance premium 

9 months (¾ of 6800) =5100 
= 

insurance expense for the year = 1600 +5100 = 6700

Prepaid at end= 1700 (1/4 of annual premium) 

Step 10 Wages due at the beginning are always deducted from general expenses 

as the wages are from last year. 

Rest of general expenses are this year's expense 

73800 -2600 = 71200

Step 11 

Light & Heat paid = 5400 
+ 
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due at end 480 
= 

Light & heat used 5880 

Drawings portion 1470 

= 

Light & heat expense = 4410 

Step 12 

Loan x 

180000 X 

To calculate loan interest = 

% x # months/12 

5% X 4/12 

= interest PAYABLE =3000 

interest PAID 2250 

= interest DUE 750 

Don't forget to remove drawings of interest from interest payable 

3000 - 600 = 2400 

Rest of interest payable is an expense 

Step 13 Buying furniture or equipment increases fixed assets but there's usually a 

private portion which goes in drawings. 

Furniture 14000 - 3500 = 10500 

Step 15 

Investment fund = # months x monthly transfer to fund + interest earned by the fund 

This is an intangible asset 

Note: interest earned by the fund is also added to gross profit as it is a gain 

1200 X 4 =4800 + 25 =4825 

Step 16 The usual drawings are 

Stock =7800 

Step 17 

Cash = 10400 

Light & Heat= 1470 

Interest = 600 

Furniture = 3500 

23770 

Dividends without any obvious source are capital introduced 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Question 7 - solution 

Trading and Profit and loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2006 

Sales 
Less Cost of Sales 
Opening stock 
Purchases (156,200 - 7,800) 

Closing stock 
Gross Profit 
Less Expenses 

General expenses 
Insurance 
Interest 
Light and heat 

Add Income from Investment Fund 
Net Profit 

(b) 

Intangible Fixed Assets 
Goodwill 

Tangible Fixed Assets 
Buildings 
Delivery Vans 
Furniture 

Financial Assets 
Investment Fund 

Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors 
Bank 
Cash 
Prepayments (Insurance) 

€ € 

19,000 1 
148,400 

167,400

(16,400. 

71,200 1···.
6,700

2,400

4,410 

374,800 111 

(151,000) 
223,800

84,71 0 

139,090 

_
25 1 

139.115 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2006 

€ € € 

18,00o■ 

715,000 1 
28,400

10,500 753,900

4,825■ 
776,725

16,400

1 
20,200 

104,550 

400

1,700 143,250 

Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 30,400 1 Creditors 
Interest due 750 

Electricity due 480 

Financed By 

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 
Loan 

Capital 
Capital introduced 
Net Profit 

Less Drawings 

(31,630) 

590,000 1 
3,000

139,115 

732,115 

(23,770. 

111,620

888,345 

180,000■ 

708,345 

888.345 
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(c) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

Accounting concepts 
Accounting concepts are the accounting practices or rules that are applied in the 
preparation of financial statements. 

Fundamental Accounting concepts 
Accruals, Going Concern, Consistency and Prudence 

The accruals Concept - All expenses incurred in a particular period must be included 
in the accounts of that period regardless of whether they are paid or not. Similarly, all 
revenue income must be included in the accounts of that period whether received or not. 
E.g Electricity due for the current year must be included in the accounts, although the bill
may not be paid until the following year as the expense refers to the current year.
Insurance prepaid should not be included in the current year's accounts as the payment
refers to the following year.

Workings 

I. Sales - Credit (61,000 + 20,200- 12,000)
- Cash (116,000 + 73,800 + 105,200 + 10,400 + 400 - 200) 

Total Sales 

2. Purchases
Credit purchases (-18,200 + 30,400 + 38,800)
Cash purchases 
Total Purchases 
Less drawings of stock 
Total purchases 

3. General Expenses (73,800 - 2,600)

4. Insurance (l ,600 +6,800 - I, 700)

5. Interest (3,000 - 600)

6. Light and heat (5,400 + 480 1,470)

7. Drawings (7,800 + 10,400 + 1,470 +600 + 3,500)

71,200 

6,700 

2,400 

4,410 

23,770 

69,200 
305,600 
374,800 

51,000 
105,200 
156,200 

(7,800) 
148,400 
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7. Incomplete Records

On 1/1/2012, E. Kelly purchased a business for €205,000 consisting of the following tangible assets and
liabilities: Premises €174,000; Stock €14,300; Debtors €14,000; 3 months premises Insurance prepaid
€430; Trade Creditors €17,200 and Wages due €1,200.

During 2012 Kelly did not keep a full set of accounts but was able to supply the following information on
31/12/2012.

Cash Payments: 

Bank Payments: 

Bank Lodgements: 

Lodgements €94,000, General Expenses €22,500, Purchases €51,000. 

Equipment €30,000, Creditors €34,200, Light and Heat €4,600, Interest €2,400, 
annual Premises Insurance Premium €3,000, Standing Order for Charitable 
Organisation €2,500, Vehicle €32,000, Rent for one year €22,800. 

Debtors €32,000, Cash €94,000, Dividends €3,600. 

Kelly took goods from stock to the value of €80 per week and cash €60 per week for household expenses 
during the year. 

Kelly borrowed €72,000 on 1/7/2012, part of which was used to purchase an adjoining warehouse costing 
€60,000. It was agreed that the sum borrowed would be repaid in 12 equal instalments over a six year 
period commencing on the 1 January 2013. Interest was to be charged at the rate of IO% per annum and 
paid monthly. 

The figure for Rent was in respect of an adjoining building rented by Kelly on 1/8/2012. It was payable 
in advance and Kelly estimated that half of the building was used as a private residence and that 25% of 
the Light and Heat used should also be attributed to the private section of the building. 

Included in the assets and liabilities of the firm on 31/12/2012 were: Stock €15,500 ( including stock of 
heating oil €500), Debtors €16,600, Trade Creditors €14,300, Cash €550, Electricity due €640. 

You are required to show, with workings, the: 

(a) Trading and Profit and Loss Accounts for the year ended 31/12/2012 . (52) 
(b) BalanceSheet as at31/12/2012. (40) 
(c) What additional information would be available to Kelly ifhe used the 'double entry'

system to record financial transactions? (8) 

(100 marks) 

1

033



Question 7 

(a) 
Trading and Profit and Loss account for the year ending 31/12/2012 

€ € 
205,770 

(b) 

Sales 
Less Cost of sales 

Opening stock 
Add Purchases 

Less Closing stock 
Gross Profit 
Less Expenses 

General expenses 
Light and heat 
Interest 
Insurance 
Charitable Organisation 
Rent 

Net Profit 

Intangible Assets 
Goodwill 

Tangible fixed Assets 
Buildings 
Vehicles 
Equipment 

Current Assets 
Closing Stock 
Stock of oil 
Debtors 
Bank 
Cash 
Insurance prepaid 
Rent prepaid 

Wl 

W2 

W3 
W4 
W5 
W6 

W7 

Balance sheet as at 31/12/2012 
€ 

W8 

15,000 

500 

16,600 

WlO 10,100 

550 

750 

6,650 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within l year

Creditors 14,300 

I
Electricity due 640 

Interest due 1,200 

Loan instalment due 12,000 

Financed by: 
Loan 
Capital 
Capital introduced 
Net Profit 

Less Drawings W9 

14,300

78,140 

92,440 

(15,000)■ 

21,300 

3,555 
3,600 

2,680 

2,500 

4,750 

€ 

234,000 

I32,000 

30.000 

50,150 

(28,140) 

205,000 

I3,600

89,945 
298,545 
19,865 ■ 

(77,440) 
128,330 

(38,385) 

�-

€ 
20,670 ■ 

296,000

316,670 

22,010 
3382680 

60,000 ■ 

278,680 
338.680 

1

034



(c) Additional information

General/Nominal Ledger Accowits 
Trial balance 
Total sales figure [credit and cash] 
Total purchases figure [ credit and cash] 
Bank balance 
Capital and drawings 
Bad debts, Expenses due and prepaid 
Discounts allowed or received 

Workings 
1. Sales

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Credit sales
Cash sales 
Total Sales 

Purchases 

32,000 + 16,600- 14,000 
94,000 + 22,500 + 51,000 + 3,120 + 550 

Credit purchases 34,200 + 14,300 17,200 
Cash purchases 

Less Drawings of stock 
Total purchases 

General expenses 22,500 1,200 

Light and heat 4,600 + 640 - 500 1,185 

Interest 2,400 + 1,200 

Insurance 430 + 3,000 - 750 

Rent 22,800 - 11.400 - 6,650 

Goodwill 205,000 - 184,330 

Drawings 4,160 + 3,120 + 11,400 + 1,185 

10. Bank
Lodgements

Debtors 
Lodgement 
Loan 
Dividends 

Less Payments 
Equipment 
Creditors 
Light and heat 
Interest 
Insurance premium 
S/O Charitable organisation 
Vehicle 
Warehouse 
Rent 

32,000 
94,000 
72,000 
3,600 

30,000 
34,200 
4,600 
2,400 
3,000 
2,500 

32,000 
60,000 
22,800 

201,600 

191.500 
� 

I 

34,600 
I 71,170 
205,770 

31,300 
51,000 
82,300 
(4,160) 
78,140 

21,300 

3,555 

3,600 

2,680 

4,750 

20,670 

19,865 
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Incomplete records (Method B} 

This article looks at the more difficult incomplete records type where a balance sheet is 

prepared first to obtain the net profit and then we work backwards to find the sales 

figure. Unlike the type asked last year we cannot balance the question to give us the all 

important peace of mind. 

This topic has been examined in 2001 and 2003. 

Sample Question and fully worked solution 

C Mc Donald lodged €380,000 to a business bank account on 1/1/2005 and on the same 

day purchased a business for €350,000, including the following assets and liabilities: 

buildings €280,000, stock €26, 700, three months rates prepaid €3,600, debtors 

€42,500, wages due €8,600 and trade creditors €63,000. 

Mc Donald did not keep a full set of books during 2005 but estimates that the gross 

profit was 40% of sales and he was able to supply the following additional 

information on 31/12/2005: 

(i) Each week Mc Donald took from stock goods to the value of €110 and cash €160

for household expenses.

(ii) On 1/10/2005 Mc Donald borrowed €400,000, part of which was used to

purchase an adjoining premises costing €230,000. It was agreed that Mc Donald

would pay interest on the last day of the month at the rate of 8% per annum.

The capital sum was to be repaid in one lump sum in the year 2012 and, to 

provide for this, the bank was instructed to transfer €2,800 on the last day of 

every month from Mc Donald s business account into an investment fund. 

(iii) During the year, Mc Donald lodged dividends €2,400 to the business bank

account and made the following payments: light and heat €7,600, interest

€5,000, wages and general expenses €96,000, equipment €26,000, rates for

twelve months €15600 and college fees €4,500.

(iv) Mc Donald estimated that 25% of the following: equipment, light and heat used

and interest payable should be attributed to the private section of the

premises. He further estimates that 70% of college fees should be attributed to

a family member and the remainder to an employee.

(v) Included in the assets and liabilities of the firm on 31/12/2005 were stock

€17,200 (including stock of fuel 200), debtors €37,500, trade creditors €26,400,

cash at bank €67,382, electricity due €460 and €95 interest earned by the 

investment fund to date. 

You are required to prepare, with workings, a: 

(a) Statement/Balance Sheet showing Mc Donald's profit or loss for the year ended

31/12/2002. (SO)

(b) Trading, Profit and Loss Account, in as much detail as possible, for the year ended

31/12/2002. (40)

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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(c) Summary of the advice you would give to Mc Donald in relation to the information

given above. (10)

(100 marks) 

Step 1 Open a skeleton Balance Sheet (just the headings) and put in the obvious assets and 

liabilities given in part (v) of the question except interest earned by the fund. 
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Step 2 Test for Goodwill 

The owner buys a business and acquires assets and liabilities we add the assets and 

deduct the liabilities to find the net worth. 

We ask why the purchase price is bigger than the net worth. 

The owner is paying for the goodwill of the business. 

This is an intangible asset on the balance sheet. 

Assets 

Buildings 280,00( 

Stock 26,70( 

Debtors 42,50( 

Rates Prepaid 3,60( 

352,800 

Net worth is 352,800- 71,600 = 281,200 

Purchase price is 350,000 

350,000 - 281,200 = 68,800 

Liabilities 

Creditors 

Wages due 

Step 3 Go to beginning of question and take every adjustment in order 

Example 

The lodgement of 380,000 is capital introduced 

Step4 

Opening stock goes to the trading a/c = 26,700 

Steps 

Premises at the beginning= 280,000 

+ 

New premises 230,000 

= 

New fixed asset figure 510,000 

Step 6 Rates adjustment 

Prepaid at 1/1 

= 3 months = 3,600 

+ 

¾ of the12 month (annual) figure (3/4 of 15,600) 

3,600 + 11,700 

The Rates expense for the year is = 15,300 

(¼ of 15,600) is prepaid for next year and goes into current assets 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

63,00 

860 
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This figure= 3,900 

Step 7 Wages due at the beginning are always deducted from general expenses as 

the wages are from last year. 

The rest of general expenses are this year's expense 

Wages paid 96,000-8,600 = 87,400 

We must add on a portion of college fees for the employee which are a part of 

wages 

= 30% of 4,500 = 1,350 

Overall wages = 88,750 

The rest of college fees are for the family member and are drawings 

The amount is 70°/4 of 4500 = 3,150 

Step 8 

light & Heat paid 7,600 
+ 

due at end 460 

= 

Less prepaid at end (200) 

Light & heat used 7,860 

Drawings portion 25% 1,965 

= 

Light & heat expense 5,895 

Step 9 To calculate loan interest = 

Loan 400,000x 8% x 3/12 = 

interest PAYABLE= 8,000 

interest PAID 5000 

= interest DUE 3,000 

Don't forget to remove drawings of interest from interest payable¾ of 8,000 = 2,000 

The rest of interest payable is an expense = 8000 - 2,000 = 6000 

Step 10 Buying equipment increases fixed assets but there is usually a private 

portion which goes to drawings. 26,000-6,500 (1/4) = 19,500 

Step 11 

Investment fund= 3 months x 2,800 (monthly transfer to fund)= 8,400 + 95 ( 

interest earned by the fund) 

This is an intangible asset = 8,495 
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Note: interest earned by the fund is also added to gross profit as it is a gain 

Step 12 The usual drawings are 

Stock 110 x 52 = 5,720 

Cash 160 x 52 = 8,320 

Light & Heat 1,965 

Interest 2,000 

Equipment 6,500 

College fees 3,150 

27,655 

Step13 Dividends without any obvious source are capital introduced 

Trading Profit and loss AC for year ending 31-12-04 

Sales 

Less Cost of Sales 

Opening stock (step 4 ) 

Purchases (step 17} 

- Closing stock

Cost of sales

Gross Profit 

Add interest earned by the fund 

Less expenses 

Interest (step 9) 

Wages and general expenses (step 7) 

Light and heat (step 8 ) 

Rates (step 6) 

NET LOSS 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/04 

Fixed assets 

Premises (step 5) 

Equipment (step 10) 

Goodwill (step 2) 

Fund (step 11) 

Current assets 

Stock (step 1 ) 
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26,700 

86,333 

(17,000) 

Step 15 

6,000 

88,750 

5,895 

15,300 

Step14 

17,000 

160,055 

Step 16 

96,033 

64,022 

95 

----,,. 64,117 

(115,945} 

111(51,828) 

510,000 

19,500 

68,800 

8,495 

606,795 
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Debtors (step 1) 

Bank (step 1) 

Rates Prepaid (step 6 ) 

Fuel prepaid (step 1) 

Current liabilities 

Creditors (step 1 ) 

Electricity due (step 1} 

Interest due (step 9 } 

Working capital 

Financed by: 

Capital (step 3) 

+ Introduced (step 13}

+ Net profit

- Drawings (step 12)

+ Loan

FOOTNOTE 

26,400 

The most difficult part is finding net profit. 

Let our missing net profit = x 

460 

37,500 

      67,382 

3,900 

200 

125,982 

(29,860) 

380,000 

2,400 

X 

(27,655} 

400,000 

In the financed by section 380,000 +2,400 + X- 27,655 + 400,000 = 702,917 

Step 14 

Solving for X 

X = 702,917 -380,000-2,400 +27,655 -400,000 

= net loss of 51,828 

Step 15 

Net loss (51,828} + total expenses 115,945 = Gross profit plus gains 64,117 

Step16 

96,122 

702,917 

702,917 

If gross profit is 64,022 (after deducting interest earned} and this is 40% of sales we 

can find sales by dividing by O .4 

This gives us 160,055 

Step17 

If we know gross profit and sales we can find cost of sales 160,055 -64,022 

=96,033 

Opening stock + purchases -closing stock = Cost of sales 

26,700 + purchases -17000 = 96,033 

Purchases= 96,033 +17,000-26,700 = 86,333 
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7. Incomplete Records

On 1/1/2008, E. Fuller purchased a business for €400,000 which included the following tangible assets
and liabilities: Premises €292,000; Stock €36,000; Debtors €32,200; 3 months Rates Prepaid €450;
Equipment €20,000, Trade Creditors €35, 700; Wages Due €1 ,200 and 5% Investments €50,000.

During 2008 Fuller did not keep a full set of accounts but estimates that gross profit was 20% of sales
and was able to supply the following information on 3 l /12/2008.

(i) Each week Fuller took goods from stock to the value of €80 and cash €170 for household
expenses.

(ii) On 1/8/2008 Fuller borrowed €120,000 which, together with €30,000 ofFuller's personal funds,
was used to purchase an adjoining premises. It was agreed that the sum borrowed would be
repaid in 20 equal half-yearly instalments. The first instalment becomes due on 1/2/2009.
Interest was to be charged at the rate of 6% per annum to be paid monthly at the end of each
month.

(iii) During the year Fuller lodged to the business bank account, EU grant €6,000 and Investment
Interest €2,500.

Fuller made the following payments from the business bank account during the year:
Light and Heat €7 ,500, Interest €2,000, Equipment (purchased on 1/7/2008) € 15,000, Delivery
Vans (purchased on 1/9/2008) €30,000, Wages and General Expenses €80,000, Rates for 12
months €7,000. The payment for wages and general expenses includes €3,000 petrol bill for
Fuller's private use.

(iv) Fuller estimated that 20% of rates payable for the year, 20% of light and heat used and 25% of
interest payable should be attributed to the private use.

(v) Fuller has decided to set up a Provision for Bad Debts amounting to 3% of debtors and to charge
depreciation at 15% per annum on the delivery vans and 10% per annum on equipment held on
31/12/2008.

(vi) Included in the assets and liabilities of the firm on 31/12/2008 were stock €20,500 (which
includes a stock of heating oil €300), debtors €34,000, trade creditors €35,400, bank overdraft
€5,400 and electricity due €460.

You are required to prepare, with workings, a 

(a) Statement/Balance Sheet showing Fuller's profit or loss for the year ended 31/12/2008. (50) 

(b) Trading, Profit and Loss Account, in as much detail as possible, for the year ended 31/12/2008. (40)

(c) Summary of the advice you would give to Fuller in relation to the information given above. (10) 

(100 marks) 
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Question 7 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2008 

Intangible Assets 
Goodwill 

Tangible Fixed Assets 
Premises (292,000 + 150,000) 
Equipment (20,000 + 15,000) 
Delivery Vans 

Financial Assets 
5% Investments 

Current Assets 
Closing stock W 2 
Stock of heating oil 
Debtors 
Less Provision for bad debts 
Rates prepaid W 3 

Wl 
Wl 

€ € € 
Cost 442,000 1·.' 35,000 30,000 

507,000 

34,oootB 

Dep Net 442,000 2,750 I... 32,250 

1,500 . 28,500 4,250 502,750 

20.;�I
<1.020> 11 32,9so 

1.1so II ss,230 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within one year. 
Creditors 
Bank overdraft 
Loan instalments due 
Interest due W 4 
Electricity due 

Financed by 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 
Loan 

Capital - Balance 1/1/2008 
Capital introduced 
Net Profit W 8 

35,400 
5,400 12,000 1,000 460 (54,260) 

1H:I 471,392 

€ 
6,250 [11 

502,750

so,oooll 
559,000 

970 559.970 
108,000

Less Drawings W 5 
Capital Employed 

09,422> 11 451,970 559.970 
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Trading and Profit and Loss Account for the year ending 31/12/2008 

Sales WlO 
Less Cost of Sales 
Opening stock 
Purchases 
Less drawings W12 

Less closing stock Wll 
Gross Profit 
Add Investment interest 

Less Expenses 
Rates W3 
Light and heat W7 

Interest W4 
Wages and general expenses W 6 
Bad debts provision 
Depreciation Equipment 
Depreciation Vans 

Net Profit W9 

€ 

495,960 
(4,160) 111 

€ 

36,ooofl 

491,80011 
527,800 

(20,200) 

4,560. 
6,128 
2,250 

75,800 
1,020 
2,750 
1,500 

€ 

634,500 

507,600 
126,900 

2,soolJ 
129,400 

Fuller should keep a detailed cash book and general ledger supported by appropriate subsidiary day books. 
This would enable Fuller to prepare an accurate Trading and Profit and Loss Account and therefore avoid 
reliance on estimates. 
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Workings: 

1. Depreciation
Equipment: 10% x 20,000 = 2,000 

½ X 10% X 15,000 = 750 2,750 

Vans: 1/3 x 15% x 30,000 = 1,500 

2. Closing stock 20,500 

Less heating oil (300) 20,200

3 Rates 7,000 
Add rates prepaid 1/1/2008 450 
Less rates prepaid 31/12/2008 (1,750) 
Less drawings (1,140) 4,560 

4. Interest paid 2,000 
Add interest due 1,000 
Less drawings (750) 2,250

5. Drawings
Purchases 4,160 
Cash 8,840 
Petrol 3,000 
Light and Heat 1,532 
Rates 1,140 
Interest 750 19,422 

6 Wages and General expenses 80,000 
Less wages due (1,200) 
Less drawings of petrol (3,000) 75,800 

7 Light and Heat 7,500 
add electricity due 460 
less stock of oil (300) 
less drawings (1,532) 6,128 

8. Net profit for the year (balancing figure in Balance Sheet) € € 

Total Net Assets 559,970 
Less loan (108,000) 
Less capital after drawings and before profit (416,578) 35,392 

9. Gross Profit
Net Profit + Expenses - Gains (35,392+ 94,008- 2,500) = 126,900 

10. Sales Gross Profit = 20% of sales 126,900 X 5 634,500 

11. Cost of sales
Sales less gross profit 634,500 - 126,900 = 507,600 

12. Purchases
Cost of sales + closing stock - opening stock
507,600 + 20,200 - 36,000 = 491,800 
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Q 4 Incomplete Records 

On 1/1/2010 R. O'Hagan lodged €480,000 to a business bank account and on the same day 
purchased a business for€420,000, consisting of the following tangible assets and liabilities: 
buildings €400,000, stock €14,200, three months rates prepaid €1,800, debtors €24,400, 
wages due €2,900 and trade creditors €49,000. 

During 2010 O'Hagan did not keep a full set of books but was able to supply the following 
additional information on 31/12/2010: 

(i) Each week O'Hagan took from stock, goods to the value of€160 and a cheque for €120 to
pay household expenses.

(ii) On 1/10/2010 O'Hagan borrowed €360,000, part of which was used to purchase an adjoining
premises costing €280,000. It was agreed that interest would be paid on the last day of each
month at the rate of 4% per annum. The capital sum was to be repaid in one lump sum in the year
2017 and to provide for this the bank was instructed to transfer €4,800 on the last day of every
month from O'Hagan's business account into an investment fund.

(iii) During the year, O'Hagan lodged receipts from cash register €120,000 and
dividends €3,800 to the business bank account.

O'Hagan also made the following payments by cheque: light and heat €8, 100, interest €2,400,
wages and general expenses €86,000, equipment € 11,000, rates for twelve months €8,400 and
son's college fees €2,000.

(iv) O'Hagan estimated that 20% of the following: equipment, light and heat used and interest
payable should be attributed to the private section of the premises.

(v) Included in the assets and liabilities of the firm on 31/12/2010 were stock €16,700,
debtors €31,200, trade creditors €27,300, electricity due €620 and €36 interest earned by the
investment fund to date.

Required: 

(a) Prepare a Statement/Balance Sheet showing O'Hagan's profit or loss for the
year ended 31 /12/20 IO. (Show your workings).

(b) What advice would you give O'Hagan in relation to record keeping?

(52) 

(8) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 4 

(a) 

(b) 

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2010 
Intangible Assets 

Goodwill 
Fixed Assets 

Buildings 
Equipment

Financial Assets 
Investments 

Current Assets 

(400,000 + 280,000) 

Stock at 31 December 2010 

Trade Debtors 
Bank 
Rates prepaid

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year
Creditors 
Interest due 
Electricity due 

Net Current assets

Financed by 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than 1 year
Loan 

Capital - Balance at 1/1/2010 

Add Capital introduced
Less Drawings 

Add Net Profit
Capital Employed 

16,700 1 
31,200 

125,260 
2,100 

27,300 1 
1,200

620 

€ 

680

8,8
,000

00 

175,260 

(29,120) 

480.000 

I 3,800 

(21,224) 

O'Hagan should keep a detailed cash book and general ledger supported by appropriate
subsidiary day books. This would enable O'Hagan to prepare an accurate trading and 
profit and loss account and therefore would avoid reliance on estimates. 

Workings 

Light and heat - amount paid 
Add electricity due 31/12/2010 

Less drawings 

Rates • amount paid 
Add rates prepaid 1/1/2010 

Less rates prepaid 31/12/2010 

Interest • amount paid 
Add interest due 
Less drawings 

8,100
620 

{1,744)

8,400
1,800 

(2,100) 

2,400
1,200 

(720) 

€ 
31,soo 11

688,800 

14,436
734,736

146,140 

880,876

360,000 11 

462,576 
822,576 

58,300 ■
880,876 

I 
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Drawings 
Drawings of stock 
Cash/bank 
College fees - family member 
Equipment 
Light and heat 
Interest 

Balance/Lodgment 
Loan 
Capital introduced 
Cash lodgments 

Bank Account 
480,000 Business 
360,000 Drawings 

3,800 Wages 
120,000 Equipment 

963.800 

Purchases 
Investments 
Light & heat 
Interest 
Rates 
College Fees 
Balance 

8,320 
6,240 
2,000 
2,200 
1,744 

720 

� 

420,000 
6,240 

86,000 
ll,000 

280,000 
14,400 
8,100 
2,400 
8,400 
2,000 

125,260 
963,800 
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Club Accounts and Service firms 

The key areas are Receipts & Payments Account and the Income and Expenditure 

Account. 

Receipts & Payments is the Bank account and records all cash inflows and outflows. 

Its opening Balance at 1/1 is either a current asset or a current liability on our 

opening statement in part (a). 

The closing Balance goes in the Balance Sheet at 31/12. 

The Income & Expenditure account is the profit and loss account and shows all the 

Income that the club SHOULD receive in the given year e.g. subscriptions. 

It also shows the Expenditure that the club SHOULD have paid in the year. The key 

here is the time frame. All expenditure in the l&E e.g. green-keeper's wages 

whereas Purchase of Equipment or a pool table is long term item and goes into 

FIXED ASSETS. 

Procedure for a Question 

Open a statement of assets and liabilities as at 1/1 

Include all the obvious items 

Assets 

o Clubhouse

o Bar Stock

o Machinery

o Debtors

o Investments

Not so obvious assets would include 

o Investment interest due (to the club)_

o Subscriptions due (to the club)

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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o Opening bank balance but only if it is on the DEBIT side (assets)

o Levy due from members (to the club).

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Liabilities 

o Creditors

o Bank balance at 1/1 (credit balance)

Not so obvious liabilities would include 

o Life membership {we owe the use of club facilities to members who have

paid us in advance)

o levy reserve is a tax on members over time to pay for a capital project

o Loan

o Interest on the loan.

It is important to find the hidden items at the 1/1 to be included in the opening 

statement. 

Using Lakeside tennis club as our question. 

0 The opening bank balance is a liability [credit balance] 

@ loan and interest = €23,600 at 1/1/03. WE owe €20,000 on the loan. 

The interest is €23,600 - €20,000 = €3,600 

We paid it back on the 31/8/03 together with 1.5 years interest or 18 months. How 

much did we owe at 1/1 

18 the 8 months for 2003 

We owed 10 months at 1/1/03 [liability] 

If 18 months = €3600 

€3600/18 1 month = 

= €200 

Interest due is 10 months = €200 X 10 

= €2,000 liability at 1/1/03 
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At this point we calculate the 8 months for 2003 that we SHOULD pay 

= €200 X 8 

= €1,600 (expense in l&E) 

@ at part (d) 

Seven outstanding levies from the previous year are due to the club. 

€40 X 7 

= €280 

Subscriptions due from 2002 = €240 

See step 8 for investments. 

The difference between assets and liabilities at the 1/1/03 is called accumulated 

fund. 

To do part b we can take all the adjustments in exam question order. 

e Clubhouse and grounds = €320,000 @ 2% 

= €6,400 (l&E) 

0 Bar stock goes in a separate Bar Trading account 

We adjust bar sales 

= Bar receipts + 

= €70,000 + 

= €70,020 

closing debtors 

€130 

opening debtors 

€110 

We adjust bar creditors 

= Bar Purchases 

= €9,300 

+

+ 

closing creditors

€4,400

opening creditors 

€3,900 

= €59,800 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Bar Trading Account for year ending 31/12/03 

Sales 

Less Cost of Sales 

Opening Stock 

+ Purchases

- Closing stock

Cost of Sales 

Bar Profit 

0 

Equipment at 1/1 

-Sale

+ Purchase

Should be worth 

Only worth 

Depreciation = 17,300 

= €3,000 

€11,500 

1,600 

9,900 

7,400 

17,300 

14,300 

14,300 

& Subscriptions / Levy Reserve/ Life membership 

We need the 

o Subscriptions we SHOULD receive in 2003

o Levy Reserve at end of 2003

o Life membership at end of 2003

Subscriptions received 

- due at 1/1

- levy 2003 300 x 40

Levy 2002 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

51,520 

(240} 

(12,000) 

(280) 

13,000 

59,800 

72,800 

14,800 

€ 

70,020 

58,000 

12,020 
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l&E figure 

Levy Reserve at 1/1/03 

+ 2003's figure

12,000 

12,000 

24,000 

39000 

No change to Life members but you usually write off a % as Annual Income 

0 Investment Interest received= 

- due at 1/1

€2000 is the 8% Interest on investments 

€2,000 X 100 

8 

= 100% at the capital (investments) 

= €25,000 asset at 1/1 

The l&E figure is €2,000 

9 Prize Bonds are an intangible asset. 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

€2,200 

€200 

€2,000 
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3 Club Account 

Included among the assets and liabilities of the Bard's Valley Golf Club on 1/1/2007 were the 
following: 
Clubhouse and Course €750,000, Bar stock €7,000, Equipment (at cost) €26,000, Life membership 
€40,000, Bar Debtors €535, Bar creditors €6,000, Levy Reserve Fund €50,000, Investment interest 
receivable due €400, Wages due €2,500, Subscriptions received in advance €1,600. 

The club treasurer has supplied the following account of the club's activities during the year ended 
3 l/ 12/2007. 

Receipts 
Bank Current account 
Investment Interest from 
5% Government Investments 
Entrance fees 
Catering receipts 
Annual sponsorship 
Subscriptions 
Bar receipts 

€ 
14,000 

1,600 
15,000 
14,000 
25,000 

250,000 
I 10,460 

430,060 

Payments 

Bar purchases 
Catering costs 
Sundry expenses 
Equipment 
Golf lessons for club teams 
Repayment of €30,000 loan on 

31/5/2007 together with I½ 
years interest 

Transfer to Building Society 
on 31/12/2007 

Balance 

You are given the following additional information and instructions: 
1. Bar stock on 31/12/2007 was €8,500

€ 
78,500 
8,000 

186,400 
45,000 
4,600 

33,600 

60,000 
13,960 

430.060 

2. Equipment owned on 31/12/2007 is to be depreciated at the rate of 20% of cost.
3. Clubhouse and course to be depreciated by 2%.
4. Bar Debtors and Creditors on 31/12/2007 were €275 and €3,220 respectively.
5. Subscriptions include:

(i) One Life membership bringing total Life membership to 21.
(ii) Subscriptions for 2008 amounting to €2,600.
(iii) Levy for 2007 of €250 on 200 members.
(iv) Levy of €250 on 10 members for 2006

6. Life membership was to be written off over a l O year period commencing in 2007.

You are required to: 

{a) Show the Club's Accumulated Fund (Capital) on 1/1/2007. 

(b) Show the Income and Expenditure Account for the year ending 31/12/2007

( c) (i) Explain with the use of an example what is meant by a Special Purpose
Profit & Loss Account. 

(ii) If it were proposed to introduce a further four year levy to fund a €250,000 extension

(25) 

(25) 

what points would you as an ordinary member now make. (10) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 3 

Assets 
Clubhouse 
Bar stock 
Equipment 
Bar Debtors 
Investments 
Investment interest due 
Bank current account 
Levy due (250xl0) 

Less Liabilities 
Life membership 
Bar creditors 
Levy reserve fund 
Wages due 
Loan 

Accumulated Fund 1/1/2007 
€ 

750,000 
7,000 

26,000 
535 

W 1 24,000 
400 

14,000 
2,500 

Loan interest due W 2 

40,000 
6,000 

50,000 
2,500 

30,000 
2,600 
1,600 Subscriptions prepaid 

Accumulated Fund/Capital 1/1/2007 

(b} 

824,435 

Income & Expenditure Account for year ended 31/12/2007 
Income 

Bar profit 
Investment interest 
Entrance fees 
Catering profit (14,000-8,000) 
Annual sponsorship 
Subscriptions 
Life membership 

Less Expenses 
Sundry expenses (186,400-2,500) 
Golf lessons 
Loan interest 
Depreciation - equipment 
Depreciation - clubhouse 

W3 

W4 

Surplus oflncome over Expenditure for the year 

35,980 
1,200 

15,000 
6,000 

25,000 
194,500 

4,200 

183,900 1 
4,600 
1,000 

14,200 
15,000 

281,880 

(218,700) 

awl■ 
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Bar Trading Account 

Sales [110,490 + 275 -535] 
Less Cost of goods sold 

Stock 1/1/2007 
Add Purchases [78,500 + 3,220 - 6,000] 

Closing Stock 
Bar Profit 

Workings: 

1. Investments

2. Loan interest due 1/1/2007

3. Investment interest

€ 

7,000 
75,720 
82,720 
(8,500) 

5% 1,200 100% 

3,600 - 1,000 

1,600 - 400 

4. Subscriptions 1,600 + 250,000 - 2,000 - 50,000 - 2,500 - 2,600 

(c) 

(i) •

€ 

110,200 

(74,220} 

24,000 

2,600 

1,200 

194,500 

Sometimes non profit making organisations such as a club prepare a Profit and Loss account for
activities that are carried out to make a profit e.g. running a club lottery, dances, bar, restaurants
etc. All expenses and revenues relating to that particular activity are entered in a special profit and
loss account and the profit is then transferred to the income and expenditure account.

(ii)■

The proposed levy would raise €200,000 over 4 years [250 x 200 x 4]

Yes/No
As a member I would make the case that the club is capable of generating enough income from
within as it has a surplus of income of €63, 180. The club is financially sound as it has cash of
€13,960, building society investment of€60,000 and 5% government investments €24,000
totalling €97,960 even after it has paid off a loan and interest of €33,600 and
had purchased equipment for €45,000.

However a sizeable proportion of the surplus is provided by Entrance Fees of€ 15,000 and
Sponsorship of €25,000. This income cannot be guaranteed in future years.
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6. Club Accounts

Included among the assets and liabilities of the Glen Tennis Club on 1/1/2010 were the following: 

Clubhouse and courts €250,000, equipment (at cost) €75,000, bar stock €15,000, bar debtors €1,280, 
bar creditors €8,400, life membership €24,000, levy reserve fund €20,000, wages prepaid €400, 
subscriptions due €500. 

The Club Treasurer has supplied the following account of the club's activities during the year ended 
31/12/2010 

Receipts and Payments Account of Glen Tennis Club for year ended 31/12/2010 

Receipts 

Bank current account 
Interest from 4% investments 
Bar receipts 
Catering receipts 
Subscriptions 
Annual sponsorship 
Sale of equipment ( cost €4,000) 

€ 
1,140 
1,500 

74,000 
12,700 
84,000 
7,500 
2,500 

183.340 

Payments 
Bar purchases 
Sundry expenses 
Repayment of €30,000 loan on 

30/9/2010 with 15 months interest 
Equipment 
Catering costs 
Prize Bonds 
Coaching lessons 
Travel expenses 
Balance at bank 31/12/2010 

The following information and instructions are to be taken into account: 

(i) Bar stock on 31/12/2010 was €13,300.

€ 
38,500 
24,000 

33,960 
8,000 

15,800 
4,400 
3,500 

10,000 
45,180 

183.340 

(ii) Equipment owned on 3 l /12/20 l O is to be depreciated at the rate of 25% of cost.
(iii) Clubhouse and courts to be depreciated by 2% of cost.
(iv) Bar debtors and bar creditors on 31/12/20 IO were €300 and €8,600 respectively.
(v) Subscriptions include:

Two life memberships, bringing total life membership to ten. 
Subscriptions for 2011 amounting to €300 
Levy for 2010 of €100 each on 200 members 
Levy of€100 on 8 members for 2009. 

(vi) Investment interest due on 31/12/2010 was €500.
(vii) Life membership to be written off over a five year period commencing in 20 I 0.

Required 

(a) Show the Club's Accumulated Fund (Capital) on 1/1/2010.

(b) Show the Income and Expenditure account for the year ended 31/12/2010.

(c) Show the Club's Balance Sheet on 31/12/2010.

(d) (i) State and explain two limitations of a Receipts and Payments Account.

(ii) The club is considering the installation of floodlights at a cost of€70,000.
What advice would you give to the Treasurer of the club?

(30) 

(35) 

(20) 

(15) 

(100 marks) 
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Question 6 

(a) 

(b) 

Accumulated Fund at 1/1/2010 
Assets 

Clubhouse and Grounds 
Equipment 
Bar stock 
Bar debtors 
Wages prepaid 
Subscriptions due 
Bank 
4% Government investments 
Levies due 

Less Liabilities 
Bar creditors 
Life membership 
Levy Reserve 
Loan 
Loan Interest due 

Accumulated Fund/Capital 1/1/2010 

250,000 
75,000 
15,000 
1,280 

400 
500 

1,140 
50,000 

800 

8,400
1

24,000 
20,000 
30,000 
1,584 •. 

Income and Expenditure Account for the Year ending 31/12/2010 
€ 

Income 
Bar profit WI 32,620 1 
Interest from investments 2,000 
Subscriptions W2 56,400 
Annual sponsorship 7,500 
Life membership written off W3 6,000 

Expenditure 
Catering Loss W4 3,100 
Loss on sale of equipment 1,500 
Sundry expenses ws 24,400 
Coaching lessons 3,500 
Travel expenses 10,000 
Loan Interest 2,376 
Depreciation Equipment 19,750 
Depreciation Clubhouse and grounds 5,000 

Surplus of income 

394,120 

(83,984) 
310.13611 

€ 

104,520 

(69,626) 

34.894 ■ 
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(c) 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2010 

€ 

Fixed Assets 
Clubhouse and Courts 250,000

11 Equipment 79,000 

Investments 
4% Government Investments 

Current Assets 
Closing Stock 
Debtors 
Bank 
Investment Interest due 
Prize Bonds 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
Creditors 
Subscriptions prepaid 

Total Net Assets 

Financed by 
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than 1 year 

Life membership 

Accumulated Fund 
Balance at 1 January 2010 
Add surplus of income 
Levy Reserve 

Capital Employed 

3291000 

13.,ool 300 
45,180 

500 
4,400 

8,600

1 300 

€ 

5,000
1 19,750 

24,750 

63,680 

(8,900) 

310,136

11 .. 34,894 

€ 

245,000 

59,250 
304,250 

50,000 

354,250 

54,780 
409,030 

24,000■ 

345,030 
40.000 

409,030 

(d) (i)

Limitations of a Receipts and Payments Account. ■

• does not show whether the club is raising enough funds to cover its running costs
• amounts due but unpaid at the end of the accounting period are not included
• only shows an increase or decrease in cash although there could be outstanding bills
• does not take into account losses such as depreciation
• does not show whether the club bar or restaurant are profitable
• does not distinguish between receipts for the current year and other years
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(d) (ii) II

Yes I would advise the treasurer to go ahead and install the floodlights. The improved facilities
would allow longer use of club courts resulting in added income from usage. This could
enable the club to increase its membership and thereby increase the annual surplus of income
as well as greater usage of restaurant and bar.

The club is in a strong financial position: It has a surplus of income over expenditure of
04,894 in the current year. At this rate of surplus enough funds would be generated in little
over two years.
The club has increased its bank balance to €1-5,180 after paying off a loan of 00,000 during
the year. [includes levy €20,000}
To fund the expenditure of €70,000 the club could use the cash balance of €1-5,180, the prize
bonds of €1-,400 and withdraw €20,420 from the investment fund.

The club should avoid using any of the funds raised through the levy as this is more than likely
earmarked for other purposes and these funds may be needed for future capital expenditure.

Funds available without Reserve Fund 
Investments 50,000 
Prize bonds 4,400 
Bank balance 45.180 

Less Levy 
Net available 

99,580 
(40,000) 

� 

Borrow the remainder in the short term as the club is capable of paying back quickly through 
its regular income sources. 

Question 6 - Workings 
I. Bar Trading account for the year ending 31/12/2010

Sales (74,000 + 300 1,280)
Less Cost of Sales

Opening stock 
Purchases (38,500 + 8,600 - 8,400) 

Closing stock 
Bar profit 

2. Subscriptions
Received
Less subs due 1/1/2010
Life membership
Levy 2010
Levy 2009
Subs prepaid 31/12/2010

3. Life Membership
1/1/2010
Amount received
less transferred to P&L account

4. Catering Loss
Receipts
Costs

5. Sundry Expenses
Payments
Add wages prepaid

15,000 
38,700 
53,700 

(13,300) 

84,000 
(500) 

(6,000) 
(20,000) 

(800) 
(300) 

24,000 
6,000 

(6,000) 

12,700 
(15,800) 

24,000 
400 

73,020 

(40,400} 
� 

56,400 

24,000 

3,100 

24,400 
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4. Club Accounts

Included among the assets and liabilities of the Tallones Basketball Club on 1/1/2012 were
the following:
Clubhouse and Arena €680,000, Bar stock €2,200, Equipment (at cost) €23,000, Life membership
€25,000, Bar Debtors €421, Bar creditors €1,600, Levy Reserve Fund €12,000, Wages due €2,800,
Subscriptions received in advance €1,400.

The club treasurer has supplied the following account of the club's activities during the year ended 
3 l /12/2012. 

Receipts and Payments account for the year ended 31/12/2012 

Receipts € Payments 
Bank Current account 11,300 Bar purchases 
Interest from 4% Government Catering costs 
Investments 900 Sundry expenses 
Arena rent 15,000 Equipment 
Catering receipts 12,400 Coaching expenses 
Annual sponsorship 73,000 Repayment of €40,000 loan on 
Subscriptions 65,000 31/05/2012 together with 
Bar receipts 42,410 16 months interest 
Lotto receipts 52,500 Transfer to Building Society 

on 31/12/2012 
Lotto costs 
Balance 

212,510 

You are given the following additional information and instructions: 

1. Bar stock on 31/12/2012 was €2,450.
2. Equipment owned on 31/12/2012 is to be depreciated at the rate of 20% of cost.
3. Clubhouse and Arena to be depreciated by 2%.
4. Bar debtors and creditors on 31/12/2012 were €190 and €1,330 respectively.
5. Investment interest due on 31/12/2012 was €300.
6. Subscriptions include:

(i) Five Life memberships bringing total Life membership to 30.
(ii) Subscriptions for 2013 amounting to €2,400.
(iii) Levy for 2012 of€80 each on 150 members.
(iv) Levy of€80 each on 15 members for 201 I.

€ 
28,700 

9,900 
103,600 
41,000 

4,600 

44,800 

28,000 
7,600 
4,310 

212,510 

7. Life membership was to be credited to income over a 5 year period commencing in 2012.

You are required to: 

(a) Show the Club's Accumulated Fund {Capital) on 1/1/2012. (25) 
(b) Show the Income and Expenditure Account for the year ending 31/12/2012 (25) 

(c) (i) Explain with the use of an example what is meant by a Special Purpose 
Profit & Loss Account. 

(ii) The club has decided to lay an all-purpose floor at a cost of€150,000. The Treasurer
has proposed to increase the levy by €120 per annum and extend it for five more years.
As an ordinary member what arguments would you make against this proposal? ( I 0) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 4 

(a) 

(b) 

Accumulated Fund 1/1/2012 

Assets 
Clubhouse 
Bar stock 
Equipment 
Bar debtors 
Investments 
Bank current account 
Levy due (80 xl5) 

Less Liabilities 
Life membership 
Bar creditors 
Levy reserve fund 
Wages due 
Loan 
Loan interest due 
Subscriptions prepaid 

Accumulated Fund/Capital 1/1/2012 

WI 

W2 

€ 
680,000 

2,200 

23,000

421 
30,000

11,300 

1,200 

25,000 

1,600 

12,000 

2,800 

40,000 
3,300 
1,400 

Income & Expenditure Account for year ended 31/12/2012 

Income € 

Bar profit Wt 13,999 
Investment interest W2 1,200

Arena rent 15,000

Catering profit [12,400 - 9,900] 2,500

Annual sponsorship 73,000 
Lotto [52,500 7,600] 44,900 

Subscriptions W4 45,800 

Life membership ws 6,000

Less Expenditure 
Sundry expenses [103,600 - 2,800] 100.800 

I
Coaching expenses 4,600 
Loan interest W3 1,500 
Depreciation - Equipment 12,800 

Depreciation - Clubhouse and arena 13,600 

Surplus oflncome over Expenditure for the year 

€ 

202,399 

€ 

748,121 

86,100

662,021 II 

(133,300} 
69,092 ■ 
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(c) (i)■

Sometimes non-profit making organisations such as a club prepare a profit and loss account for
activities that are carried out to make a profit e.g. running a club lotto, dances, bar, restaurant etc.
All expenses and revenues relating to the particular activity are entered in a special purpose profit
and loss account and the profit/loss is then transferred to the income and expenditure account.

(ii)

The proposed levy would raise€ 150,000 over the next 5 years [200 x 150 x 5]
The club has funds amounting to:

Investments 30,000 
Building society 28,000 
Cash 4,310 

62,310 

As a member I would make the case: 
The proposed levy of€200 [120 +80] amounts to 66% of the annual subscription. 
An increased levy would discourage new members and perhaps cause a drop in membership. 

The club is capable of generating enough income from within as it has a surplus of income 
amounting to €69,099 and it is financially sound as it has a cash balance of €4,310, building 
society investment of €28,000 and 4% government investments €30,000 totalling €62,310. 

Although a sizeable proportion of the surplus is provided by sponsorship of€73,000 and it cannot be 
guaranteed in future years it should be noted that this figure is well below the non-recurring capital amounts 
paid during the year i.e. equipment €41,000 and loan €44,800 amounting to €85,800. 

The club should use the cash and investments total] ing €62,310 and borrow the remainder of €90,000 
approx or continue with current levy of€80 for 5 years plus use current funds and borrow €28,000 approx. 
The improved facilities could: 

Increase the rent earned from the arena 
Increase membership 
Encourage increased advertising income 

Workings: 

I. Bar Trading Account € € 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Sales [42,410 + (190 421)] 42,179 
Less Cost of sales 

Stock 1/1/2012 2,200 
Add Purchases [28,700 + (1,330 - 1,600)] 28,430 

Less Closing Stock 
Bar Profit 

Investments 
Investment interest 

[4% 1,200] 
[900 + 300] 

30,630 
(2,450) (28,180} 

100% 

Loan interest due 1/1/2012 [4,800 1,500] 

Subscriptions 

Life membership 

[65,000 + 1,400- 5,000-2,400 1,200 12,000] 

1/5 [25,000 + 5,000] 

= 13,999 

30,000 
1,200 

3,300 

45,800 

6,000 
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6. Service Firm

The following were included in the assets and liabilities of the Oak Health Centre Ltd, on 1/1/2006:
Buildings €500,000; Equipment €70,000; Furniture at cost €20,000; Stock of health food for sale €1,300; Heating
oil €640; Creditors for supplies to Health Centre €1,250; 5% Investments €70,000; Contract cleaning prepaid
€250; Clients' fees paid in advance €4,300; Authorised Capital €430,000 and Issued Capital €300,000.

All fixed assets have 2 years accumulated depreciation on 1/1/2006.

The following is the Receipts and Payments Account for the year ended 31/12/2006:

Receipts and Payments Account of Oak Health Centre for year ended 31/12/2006 

Balance at Bank 1/1/2006 
Clients' fees 
Investment Income 
Shop receipts 

€ 
7,250 

252,600 
3,000 

65,000 

Laundry 
Wages & Salaries 
Repayment of€50,000 loan on 

l /5/2006 with 18 months interest
Equipment 
New extension 
Cleaning 
Light and heat 
Insurance 
Telephone 
Purchases shop 
Purchases supplies 
Balance at Bank 31/12/2006 

The following information and instructions are to be taken into account: 

I. Closing stocks at 3 l /12/2006: Shop €1,600, Heating oil €250.

€ 
800 

86,220 

57,200 
14,000 
70,000 
2,600 
2,800 
6,200 
1,660 

42,100 
36,800 
7,470 

2. Cleaning is done under contract payable monthly in advance and includes a payment of€300 for January
2007.

3. Clients' fees includes fees for 2007 of €3,000. Clients' fees in arrears at 31/12/2006 €450.
4. The closing figure for bank does not take into account a dishonoured cheque €100 received from a client

and lodged in late December.
5. Wages and Salaries include €12,000 per annum paid to the receptionist, who also runs the shop. It is

estimated that 70% of this salary, €200 of the light and heat, €500 of the insurance and €340 of the
telephone are attributable to the shop.

6. On 3 l /12/2006 the Oak Health Centre Ltd. decided to re-value Buildings at €680,000.
7. Electricity due 31/12/2006 €270.
8. Creditors for supplies to the Health Centre Ltd. at 31/12/2006 are €1,400
9. Depreciation to be provided as follows:

Buildings 2% of cost for the full year. 
Equipment 15% of cost per annum. 
Furniture 25% of cost per annum. 

You are required to: 

(a) Calculate the company's reserves on 1/1/2006.

{b) Calculate the Profit/Loss from the shop for the year ended 31/12/2006. 

(c) Prepare a Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31/12/2006.

(d) Prepare a Balance Sheet on 31/12/2006.

(20) 

(12) 

(36) 

(32) 

(100 marks} 

1
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Question 6 - solution 

(a) 
Statement of Capital and Reserves on 1/1/2006 

Assets 
Buildings and grounds (500,000 -20,000) 
Equipment (70,000 21,000) 
Furniture (20,000 l 0,000) 
Investments 
Stock -health food for resale 
Stock-oil 
Contract cleaning prepaid 
Cash at bank 

Liabilities 
Creditors for supplies 
Customers advance deposits 
Loan 
Interest on loan (14 months @€400 per month) 
Issued Capital 

Reserves 1/1/2006 

(b) 

€ 

480,000 

49,000 

10,000 

70,000 

1,300 

640 

250 

1,250

1 

4,300 

50,000 

5,600 

300,000 

€ 

618,440 

361 150 

257,290 

Health Shop Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2006 

Shop receipts 
Less expenses 

Cost of goods sold (1,300 + 42, I 00 -1,600) 
Light and heat 
Insurance 
Telephone 
Wages and salaries (70% x 12,000) 

Profit from Health shop 

(c) 

€ € 

41,800

1 

200 

500 

340 

8,400 

65,ooo ■ 

Profit and Loss Account for year ended 31/12/2006 
Income 

Interest received 
Profit from health shop 
Customer's fees W I 

Less Expenses 
Wages and salaries (86,220 8,400) 
Insurance ( 6,200 500)
Light and heat W 2 
Purchases -supplies W 3 
Loan interest W 4 
Laundry 
Postage and telephone (1,660 -340) 
Depreciation Buildings 

Equipment 
Furniture 

Contract cleaning W 5 
Net Profit for year 
Add Reserves 1/1/2006 

Profit and Loss balance 31/12/2006

3,500

1 
13,760

254,350 

77,820 
5,700 

3,260 

36,950 

1,600 

800

1,320 

11,400

12,600 

5,000 

2,550

271,610 

(159,000) 
112,610 1
257,290 

369,900

1
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(d) 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2006 

Cost Depreciation 
Fixed Assets € € 

Buildings and grounds 680,000 1 
Equipment (70,000 + 14,000) 84,000 33,600 1 
Furniture 20.000 15.000 

784,000 48,600 

Investments 

Current Assets 
Investment income due 500 

Closing stock shop goods 1,600 

Oil 250 

Cleaning prepaid 300 

Customer's fees due (450 +100) 550 

Bank W 6 7,370 10,570 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
270

1 
Electricity due 
Customer's advance deposits 
Creditors for supplies 

Financed by 
Share Capital and Reserves 
Ordinary Shares 
Revaluation Reserve 
Profit and Loss balance 

Workings 

W I Customer's fees 
Amount received 
Less Dishonoured cheque 
Fees due 
Advance deposits 
Less fees prepaid 

W 2 Light and heat
Amount paid 
Stock oil 1/1/2006 

Electricity due 
Stock oil 31/12/2006

Charge to shop 

W 3 Purchases 

W 4 Loan Interest 

W 5 Contract cleaning 

W 6 Bank 

3,000 

1,400 {4,670) 

Authorised 
430,000■ 

Issued 
300,000 1 
141,400 

369,900

€ 
252,600

(100) 
550 

4,300 

(3,000) 

€ 
252,600

450 

4,300 

(3,000) 

2,800

640 

270 

(250) 
(200) 

36,800 + 1,400 - 1,250 

7,200/]8 X 4 

2,600 + 250 - 300 

7,470-100 

254,350 

3,260 

36,950 

1,600

2,550 

7,370 

Net 
€ 

680,000

50,400

5.ooo
735,400

10,000■ 
805,400 

5,900

811,300 

811,300

811,300 

1
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6. Service Firm

The following were included in the assets and liabilities of the Elms Nursing Horne Ltd, on 01/01/2009:
Buildings and Grounds €550,000; Equipment €45,000; Mini Bus at cost €50,000; Stock in shop €3,300;
Stock of Heating oil €1,600; Creditors for supplies to Nursing Horne €1,000; 5% Investments €30,000;
Contract cleaning prepaid €200; Clients deposits paid in advance €4,000; Authorised Capital €450,000;
Issued Capital €320,000.

All fixed assets have 3 years accumulated depreciation on 01/01/2009

The following is a Receipts and Payments Account for the year ended 31/12/2009:

Receipts and Payments Account of Elms Nursing Home Ltd for year ended 31/12/2009
€ 

Balance at Bank 01/01/2009 
Clients fees 
Investment Income 
Shop receipts 
Balance c/d 

8,250 
340,000 

1,000 
40,000 
75,450 

464.700 

Laundry 
Telephone 
Wages & Salaries 
Repayment of€40,000 loan on 01/05/2009 

with 18 months Interest. 
Equipment 
New extension 
New Mini Bus 
Contract cleaning 
Light and heat 
Insurance 
Purchases - shop 
Purchases supplies 
Dishonoured cheque fees 

The following information and instructions are to be taken into account: 

(i) Closing stocks at 31/12/2009: Shop €1,500, Heating oil €300.

€ 
2,000 
1,600 

85,500 

48,100 
15,000 

200,000 
35,000 

3,500 
3,100 
6,400 

28,000 
35,900 

600 
464.700 

(ii) Cleaning is done under contract payable monthly in advance and includes a payment of €400
for January 2010.

(iii) Clients' fees include fees for 2010 of€5,000. Clients' fees in arrears at 31/12/2009 €500.
(iv) The dishonoured cheque was not subsequently recovered, and was written off as a bad debt.
(v) Wages and Salaries include €18,000 per annum paid to the secretary, who also runs the shop.

It is estimated that 40% of this salary, €250 of the light and heat, €800 of the insurance and
€350 of the telephone is attributable to the shop.

(vi) Creditors for supplies to the Nursing Home at 31/12/2009 are €1,800.
(vii) Electricity due on 31/12/2009 €320.

(viii) Depreciation to be provided as follows:
Buildings 2% of cost for the full year 
Equipment 15% of cost per annum 
Mini bus at 20% of cost per annum from date of purchase to date of sale 
The mini bus held on O 1/0 l /2009 was purchased on O l /01/2006 and was traded in on 
01/07/2009 against a new mini bus. The trade in allowance was €7,000 against a 
new bus valued at €42,000. 

(ix) On 31/12/2009 the Elms Nursing Home Ltd decided to re-value buildings at €900,000

Required: 

(a) Calculate the company's reserves (profit and loss balance) on 01/01/2009 (18) 
(b) Calculate the profit/loss from the shop for the year ended 31/12/2009 (10) 
(c) Prepare the Profit and Loss Account of Elms Nursing Home Ltd

for the year ended 31/12/2009 (36) 
(d) Prepare the Balance Sheet of Elms Nursing Home Ltd on 31/12/2009 (30) 
( e) The management of the nursing home is considering an increase of 10% in the clients' fees.

What advice would you give? Explain your answer. (6) 

(lO0marks) 
1
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Question 6 

(a) 

Statement of Capital and Reserves on 1/1/2009 

Assets 
Buildings and grounds (550,000 33,000) 
Equipment (45,000 - 20,250) 
Mini Bus (50,000 30,000) 
5% Investments 
Stock in shop 
Stock of oil 
Contract cleaning prepaid 
Cash at bank 

Liabilities 

(b) 

Creditors for supplies 
Clients' fees paid in advance 
Loan 
Interest on loan (14 months@450 per month) 
Issued Capital 

Reserves 

€ 

517,000 

24,750 

20,000 

30,000 

3,300 

1,600 

200 

8,250 

1.000 I
4,000 

40,000 

6,300 

320,000 

Shop Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31/l2n009 

Shop receipts 
Less expenses 
Cost of goods sold (3,300 + 28,000 - 1,500) 
Light and heat 
Insurance 
Telephone 
Wages and salaries (40% x 18,000) 
Profit from shop 

29,800 I250 

800 

350 

7,200 

€ 

605,100 

(371,300) 
233.800 ■ 

40,000 ■ 

(38,400) 
� 
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(c) 

Profit and Loss Account for year ended 31/12/2009 
Income 

Interest received 
Profit from shop 
Clients' fees 

Less Expenses 
Wages and salaries (85,500 -7,200) 
Insurance (6,400 -800) 
Light and heat 
Purchases - supplies 
Loan interest 
Laundry 
Telephone (1,600 - 350) 
Bad debt 
Depreciation Buildings 

Equipment 
Mini Bus 

Loss on sale of Bus 
Contract cleaning 

Net Profit for year 
Add Reserves 1/1/2009 
Profit and Loss balance 31/12/2009 

Workings 

Clients' fees 

Amount received 
Fees due 31/12/2009 (500 + 6 00 -600) 
Advance deposits l/l /2009 
Less fees prepaid 31/12/2009 

Light and heat 
Amount paid 
Stock oil 1/1/2009 
Electricity due 31/12/2 009 
Stock oil 31/12/2009 
Charge to shop 

Purchases 

Contract cleaning 

35,900 + 1,800 -1,000 

3,500 + 2 00 400 

€ 
1,500 

I1,600 

339,500 < 

78,300 

5,600 

4,470 
36,700 
1,800 

2,000 

1,250

600 

15,000 

9,000 

9,200 

8,000 

3,300 

340,000 

500

4,000 

(5,000) 

3,100 

1,600

320 

(300) 
(250) 

€ 

342,600 

(175,220) 
167,380 

I233,800 

401.180 

339,500

4,470 

36,700

3,300 

1
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(d) 

Balance sheet as at 31/12/2009 
Cost Depreciation Net 

Fixed Assets € € € 
Buildings and grounds 900,000 1 900,000 

Equipment (45,000 + 15,000) 60,000 29,250 1 30,750

Mini Bus 42,000 4,200 37,800

1.002.000 � 968,550

Investments 30.000 ■
998,550 

Current Assets 
Investment income due 500

1 

Closing stock - shop 1,500
-oil 300 

Cleaning prepaid 400 

Clients' fees due 500 3,200 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within l year
Electricity due 

3W
I Client's advance deposits 5,000 

Bank 75,450 
.. Creditors for supplies 1,800 (82,570} (79,370} 

919,)80 

Financed by 

Share Capital and Reserves Authorised Issued 
Ordinary Shares 450,000■ 320,000 1
Revaluation Reserve 198,000 

Profit and Loss balance 401,180 919,180 

9]9J80

(e) 

A 10% increase in clients' fees would increase income by €33,950. 

There is no need to increase fees for viability or profitability purposes. 
The company is profitable as its return on capital employed is 18.4% particularly in the current
climate. 
The company is generating ample cash. It has repaid a loan of €40,000, purchased equipment 
€15,000, contributed €35,000 towards a new mini bus and has financed about 58% of a €200,000

extension from cash receipts. 
In the current climate costs are dropping, there is increased competition and consequently charges
should not be increasing. 

1
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6. Service Firm

The following were included in the assets and liabilities of the New Era Gym and Health Centre Ltd,
on 01/01/2011:
Buildings and Grounds €520,000; Equipment €75,000; Vehicles at cost €60,000; Stock in shop €3,600;
Stock of heating oil € 1,800; Creditors for supplies to Gym and Health Centre € 1,500;
5% Investments €40,000; Contract cleaning prepaid €300; Clients deposits paid in advance €5,000.
The Authorised Capital of the company was €400,000 and the Issued Capital was €350,000.

All fixed assets have 3 years accumulated depreciation on 01/01/2011.

The following is a Receipts and Payments Account for the year ended 31/12/2011:

Receipts and Payments Account of New Era Gym & Health Centre Ltd for year ended 31/12/2011
€ € 

Balance at Bank 01/01/201 l 6,500 Laundry 3,000 
Clients fees 320,000 Telephone 1,400 
Investment Income 
Shop receipts 
Balance 3 l /  12/2011 

1,100 Wages & Salaries 84,300 
42,000 Repayment of€30,000 loan on 01/04/2011 

108,600 with 15 months interest 

478,200 

Equipment 
New extension 
New vehicle 
Contract cleaning 
Light and heat 
Insurance 
Purchases shop 
Purchases - supplies 

The following information and instructions are to be taken into account: 

(i) Closing stock at 31/12/2011: Shop €1,600, Heating oil €400.

36,000 
20,000 

220,000 
40,000 

3,400 
3,300 
6,200 

26,000 
34,600 

478,200 

(ii) Cleaning is done under contract payable monthly in advance and includes a payment of
€700 for January 2012.

(iii) Clients fees includes fees for 2012 of €5,500. Clients fees in arrears at 31/12/2011 €600.
(iv) Wages and Salaries include €20,000 per annum paid to the secretary, who also runs the

shop. It is estimated that 40% of this salary and €300 of the light and heat, €900 of the
insurance and €400 of the telephone is attributable to the shop.

(v) Creditors for supplies to the Gym & Health Centre at 31/12/2011 are €2,000.
(vi) Electricity due on 31/12/2011 €340.
(vii) Depreciation to be provided as follows:

Buildings 2% of cost for the full year 
Equipment 10% of cost for the full year 
Vehicles 20% of cost per annum from date of purchase to date of sale. 
The vehicle held on 01/01/2011 was purchased on 01/01/2008 and was traded in on 
01/07/2011 against a new vehicle. The trade in allowance was €8,000 against a 
new vehicle valued at €48,000. 

(viii) On 31/12/2011 the New Era Gym and Health Centre Ltd decided to re•value buildings at €850,000.

Required: 

(a) Calculate the company's reserves (profit and loss balance) on 01/01/2011. (18) 
(b} Calculate the profit/loss from the shop for the year ended 31/12/2011. (10) 
(c) Prepare a Profit and Loss Account of New Era Gym and Health Centre Ltd for the year ended

31/12/2011. (36) 
(d) Prepare a Balance Sheet on 31/12/2011. (30) 
(e) The company now wishes to purchase equipment for the new extension.

Advise the company on how to fund the expected cost of€150,000. (6) 

(100 marks) 

1
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Question 6 

(a) 

(b) 

Statement of Capital and Reserves on 1/1/2011 
Assets 

Buildings and grounds 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Stock in shop 
Stock of oil 
5% Investments 

(520,000 - 31,200) 
(75,000 - 22,500) 
(60,000 - 36,000) 

Contract cleaning prepaid 
Cash at bank 

Less Liabilities 
Creditors for supplies 
Clients fees paid in advance 
Loan 
Interest on loan ( 12 months @ 400 per month) 
Issued Capital 

Reserves 

Shop Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2011 
Shop receipts 
Less Expenses 

Cost of goods sold W 1 
Light and heat 
Insurance 
Telephone 
Wages and salaries (40% x 20,000) 

Profit from shop 

€ 
488,800

52,500 

24,000 

3,600

1,800 

40,000 

300 

6,500 

1,500

1 
5,000 

30,000 

4,800 

350,000 

28,000

1 
300 

900 

400 

8,000 

€ 

617,500 

(391,300} 
226.200■ 

42,000■ 

(37,600) 
� 

1
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(c) 

Profit and Loss Account for year ended 31/12/2011 
Income Investment income 2,000 1Profit from shop 4,400

Clients' fees W2 0,100 326,500

Less Expenditure Wages and salaries (84,300 8,000) 76,300Insurance {6,200 900) 5,300 Light and heat W3 4,740 Purchases supplies W4 35,100Loan interest 1,200Laundry 3,000Postage and telephone (1,400 - 400) 1,000 Depreciation Buildings 14,800-Equipment 9,500- Vehicles 10,800 Loss on sale of Vehicle 10,000 Contract cleaning W5 3,000 (174,740)Net Profit for year 151,760 Add Reserves 01/01/2011 226 200 Profit and Loss balance 31/12/2011 377,960 

(d) 

Balance sheet as at 31/12/2011 
Cost Depreciation Net 

Fixed Assets € € € Buildings and grounds 850,000 1 850,000Equipment (75,000 + 20,000) 95,000 32,000 1 63,000Vehicles 48,000 4.800 43,200993.000 � 956,200 5% Investments 40,000 11996,200 

Current Assets Investment income due

�I
Closing stock shop 1,600 Closing stock oil 400 Cleaning prepaid 700 Clients' fees due 600 4,200

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year Electricity due 

3401 

Clients' advance deposits 5,500 Bank 108,600 Creditors for supplies 2,000 (116,440) (112,240) 
883.260 

Financed by 
Share Capital and Reserves Authorised Issued Ordinary Shares 400.000■ 350,000 1Revaluation Reserve 156,000 Profit and Loss balance 377,960 883,360 

8831260 

1
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(e) 

Funding options for new equipment 

My advice to the company would be: € 
Sell investments 40,000 
Sell remaining shares 50,000 
Borrow 60,000 

150.000 

I 

The company would be well able to pay back the loan quickly as the accounts show that it had a 
surplus €151,760 in 2011 and the company is generating enough cash. Although it owes the bank 
€108,600 it has paid out amounts up to €310,000 on non-recurring and non-trading items. 

Workings 

1. Cost of goods sold
Stock 1/1/2011 

Add Purchases 
Less Stock 31/12/2011 

2. Clients' fees
Amount received 
Advance deposits 
Fees due 
Less fees prepaid 

3. Light and heat
Amount paid 
Stock oil 1/1/2011 
Electricity due 
Stock oil 31/12/2011 
Charge to shop 

4. Purchases

5. Contract cleaning

3,600 

26,000 
(1,600) 

320,000 
5,000 

600 
(5,500) 

3,300 
1,800 

340 
(400) 
(300) 

34,600 + 2,000 - 1,500 

3,400 +300- 700 

28,000 

320,100 

4,740 

35,100 

3,000 

1
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6. Service Firm

The following were included in the assets and liabilities of the Serenity Gym and Health Centre Ltd, on 
01/01/2013: 
Buildings and Grounds €620,000; Equipment €70,000; Vehicles at cost €90,000; Stock in shop €3,400; 
Stock of heating oil €1,900; Creditors for supplies to Gym and Health Centre €1,600; 5% Investments 

€40,000; Contract cleaning prepaid €400; Clients' deposits paid in advance €6,000, Authorised Capital 
€600,000, Issued Capital €450,000. 

All fixed assets have 3 years accumulated depreciation on 01/01/2013. 

The following is a Receipts and Payments Account for the year ended 31/12/2013: 

Receipts and Payments Account of Serenity Gym and Health Centre Ltd for year ended 31/12/2013 
€ € 

Balance at bank 01/01/2013 6,000 Laundry 2,500 
Clients' fees 330,500 Telephone 1,600 
Investment income 
Shop receipts 
Balance 31/12/2013 

1,200 Wages & salaries 85,400 
45,000 Repayment of€50,000 loan 

135,000 on 01/04/2013 with 

517,700 

15 months interest 
Equipment 
New Extension 
New Vehicle 
Contract cleaning 
Light and heat 
Insurance 
Purchases - shop 
Purchases - supplies 

The following information and instructions are to be taken into account: 
(i) Closing stock at 31/12/2013: Shop €1,400, Heating oil €600.

56,000 
15,000 

230,000 
50,000 
3,600 
3,400 
6,800 

28,000 
35,400 

517.700 

(ii) Cleaning is done, under contract, payable monthly in advance and includes a payment of €500
for January 2014.

(iii) Clients' fees include €6,500 for 2014. Fees due from Clients at 31/12/2013 were €800.
(iv) Wages and salaries include €22,000 per annum paid to the secretary, who also runs the shop. It

is estimated that 40% of this salary and €400 of the light and heat, €800 of the insurance and
€500 of the telephone is attributable to the shop.

(v) Creditors for supplies to the Gym & Health Centre at 31/12/2013 were €2,500.
(vi) Electricity due on 31/12/2013 was €360.
(vii) Depreciation to be provided as follows:

Buildings 2% of cost for the full year. 
Equipment l 0% of cost for the full year. 
Vehicles 20% of cost per annum from date of purchase to date of sale. 
On O l /07/2013 a vehicle which cost €40,000 on O l /0 l /20 l O was traded in against a new 
vehicle which cost €59,000. An allowance of €9,000 was given on the old vehicle. 

(viii) On 31/12/2013 the Serenity Gym and Health Centre Ltd decided to revalue buildings at
€900,000.

Required: 
(a) Calculate the company's reserves (profit and loss balance) on 01/01/2013. (18) 
(b) Calculate the profit/loss from the shop for the year ended 31/12/2013. (10) 
( c) Prepare a Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2013. (36) 
(d) Prepare a Balance Sheet on 31/12/2013. (30) 
(e) The owners of the Serenity Gym and Health Centre Ltd have proposed a 15% increase in

clients' fees to help clear the bank overdraft. What arguments would you make against
this proposal? (6) 

(100 marks) 
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Question 6 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

Statement of Capital and Reserves on 1/1/2013 
Assets 

Buildings and grounds 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
5% Investments 
Stock in shop 
Stock of oil 
Contract cleaning prepaid 
Cash at bank 

Liabilities 

(620,000 - 37,200) 
(70,000 21,000) 
(90,000 54,000) 

Creditors for supplies 
Clients' fees paid in advance 
Loan 
Interest on loan (12 months@ 400 per month) 

Issued Capital 
Reserves 1/1/2013 

€ 
582,800

49,000 

36,000 

40,000 

3,400

1,900 

400 

6,000 

1,600

1

·,
6,000 

50,000 •. 
4,800 

450,000 

€ 

719,500 

(512,400) 
201,100 II 

Shop Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2013 
Shop receipts 4s,ooo m 

(30,000)■ 
15,000 

Less Cost of goods sold (3,400 + 28,000 - 1,400) 

Less expenses 
Light and heat 
Insurance 
Telephone 
Wages and salaries (40% x 22,000) 

Profit from shop 

Profit and Loss Account for year ended 31/12/2013 
Income 

Profit from shop 
Investment income received 
Clients' fees 

Less Expenses 
Wages and salaries (85,400 8,800) 
Insurance (6,800 - 800) 
Light and heat 
Purchases - supplies 
Loan interest 
Laundry 
Telephone (1,600 - 500) 
Depreciation Buildings 

Equipment 
Vehicles 

Loss on sale of vehicle 
Contract cJeaning 

Net Profit for year 
Add Reserves 1/1/2013 
Profit and Loss balance 31/12/2013 

€ 
4,500 

2,000 

I 330,800 

76,600

6,000 

4,660 

36,300

1,200 

2,500 

1,100 
17,000 

8,500

19,900

3,000 

3,500 

400

I
" 

:�� ; :... · 8,800 

€ 

337,300 

(180,260) 
157,040 

I 207.100 

364.140 

(10,500) 
� 
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(d) 

(e) 

Balance sheet as at 31/12/2013 

Fixed Assets 
Buildings and grounds 
Equipment (70,000 + 15,000) 
Vehicles 

Investments 

Current Assets 
Investment income due 
Closing stock - shop 

oil 
Contract cleaning prepaid 
Clients' fees due 

Cost Depreciation 
€ € 

900,000 

85,000 II 
109,000 •;

1,094.000 

800 I
1,400 

. , :··.600 

500 

800 

29,500 11· 
45,900 .• 
� 

4,100 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
Electricity due 360 IClients' advance deposits 
Bank 
Creditors for supplies 

Financed by 
Share Capital and Reserves 

Ordinary Shares 
Revaluation Reserve [54,200 + 50,000] 
Profit and Loss balance 

6,500 

135,000 

2,500

Authorised 
600,000 ■ 

(144,360) 

Issued 
450,000 I ... 104,200 

364,140 

Net 
€ 

900,000

55,500 

63,100 

1,018,600 

40,000 11 
1,058,600 

(140,260) 
218,34!!

� 

918,340/ 
918.340 

I 
The Centre is profitable and is generating enough cash to clear the overdraft without taking 
any remedial action that could have negative effects on profitability. 
The proposed increase of 15% in clients' fees would raise only €49,620 based on this year's 
figures. This is only one third of the overdraft of €135,000 and so would not be adequate. This 
increase in fees could however cause a drop in membership with loss of income. 
Based on this year's figures the overdraft will have been cleared by the end of next year without 
taking any remedial action now. The Centre this year has repaid a loan of €50,000 plus interest 
€6,000 and had capital expenditure of€295,000 (Equipment €15,000, Extension €230,000, 
Vehicles €50,000). This is all non-recurring expenditure. 

The Centre had a surplus of€157,040 this year and is clearly being run profitably and will 
continue to be profitable. Its return on capital employed is 17.l %. 

Workings 

Clients' fees Amount received 
Advance deposits 
Fees due 
Less fees prepaid 

Light and heat Amount paid 
Stock oil 1/1/2013 
Electricity due 
Stock oil 31/12/2013 
Charge to shop 

330,500 

6,000 

800 

(6,500) 

3,400

1,900

360 

(600) 
{400) 

Purchases 
Contract cleaning 

35,400 + 2,500 -1,600 
3,600 + 400 500 

330,800

4 ,660 

36,300 
3,500 
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Tabular Statements 

This topic has been a regular feature on the Accounting paper as a 60 mark 

question and once as a 100 mark question in 1999 

In this article we will look at a sample question and a fully worked solution. 

Workings are essential in this topic as they provide back up in the event of a 

wrong entry on the Tabular Statement. Even though this topic has + and - type 

answers we will explain each transaction using accounts where possible 

The financial position of Arsenal Ltd on 1/1/2004 is shown in the following 

Balance Sheet. 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2004 

Cost 

Fixed Assets 

Land and Buildings 400000 

Equipment 160000 

560000 

Current Assets 

Stock 

Debtors 

Insurance Prepaid 

Less creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 

Creditors 71000 

Bank 28000 

Rent Receivable prepaid 

Financed by: 

Capital and Reserves 

Authorised - 400,000 ordinary shares @ €1 each 

Issued - 290,000 ordinary shares @ €1 each 

Share Premium 

Profit and Loss balance 

The following transactions took place in 2004 

600 

Dep to date 

40000 

15000 

55000 

80000 

75000 

1400 

156,400 

99600 

Jan: Arsenal Ltd decided to revalue the land and buildings on 

1/1/2004 at €600,000 which includes land now valued at 

Feb: 

€100,000 

A creditor who was owed €2,900 by Arsenal Ltd accepted 

equipment the book value of which was €2,100 in full 

settlement of this debt. The equipment had cost €2, 700 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

Net 

360000 

145000 

505000 

56,800 

561,800 

290,000 

15,000 

256,800 

561,800 
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March: Received a Bank statement showing a direct debit of €3,600 for 

fire insurance to cover the year ended 31/3/05 

April: A payment of €500 was received from a debtor whose debt had 

previously been written off as bad and now wishes to trade 

with Arsenal Ltd again. This represents 20% of the original debt 

and the debtor has undertaken to pay the remainder of the 

debt by January 2005. 

May: Received a bank statement showing a credit transfer for Rent 

received €2,400 for the year ended 31/5/05 

June: Arsenal Ltd bought an adjoining business on 1/6/2004 which 

included Buildings €120,000, stock €60,000 and creditors 

€50,000. the purchase price was discharged by granting the 

seller 100,000 shares in Arsenal Ltd at a premium of 40 cent 

each 

July: Received €14,000 from the issue of the remaining shares. 

Sep: An interim dividend of 7c per share was paid on all paid up 

shares 

Dec: The buildings depreciation charge for the year is to be 2% of 

Book value. The depreciation charge is to be calculated from 

date of valuation and date of purchase. 

You are required to 

Record on a tabular statement the effect each of the above transaction had on 

the relevant asset and liability and ascertain the total assets and liabilities on 

31/12/2004 (100) 

Explanations 

January 

Arsenal Ltd decided to revalue the land and buildings on 

1/1/2004 at €600,000 which includes land now valued at 

€100,000 

This involves 3 separate accounts and the 2 text book rules of Revaluation 

1-1-04 Bal b/d

Revaluation Reserve

Land & buildings 

400,000 

200,000 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Revaluation Reserve 40,000 1-1-04 Bal b/d 40,000 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Revaluation Reserve 

Land & Buildings 

200,000 

Acc. Depreciation 40,000 

As the buildings had cost 400,000 but had aggregate depreciation of 40,000 the net 

book value is only 360,000. When we revalue up to 600,000, we are revaluing from 

360,000 to 600,000 

This is done in 2 steps 

Debit Buildings A/c 

Credit Revaluation Reserve A/c 

Debit Acc. Depreciation A/c 

with the cost difference of 200,000 

Credit Revaluation Reserve A/c with accumulated depreciation to date of 40,000 

Tabular entries 

Land and Buildings +200,000 

Acc. Depreciation + 40,000 

Revaluation Reserve +240,000 

February 

A creditor who was owed €2,900 by Arsenal Ltd accepted equipment the book value 

of which was €2,100 in full settlement of this debt. The equipment had cost €2, 700 

In this adjustment we cancel out a liability of 2,900 to creditors by giving them 

equipment with a book value of 2,100. This means that we made a profit on disposal 

of 800 (gain) 

We also remove the equipment at COST and wipe out the existing depreciation as 

we no longer keep records of items that are gone from the business. 

Creditors A/c 

Disposal 2900 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

1

081



Disposal 

Equipment 

P+l 

Tabular entries 

Equipment -2700 

Acc. Dep. +600 

Creditors -2900 

P + L +800 

March 

600 

Acc. Depreciation A/c 

Equipment A/c I Disposal

Disposal A/c 

2700 Acc. Dep. 
800 Creditor 

P + LA/c 

I Disposal 

2700 

600 

800 

Received a Bank statement showing a direct debit of €3,600 for fire insurance to 

cover the year ended 31/3/05 

2900 

It is important to remember that the FULL amount goes out of bank and into 

insurance but only the 2004 amount is transferred to the P + Lat the end of the year 

Bank A/c 

I Insurance 3600 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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1-1-04 Bal b/d
Bank 

1-1-05 Bal b/d

31-12-04 Insurance

Insurance A/c 
1400 31-12-04 P + L 4100

3600 31-12-04 Bal c/d
5000 
900 

P + L A/c 
4100 I 

The P + L figure for 2004 is the prepaid amount of 1400 for the first 3 months+ (3/4
of 3600 which is 2700) giving a 12 month figure of 4100. 
The remaining¼ of the 3600 is prepaid for 2005 

Tabular entries 

March December 

Insurance +3600 Insurance - 4100 

Bank overdraft+ 3600 P + L - 4100 

April 
A payment of €500 was received from a debtor whose debt had previously been 
written off as bad and now wishes to trade with Arsenal Ltd again. This represents 
20% of the original debt and the debtor has undertaken to pay the remainder of the
debt by January 2005. 

This adjustment must be memorised as follows 

For the Bad debt RecoverED {500) 

Reduce Bank overdraft by 500 

Increase P + L by 500 

For the Bad debt RecoverABLE (80% of full amount and we know that 20% is 500
then 80% must be 2000) 

Increase Debtors by 2000 

Increase P + L by 2000 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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May 
Received a bank statement showing a credit transfer for Rent received €2,400 for the
year ended 31/5/05 

It is important to remember that the FULL amount goes out of bank and into Rent 
Receivable but only the 2004 amount is transferred to the P + Las a gain at the end
of the year 

Rent Received 

31-12-04 P + L 
31-12-04 Bal c/d

Bank A/c
2400 I 

Rent Receivable A/c 
2000 1-1-04 Bal b/d 600
1000 Bank 

3000 
1-1-05 Bal b/d

P + LA/c 

131-12-04 Rent Receivable 2000

2400
3000 
1000 

The P + L figure for 2004 is the prepaid amount of 600 for the first 5 months + (7 /12
of 2400 which is 1400) giving a 12 month figure of 2000 
The remaining 5/12 of the 2400 is prepaid for 2005 

Tabular entries 

December 

Bank o/d - 2400 P + L +2000 

Rent Receivable +2400 Rent Receivable -2000 

June 

Arsenal Ltd bought an adjoining business on 1/6/2004 which included Buildings 
€120,000, stock €60,000 and creditors €50,000. the purchase price was discharged
by granting the seller 100,000 shares in Arsenal Ltd at a premium of 40 cent each 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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This adjustment can be explained by the fact that the firm bought 2 assets worth 
120000 + 60000 = 180000 and 1 liability 50000. 
This gives a net figure of 130000. 

In return the firm had to give 100000 shares worth 1 euro each plus a premium of 
40c. 
This firm has given 140000 for a business worth 130000. 
Why? It paid 10000 for the GOODWILL 

Tabular entries 

I Buildings+ 120000
Stock + 60000 

Issued Ordinary shares + 100000 
Share Premium + 40000 
Creditors +50000 

July 

GOODWILL+ 10000 

Received €14,000 from the issue of the remaining shares 

The key point here is the Authorised ordinary shares versus the Issued Ordinary 
shares. 

At the beginning we had issued shares of 290000 and in June we issued a further 
100000 bringing issued up to a total of 390000. 
The Authorised amount is fixed at 400000 and so we only have 10000 remaining 
shares. 
The reason that we got 14000 for them is due to a share premium of 4000 

Tabular entries 

Issued Ordinary shares + 10000 
Share Premium + 4000 
Bank o/d - 14000 

September 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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An interim dividend of 7c per share was paid on all paid up shares 

At this stage all 400000 shares are paid up and so the dividend will be 400000 x .07 =
28000. 
This will be paid out of the bank overdraft and will reduce the profit and loss balance 

Tabular entries 

I 
Bank o/d + 28000

P + L - 28000 

December 
The buildings depreciation charge for the year is to be 2% of Book value. The 
depreciation charge is to be calculated from date of valuation and date of purchase. 

The difficulty here is that we must work out the Depreciation charge in two parts 

Date of valuation 
At 1-1-04 we re-valued land and buildings at 600000 but 100000 of this was LAND 
WE NEVER DEPRECIATE LAND JUST BUILDINGS 
At 1-1-04 we find 2% of the buildings 

2% of 500000 = 10000 which is for a full year 

Date of purchase 
This portion will not be for a full year as the purchase of the new business took place 
on the 1-06-04. 
We only had them for 7 months 
120000 X 2% X 7 /12 = 1400

THE TOTAL DEPRECIATION CHARGE FOR THE YEAR IS 11400 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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6. Tabular Statement

The financial position ofNSL Ltd on 1/1/2005 is shown in the following Balance sheet:

Balance sheet as at 1/1/2005 

Fixed Assets 
Land & buildings 
Equipment 

Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors (less provision 5%) 

Cost 
€ 

260,000 
50,000 

310,000 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
Creditors 61,000 
Bank 23,000 
Expenses due 3,500 

Net Current Assets 

Financed by 
Capital and reserves 

Authorised - 400,000 Ordinary shares @ €1 each 
Issued - 290,000 Ordinary shares @€1 each 
Share premium 
Profit and loss balance 

Dep. 
to date 

€ 
25,000 
20.000 
� 

70,000 
85,500 

155,500 

87,500 

Net 
€ 

235,000 
30,000 

265,000 

68,000 
333.000 

290,000 
14,000 
29.000 

333,000 
The following transactions took place during 2005: 

Jan. 

Feb. 

March 
April 

May 

June 

July 

Aug. 
Oct. 
Nov. 
Dec. 

NSL Ltd. bought an adjoining business which included buildings €120,000, debtors 
€10,000 and creditors €38,000. The purchase price was discharged by granting the 
seller 80,000 shares in NSL Ltd. at a premium of20 cent per share. 
NSL Ltd. decided to re-value land and buildings at €550,000 (which includes land 
valued at €70,000) on 28/2/2005. 
Management decided that the provision for bad debts should be raised to 6% of debtors. 
Goods previously sold for €800 were returned. The selling price of these goods was 
cost plus 25%. A credit note was issued showing a deduction of 10% of the selling price as 
a restocking charge. 
Received a bank statement on May 31 showing a credit transfer received of €4,800 to 
cover IO months rent in advance from May 1 and a direct debit of €2,000 to cover fire 
insurance for the year ended 31/3/2006. 
A payment of €630 was received from a debtor whose debt had been previously 
written off and who now wishes to trade with NSL Ltd. again. This represents 
70% of the original debt and the debtor had undertaken to pay the remainder of the 
debt by January, 2006. 
A creditor, who was owed €500 by NSL Ltd., accepted equipment, the book value 
of which was €400, in full settlement of the debt. The equipment cost €900. 
An interim dividend of Sc per share was paid on all paid up shares. 
Received €40,000 from the issue of the remaining shares. 
Received balance of previously written off bad debt as agreed in June. 
The buildings are to be depreciated at the rate of2% per annum of value at 28/2/2005. The 
total depreciation charge on equipment for the year was €9,700. 

You are required to: 

Record on a tabular statement the effect each of the above transactions had on the relevant asset, 
liability and capital accounts and ascertain the total assets and liabilities on 3 I /12/2005. 

(100 marks) 
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Question 6 

1/1/2005 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec 31/12/2005 

■ ■ 
Land & Buildings 260,000 120,000 170,000 II 550.000 

Depreciation (25,000) 25,000 II (8,000) (8,000) 
Equipment 50,000 ■ (900) • 49,100

Depreciation (20,000) ■ 500 (9,700) (29,200)
Goodwill 4,000 ■ ■ 4,000 ■ 
Stock 70,000 ■ 640 ■ ■ 70,640 ■ 
Debtors 90,000 10,000 ■ (720) 270 (270) 99,2so 11 
Bad Debts Provision (4,500) (1,500) ■ ■ ■ (6,000) 
Insurance 2,000 (1,500} 500

420,500 134,000 195.000 (1.500) (80) 2.000 270 (400) - - (270) (19,200) 730.320 

■ • 
Ord. shares 290,000 80,000 30,000 400,000 ■ 
Share Premium 14,000 16,000 ■ ■ • ■ ■ 10,000 40,000 

P&L Balance 29,000 ■ (1,500) (80) 900 100 (18,500) ■ (17,700) ■
(1,500) ■

■ ■ 3,s4o 11 (5,440) II 
Creditors 61,000 38,000 • • (500) • • ■ 98,500

Bank 23,000 (2,800) (630) 18,500 (40,000) (270) (2,200) ■ 
Expense due 3,500 ■ 3,500 ■ 
Revaluation Reserve 195,000 ■ ■ 195,000 

Rent Rec. 4,800 (3,840) 960 

420.500 134.000 195,000 (1,500) (80) 2,000 270 (400) - - (270) (19.200) 730,320 
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4. Tabular Statement

Jan 

Feb 

March 

April 

May 

Aug 

Dec 

The financial position of Harris Ltd on 1/1/2006 is shown in the following Balance sheet: 

Fixed Assets 
Land & Buildings 
Vehicles 

Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors 
Advertising prepaid 

Balance Sheet as at 1/1/2006 

Less Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 
Creditors 
Bank Overdraft 
Wages due 

Net Current Assets 

Financed By 
Capital and Reserves 

Authorised - 765,000 Ordinary Shares@ €1 each 
Issued - 387,000 Ordinary Shares@ €1 each 
Share Premium 
Profit and Loss Balance 

The following transactions took place during 2006: 

53,820 
55,530 
1,350 

58,680 
9,090 
2,160 

Dep to date 
e 

12,420 
29,700 
� 

110,700 

(69,930) 

Net 
€ 

401,580 
38,700 

440,280 

40,770 
481.050 

387,000 
36,000 
58,050 

481.050 

On 1/1/2006 Harris Ltd re-valued Land and Buildings at €520,000. This valuation included land now 
valued at €80,000. 
On 1/2/2006 Harris Ltd bought an adjoining business which included buildings €300,000, Vehicles 
€50,000, Stock €20,000 and Creditors €30,000. The purchase price was discharged by granting the 
seller 290,000 shares in Harris Ltd at a premium of20c per share. 
Goods previously sold by Harris Ltd for €15,000 were returned. The selling price of these goods was 
cost plus 20%. Owing to a delay in returning these goods a credit note was issued showing a 
deduction of I 0% of invoice price as a restocking charge. 
A vehicle which cost €15,000 was traded in against a new vehicle costing €34,000. An allowance of 
€10,000 was made for the old van. Depreciation to date on the old van was €4,500. 
Received a bank statement on May 31 showing a direct debit of €3,000 to cover advertising for the 
year ended 31/5/2007 and a credit transfer received of€2,500 to cover 10 months rent in advance from 
May 1. 
A payment of €700 was received from a debtor whose debt had been previously written off and who 
now wishes to trade with Harris Ltd again. This represents 70% of the original debt and the debtor had 
undertaken to pay the remainder of the debt in February 2007. 
The Buildings depreciation charge for the year to be 2% of book value. The depreciation charge to be 
calculated from date of valuation and date of purchase. The total depreciation charge on vehicles for 
the year was €20,000. 

You are required to: 

Record on a tabular statement the effect each of the above transactions had on the relevant asset and liability and 
ascertain the total assets and liabilities on 31/12/2006. 

(60 marks) 
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Question 4 - solution 

Land & Buildings 
Depreciation 
Vehicles 
Depreciation 
Goodwill 
Stock 
Debtors 
Advertising prepaid 

Ordinary Shares 
Share Prem. 
P&L Bal 

Creditors 
Bank 
Wages due 
Revaluation Reserve 
Rent Rec. 

1/1/2006 Jan 

€ € 

414,000 106,001(12,420) 12,42 
68,400 

(29,700) 

53,820 

55,530 

1,350 

550,980 118,420 

387,000 

36,000 

58,050 

58,680 

9,090 

2,160 

118,420■

550,980 I 18,420 

Feb Mar Apr 
€ € € 

300,000■

so,ooo■ 19,0014,50 

8,0001 20,000 12,501(13,500 

378,000 (1000) 23,500

290,0001 58,000 

(1000)11 (500)■ 

30,000■
24,ooo■

378,000 (1000) 23,500 

8 

May Aug Dec 31/12/2006 
€ € € € 

820.000 
(14,300. (14,300) 

(20,000)■
137,400 

(45,200) 
8,000 

3,oooll 
300■

(3,100) 11 

86,320 

42,330 
1,25011

3,000 300 (37,400) 1,035,800 

677,000 

1,000■ (14,300 

94,000 

(20,000 

(3,100 

2,000■ 22,1sorl
88,680 

500■ (700)11 32,89011
2,160 

2,500■ (2,000}11 
118,420 

50011
3,000 300 (37,400) 1,035,800 
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2. Tabular Statement

The financial position of Yeats Ltd on 1/1/2008 is shown in the following balance sheet: 

Balance sheet as at 1/1/2008 

Cost Dep. Net 
to date 

Fixed Assets € € € 

Goodwill (cost €45,000) 35,000 
Land & buildings 660,000 52,800 607,200 
Delivery vans 80,000 32,000 48,000 

140,000 84.800 690,200 
Current Assets 

Stock 88,700 
Insurance prepaid 1,400 
Debtors 57,100 147,200 

Less Creditors: amount falling due within 1 year 
Creditors 79,600 
Bank 14,300 
Wages due 3,500 97.400 49,800 

140.0QQ 
Financed by 
Capital and Reserves 

Authorised- 800,000 ordinary shares @€1 each 
Issued 500,000 ordinary shares @ €1 each 500,000 
Share premium 100,000 
Profit and loss balance 140,000 740,000 

140,000 
The following transactions took place during 2008: 

Jan Yeats Ltd bought an adjoining business on l /l /2008 which included buildings €260,000, delivery 
vans €52,000 and creditors €38,000. The purchase price was discharged by granting the seller 
250,000 shares in Yeats Ltd at a premium 20c per share. 

Feb A creditor who was owed €8,800 by Yeats Ltd accepted a delivery van, the book value of which 
was €9,000, in full settlement of the debt. This delivery van had cost €14,000. 

March Received a bank statement on 1st March showing a direct debit of €9,600 to cover fire insurance 
for year ended 28/2/2009 and a credit transfer received of€7,700 to cover 11 months rent 
receivable in advance from March 1. 

April Yeats Ltd decided to re-value the land and buildings on 1/4/2008 at €970,000. The land element of 
the new value is €140,000. 

July A delivery van, which cost €15,000, was traded in against a new van costing €24,000. An 
allowance of €4,500 was made for the old van. Depreciation to date on the old van was€ 12,000. 

Aug A payment of€1,750 was received from J. O'Brien, a debtor, whose debt had been previously 
written off and who now wishes to trade with Yeats Ltd again. This represents 70% of the 
original debt and O'Brien had undertaken to pay the remainder of the debt in January 2009. On the 
same day goods valued at €500 were sold on credit to O'Brien. This is a mark-up of 25%. 

Dec Depreciation on buildings is charged at the rate of2% per annum of value at 1/4/2008. 
The depreciation charge for the year on delivery vans was €25,400. 

You are required to: 

Record on a tabular statement the effect each of the above transactions had on the relevant asset and 
liability and ascertain the total assets and liabilities on 31/12/2008. 

(60 marks) 1
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Question 2 

1/1/2008 January February March April July August Dec Dec Total 

Assets € € € € € € € € € 

Goodwill 35,000 26,000 61,000 

Land and Buildings 660,000 260,000 50,000 970,000 

Accumulated Depreciation (52,800) 52,800 (12,450) (12,450) 

Delivery Vans 80,000 52,000 (14,000) 9,000 127,000 

Accumulated Depreciation (32,000) 5,000 12,000 (25,400)1ll (40,400) 

Stock 88,700 (400) 88,300 

Debtors 57,100 1,250 58,350 

Insurance Ale (Prepaid) 1,400 9,600 (9,400) l ,600)lf

837,400 338,000 (9,000) 9,600 102,800 21,000 850 (37,850) (9,400) 1,253,400 

Liabilities 

Creditors 79,600 38,000 (8,800) 108,800 

Bank 14,300 1,900111 19,500 (1,750) 33,950 

Wages due 3,500 3,500 

Rent Receivable 7,700 (7,000) 700--.-

Share Capital 500,000 250,000 750,000 

Share Premium 100,000 50,000 150,000 

Revaluation Reserve 102,800 102,800 

Profit and Loss 140,000 (200) 1,500 2,6001Zl (37,850111 (2,400) [il 103,650111 

TOTAL 837,400 338,000 (9,000) 9,600 102,800 21,000 850 (37,850) (9,400) 1,253,400 

7 
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7. Tabular Statement

The financial position of Moore Ltd on 1/1/2010 is shown in the following Balance Sheet:

Balance Sheet as at 1/1/2010 

Fixed Assets 
Land & buildings 
Vehicles 
Equipment 

Current Assets 

Stock 
Debtors (less provision 5%) 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
Creditors 
Bank 
Expenses due 

Net Current Assets 

Financed by 
Capital and Reserves 

Cost 
€ 

550,000 
38,000 
10,000 

598.000 

80,000 
76,000 

65,000 
24,000 
2,500 

Authorised - 700,000 Ordinary Shares @€1 each 
Issued - 440,000 Ordinary Shares @€1 each 
Share premium 
Profit and Loss balance 

The following transactions took place during 2010: 

Dep. 
to date 

€ 
11,000 
20,000 

1,000 
� 

156,000 

91,500 

Net 

€ 
539,000 
18,000 
9,000 

566,000 

64,500 
630.500 

440,000 
20,000 

170,500 
630,500 

Jan. Moore Ltd decided to revalue land and buildings at €700,000 (which includes land 
valued at €90,000) on 1/1/2010. 

Feb. Moore Ltd bought an adjoining business on l /2/20 l O which included buildings €200,000, 
equipment €30,000, debtors €8,000 and creditors €40,000. The purchase price was discharged by 
granting the seller 180,000 shares in Moore Ltd at a premium of 20 cent per share. 

April Management decided that the provision for bad debts should be raised to 7% of debtors. 
May A vehicle which cost €25,000 was traded in against a new vehicle costing €35,000. An allowance 

of €20,000 was made for the old vehicle. Depreciation to date on the old vehicle was €5,500. 
June Received a bank statement on June 30 showing a credit transfer received of €4,500 to cover 

9 months rent in advance from June l and a direct debit of€1,500 to cover advertising for the year 
ended 31/3/2010. 

July A payment of€720 was received from J. Murphy, a debtor, whose debt had been previously 
written off and who wishes to trade with Moore Ltd again. This represents 80% of the original 
debt and the debtor had undertaken to pay the remainder of the debt by February 201 I. On the 
same day goods to the value of €440 were sold on credit to Murphy. 

Aug. Goods previously sold for €600 were returned. The selling price of these goods was cost plus 20%. 
A credit note was issued showing a deduction of 5% of the selling price as a restocking charge. 

Sept. A creditor, who was owed €800 by Moore Ltd, accepted equipment, the book value 
of which was €700, in full settlement of the debt. The equipment cost €1,200. 

Oct. Dividend of 5 cent per share was paid on all issued shares. 
Nov. Received €100,000 from the issue of the remaining shares. 
Dec. The buildings depreciation charge for the year is 3% of book value. The depreciation charge is to 

be calculated from the date of valuation and date of purchase. The total depreciation charge on 
vehicles for the year was €25,000. 

You are required to: 

Record on a tabular statement the effect each of the above transactions had on the relevant asset, liability 
and capital accounts and ascertain the total assets and liabilities on 31/12/2010. 

(100 marks) 
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Question 7  
1/1/2010 January February April May June July August ,eptember October November December Total 

Land & Buildings 550,000 150,000 200,000 900,00011 
L&B depreciation (11,000) 11,000 (23,800)111 (23,800) 
Vehicles 38,000 10,000 48,000 

Veh. depreciation (20,000) 5,500 (25,000)111 (39,500) 
Eouipment 10,000 30,000 (1,200) 111 38,800 
Eouip depreciation (1,000) 500111 (500) 
Goodwill 18,00011 18,000 
Stock 80,000 (440) 500 80,060 
Debtors 80,000 8,00011 180 (570) 

440 88,050 
Prov .for bad debts (4,000) (2,160). (6,160). 

Total Assets 722,000 161,000 256,000 (2,160) 15,500 
-

180 (70) (700) 
-

(48,800) 1,102,950 

Share Caoital 440,000 180,000 80,00011] 700,000 
Share Premium 20,000 36,000 20,000]1 76,00011 
P&L 170,500 (2,160) 11111 50011111 900 (70))1 100 '31,000))1 3,500 

(375) 
(25,000) 
(23,800) 93,09511 

Creditors 65,000 40,000 (800) 104,200 
Bank 24,000 15,000111 

(4,500)1 

(720). 31,00011 100,000) 11 (33,720) 111 
1,500 

Expenses (due) 2,500 (1,500) 3751 1,375 
Rent receivable 4,50011 (3,500) 1,00011 
Revaluation Res. 161,000 161,000 

Total Liabilities 722,000 161,000 256,000 (2,160) 15,500 
-

180 (70) (700) 
- -

(48,800) 1,102,950 
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3. Tabular Statement

The financial position of Cooper Ltd on l / l  /2012 is shown in the following balance sheet:

Balance sheet as at 1/1/2012 
Cost Dep. 

to date 
€ Intangible Fixed Assets € 

Goodwill (cost €65,000) ............................. .. 

Fixed Assets 
Land & buildings ........................................ .. 727,000 
Delivery vans ............................................... . 90,000 

817,000 

Current Assets 
Stock ........................................................... .. 
Debtors ...................................................... .. 

Less Creditors: amount falling due within 1 year 
Creditors ..................................................... . 
Bank ........................................................... .. 
Expenses due 

Financed by 
Capital and Reserves 

Authorised - 1,000,000 ordinary shares@ €1 each 
Issued - 600,000 ordinary shares @€1 each
Share premium ............................................ . 
Profit and loss balance ................................ . 

The following transactions took place during 2012: 

54,000 
40,000 

� 

91,600 
55,800 

75,400 
15,800 
4,200 

Net 

€ 

673,000 
50,000 

723.000 

147,400 

Total 

€ 
45,000 

723,000 

95,400 52,000 

600,000 
80,000 

140,000 

820.000 

820,000 

820.000 

Jan Cooper Ltd bought an adjoining business on 1/1/2012 which included buildings €350,000, 
delivery vans €70,000, stock €25,000 and creditors €30,000. The purchase price was 
discharged by granting the seller 380,000 shares at €1 each in Cooper Ltd at a premium of 20c 
per share. 

Feb A creditor who was owed €8,900 by Cooper Ltd accepted a delivery van, the book value of 
which was €9,500, in full settlement of the debt. This delivery van had cost €14,500. 

April Cooper Ltd decided to re-value the land and buildings on 1/4/2012 at €1,200,000. This 
valuation includes land now valued at €180,000. 

May Received a bank statement on May 31 showing a direct debit of €8,400 to cover advertising 
for year ended 31/08/2012 and a credit transfer received of€9,900 to cover 11 months rent 
receivable from 01/03/2012. 

June A delivery van, which cost €20,000, was traded in against a new van costing €30,000. An 
allowance of €5,500 was made for the old van. Depreciation to date on the old van was 
€17,000. 

Aug A payment of€2,400 was received from E. Galvin, a debtor, whose debt had been previously 
written off and who now wishes to trade with Cooper Ltd again. This represents 80% of the 
original debt and Galvin had undertaken to pay the remainder of the debt in January 2013. 
On the same day goods were sold on credit to Galvin for €450. This was a mark-up on cost 
of25%. 

Dec Depreciation on buildings is charged at the rate of2% per annum of value at 1/4/2012. 
The depreciation charge for the year on delivery vans was €28,000. 

Required: 
Record on a tabular statement the effect each of the above transactions had on the relevant asset and 
liability and ascertain the total assets and liabilities on 31/12/2012. 

(60 marks) 
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Question 3 

Assets 1/1/2012 Jan Feb Apr May June Aug Dec Dec 31/12/2012 

Goodwill 45, 000 41,000 II 86,000 

Land & Buildings 727,000 350,000 ■ . 123,000 ■ 1,200,000 

Depreciation (54,000) s4,ooo II (1s,300) 11 (15,300)■ 

Delivery Vans 90,000 70,000 ■ (14,500) 11 10,000 II 155,500 

Depreciation (40,000) s,ooo 11 17,000 IJ (28,000)■ (46,000) 

Stock 91,600 25,000 ■ (360)11 116,240 

Debtors 55,800 1,oso■ 56,850 

915,400 486,000 (9,500) 177,000 - 27,000 690 (43,300) - 1,553,290 

Liabilities 
\0 

Ord. shares 600,000 380,000 lfl 980,000

Share Premium 80,000 76,000 II 156,000

P & LBalance 140,000 (600) ■ 2,500 ■ 3,090 ■ 
(43,300) ■ (5,600)■ 

9,ooo■ 105,090■ 

Creditors 75,400 30,000 ■ (8,900) 11 96,500

Bank 
15,800 8,400■ 

24,500 11 (2,400)11 36,400■ 
(9,900)■ 

Expenses due 4,200 (8,400)11 5,600 11 1,400 ■ 

Revaluation Reserve 111,000■ 177,000 

Rent Receivable 9,900 11 (9,000)■ 900■ 

915,400 486,000 (9,500) 177,000 - 27,000 690 (43,300) - 1,553,290 

1

096



CASH FLOW STATEMENTS {100 mark type) 

Introduction 

The layout of cash flow statements has been changed in recent years and the new 

sample layout given below must be memorised before any of the workings are 

looked at. 

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities 

Operating Profit xxx 

Add depreciation charge xxx 

Add loss on disposal/ Less profit on xxx 

disposal 

Increase/ decrease in stock xxx 

Increase /decrease in debtors xxx 

Increase/ Decrease in creditors xxx 
-----

Net cash inflow from operating activities xxx 

Cash flow statement for year ending 31/12/05 

Operating Activities 

Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Return on Investment and servicing of finance 

Interest paid 

+ Investment Income

Taxation

-Corporation tax paid

Capital Expenditure and financial investment

Sale /Purchase of investments 

+Sale of fixed assets

-Purchase of fixed assets

Equity dividends 

-Dividends paid

Net cash outflow before financing

Financing

+ Receipt of debentures

-Issue of shares

+Share premium

Increase I Decrease in cash

There are normally marks allocated for the headings. 

In the sample question and solution we will look at the reconciliation of cash flow to 

movement in net debt which is used to BALANCE the question. 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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We will now look at a sample 100 marker; (a type that has not been asked since 

1998 ) with fully explained workings. 

Typical cash inflows 

Profits 

Decrease of stock 

Decrease in debtors 

Increase in Creditors 

Interest received 

Dividends received 

Sale of fixed assets 

Issue of shares 

Loans received 

Tax refund 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

Typical cash outflows 

Losses 

Increase of stock 

Increase in debtors 

Decrease in Creditors 

Interest Paid 

Dividends Paid 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Drawings (rare) 

Loans repaid 

Tax Paid 
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Sample Cash flow statement 

The following are the balance sheets of Knock pie as at 31/12/03 and 31/12/04 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/04 

Fixed Assets € € € 

Cost 570 540 

less Acc. Depreciation (115) 455 (130) 

Investments 50 

Current assets 

Stock 375 345 

Debtors 163 121 

538 466 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 yr 

Trade creditors 192 210 

Bank 96 37 

Taxation 45 33 

Dividends 42 71 

(375} (351) 

Net current assets 

Financed by 

Creditors amounts falling due after 1 year 

10% debentures 

Capital & Reserves 

Issued share capital 

€1 ordinary shares 

Share premium 

Profit & loss account 

NOTE Balance Sheet is in 000 s

The following information is also available 

200 

350 

20 

98 

a) 100,000 shares were issued at €1.20 per share

163 

668 

120 

250 

155 

668 

b) Fixed assets which had cost €100,000 and on which total depreciation of

€40,000 had been provided were sold for €55,000

c) Debentures were received on 1/1/04

d) Dividends due and taxation due at 31/12/03 were paid. An interim

dividend of €20,000 was paid during the year.

You are required to 

Prepare an abridged Profit and loss Account to ascertain the 

operating profit for the year ended 31/12/04.(25) 

Reconcile the operating profit to net cash inflow from operating 

activities.(30} 

To prepare the cash flow statement of Knock pie from the year ended 

31/12/04.(35) 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

31/12/03 

€ 

410 

115 

525 

525 
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Give two reasons why profit and cash are not the same.(10) 

Suggested solution with explanations. 

Abridged Profit and loss account for year ended 31/12/04 

1. Operating Profit 70 

2. Less interest (20) 

3. Profit before tax 50 

4. Taxation (45) 

5. Profit after tax 5 

6. Dividends {62) 

7. Retained earnings for the year (57) 

8. Retained Earnings at 1/1/04 155 

9. Retained Earnings at 31/12/04 98 

Explanation of abridged profit and loss 

This is prepared from bottom to top as we are looking for the missing figure which is 

the operating profit. 

At step 9 we use the closing P and L figure from the 2004 Balance Sheet 

At step 8 we use the closing P and L figure from the 2003 Balance Sheet 

At step 7 we can work out the Retained Earnings figure for 2004 as it is the 

difference between the 2003 and 2004 balances 

In this case we have a negative figure (loss) of 57 based on (155 - 98} 

At step 6 we must work out the dividends figure that SHOULD have been paid in 

2004 (P&L figure) 

At the end of 2003 according to the balance sheet, we owed 71, but they are from 

the year 2003 and do not appear in 2004' s P & L 

The question tells us that outstanding dividends at end of 2003 were PAID. As the 71 

was paid then the balance owed would be zero. 

Why then do we have a balance at the end of 2004 of 42 ? 

This represents the PROPOSED amount for THIS year and therefore goes into our P & 

L 

What about the Interim dividend? 

An Interim dividend of 20 was PAID during 2004 for THIS YEAR. 

Our P & L entry is the PROPOSED of 42 and the PAID of 20 as both figures are for 

THIS year. 

This gives the figure of 62 

At step 5 we can work out the Profit after tax figure by asking which figure MINUS 62 

gives a MINUS 57 and the answer is 5 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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At step 4 we have to work out the Taxation figure that SHOULD have been paid 

during the year (2004) 

At the end of 2003 according to the balance sheet, we owed 33, but they are from 

the year 2003 and do not appear in 2004's P & L 

The question tells us that outstanding Taxation at end of 2003 was PAID. As the 33 

was paid then the balance owed would be zero. 

Why then do we have a balance at the end of 2004 of 45? 

This represents the amount for THIS year and therefore goes into our P & L 

At step 3 we can work out the Profit before tax figure by asking which figure MINUS 

45 gives 5 and the answer is 50 

At step 2 we must calculate the Debenture interest for THIS YEAR. 

We are told that the new debentures arrived on 1-1-04 and this is significant as it 

means that they are for a FULL YEAR 

Existing debentures 120 x 10% =12 

New debentures (1-1-04} 80 x 10% = 8 

12 + 8 = 20 

At step 1 we can work out the Operating profit figure by asking which figure MINUS 

20 gives 50 and the answer is 70 

We will now look at the fixed assets and the disposal adjustment 

Fixed Assets a/c 

1-1-04 Balance b/d

Bank

540 Disposal (step one) 

130 31-12-04 Balance 

c/d 

670 

In part b of the adjustments we are told that Fixed assets which had cost 

€100,000 and on which total depreciation of €40,000 had been provided were 

sold for €55,000 

100 

570 

670 

We now take them out of the assets at COST and transfer them to the disposal 

account 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Disposal (step 2) 
31-12-04 Balance
c/d 

Accumulated Depreciation a/c 
40 1-1-04 Balance b/d

115 31-12-04 P &L 

155 

We then remove the depreciation to date of 40 on the sold item 

We then record the proceeds of the transaction of 55 

We now look for the profit or loss on the sale. 
As the assets cost 100 and were depreciated by 40, they had a net value of 60.
We sold them for 55 and made a loss of 5 

130 
25 

155 

We finish off these workings by filling the missing pieces in the Fixed Assets A/C. As
the opening balance was 540 and we removed 100 (disposal) we are left with 440 
and yet we are told in the balance sheet that the final figure is 570. 
In the absence of any Revaluation we must have bought new fixed assets of (570-
440) = 130 

As the opening balance was 130 and we removed 40 (disposal) we are left with 90
and yet we are told in the balance sheet that the final figure is 115 
The explanation is depreciation charge for the year of (125-90) = 25 

Fixed assets (step 1) 
Disposal a/c 

100 Disposal (step2}
Bank (step 3) 
LOSS 

Bank a/c 

40
55 
5 

Disposal (step 3} 55 I Fixed asset 130 

At this stage we are able to prepare the reconciliation and the cash flow 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities 

10. Operating Profit
11. Add depreciation charge
12. Add loss on disposal
13. Increase in stock

14. Increase in debtors
15. Decrease in creditors

16. Net cash inflow from operating
activities 

70 

25 
5 

(30) 

(42) 
(18) 

10 

The operating profit at line 10 was calculated in the Abridged Profit and Loss 

The Depreciation figure at line 9 was calculated earlier and is added back as it is a 
non- cash item which drags down our profit position but it does not affect cash 

Line 12 shows our loss on disposal and this is added back as it was included in 

operating expenses already 

Line 13 is the difference between opening and closing stock and as stock has 
increased the idea is that cash flows from the business. 

Line 14 shows an increase in debtors which is a use of cash 

Line 15 shows a decrease in creditors which is a use of cash as we paid them. 

cash flow statement for year ending 31/12/04 

Operating Activities 

16 Net cash inflow from operating activities 
Return on Investment and servicing of finance 

17 Interest paid 
Taxation 

18 Corporation tax 
Capital Expenditure and financial investment 

19 Purchase of investments 

20 Sale of fixed assets 

21 Purchase of fixed assets 

Equity dividends 

22 Dividends paid 

Net cash outflow before financing 
Financing 

23 Receipt of debentures 

24 Issue of shares 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

10 

{20) 

(33) 

(50) 
55 

{130) (125) 

(91) 

(259} 

80 

100 
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25 Share premium 

Decrease in cash 

Line 17 shows the interest that we calculated earlier. 

20 

We know that it is all PAID as there is none DUE at the end of 2004 

Line 18 shows the tax that was PAID 

(200) 

(59) 

Line 19 shows a purchase of investments (none at 1-1-04 and 50 at 31-12-04) 

Line 20 shows step three of disposal and the cash inflow of 55 (proceeds) 

Line 21 is the purchase of fixed assets which was explained earlier 

Line 22 shows dividends that were actually PAID 

Line 23 represents the debenture loan received on 1-1-04 (200-120) 

Lines 24 and 25 show the issue of shares at a premium and are a cash inflow 

We can prove our answer by using a reconciliation of cashflow to movement in net 

debt statement. 

Reconciliation of cashflow to movement in net debt at 31-12-04 

Decrease in cash 59 

Add debenture loan received 80 

Change in net debt (139) 

Net debt at 1-1-04 (37 +120) (157) 

Net debt at 31-12-04 (96 +200) {296) 

Explanation 

This means that cash decreased by 59 but that was after borrowing 80, therefore the 

real decrease was 139 

Net debt refers to cash and bank balances versus debenture loans. 

At 1-1-04 we had an overdraft of 37 and debentures of 120 
At 31-12-04 we had an overdraft of 96 and debentures of 200 

The difference between 157 and 296 is a change in net debt of 139 

2 reasons why cash and profit are not the same 

Items like depreciation and changes in the bad debt provision affect our profit 

position but not our cash position. 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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3. Cash Flow Statement

The foJlowing are the Balance Sheets of Butler Plc as at 31/12/2004 and 31/12/2005, together with an
abridged Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31/12/2005:

Abridged Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2005 
Operating profit 
Interest for year 
Profit before taxation 
Taxation for year 
Profit after taxation 
Dividends - Interim 

- Proposed
Retained profits for the year 
Retained profits on l/12/2005 
Retained profits on 31/12/2005 

Balance Sheets as at 
Fixed Assets 

Land and buildings at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Machinery at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Financial Assets 
Quoted investments 

Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors 
Government securities 
Bank 
Cash 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 
I year 

Trade creditors 
Interest due 
Taxation 
Dividends 
Bank 

Net Current Assets 

Financed by 

31/12/2005 
€ € 

825,000 
(95,000) 730,000 
400,000 

(202,000) 198,000 
928,000 

130,000 

220,000 
200,000 
12,000 

2,000 
434,000 

250,000 
1,200 

50,000 
45,000 
6.800 

(353.000) 
81,000 

1.1:12.000 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than 1 year 
9% Debentures 75,000 

Capital and Reserves 
€1 Ordinary shares 830,000 
Share premium 22,000 
Profit and loss account 212,000 1,064,000 

1,1321000 

The following infonnation is also available: 

€ 
140,000 

(IJl00) 
132,000 
(45.000) 
87,000 

21,000 
45.000 (66.000) 

21,000 
191,000 
21z,ooo 

31/12/2004 
€ € 

750,000 
(80.000) 670,000 
470,000 

(180,000) 290.000 
960,000 

100,000 

205,000 
190,000 

10,000 
1,000 

406,000 

228,000 

43,000 
34,000 

(305,000) 
101,000 

11161,UOO 

180,000 

790,000 

191.000 981,000 
1,161.000 

1 There were no disposals of Buildings during the year but new Buildings were acquired. 
2 There were no purchases of Machinery during the year. Machinery was disposed of for €35,000. 
3 Depreciation charged for the year on Machinery in arriving at the Operating profit was €60,000. 

You are required to: 
(a) Pregare the Cash Flow Statement of Butler Pie for the year ended 31/12/2005 including 

Reconciliation Statement(s). (48) 
(8) 
(4) 

(60marks) 

{b) Explain why Cash Flow Statements are prepared. 
(c) Identify a Non Cash expense and a Non Cash gain.

1 1
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Oaestion 3 

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities

Operating profit
Depreciation charges for the year
Profit on sale of machinery 
Increase in stock 
Increase in debtors 
Increase in creditors 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Cash Flow Statement of Butler Pie for the year ended 31/12/2005 

Operating Activities 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Returns on investments and servicing of finance 
Interest paid 

Taxation 
Corporation tax paid 

Capital expenditure and financial investment 
Investments 
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets 
Receipts from sale of fixed assets 

Equity dividends paid 
Dividends paid during the year 
Net cash inflow before liquid resources and financing 

Management of Liquid Resources 
Purchase of Government securities 

Financing 
Repayment of debentures 
Receipts from issue of shares 
Receipts from share premium 
Decrease in cash 

(30,000) 
(75,000) 

35,000

(105.000) 
40,000 

22,000 

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt 
Decrease in cash during period 
Cash used to purchase Government securities 
Cash used to purchase debentures 
Change in net debt 
Net debt at 1/1/2005 
Net debt at 31/12 2005 

€ 
140,000 
75,000 
(3,000) 

(15,000) 
(10,000) 

22.000

209,000 

€ 

209,000 ■

(6,800) ■ 

(38,000) ■ 

(70,000) 

(55,000) ■ 
39,200 

(12,000) ■ 

(43,000) 
■ {15800}

(15,800) ■ 
12,000 

105.000

I101,200 
(169,000 
(67,800) ■ 
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6. 

2..003 
Casb Flow Statement 

The following are the Balance Sheets of Hayes Plc as at 31/12/2006 and 31/12/2007. 

Balance Sheets as at 31/12/2007 31/12/2006 

Fixed Assets € 
Cost 620,000 
Less accumulated depreciation (220,000) 

Financial Assets 
Investments at cost 

Current Assets 
Stocks 360,000 
Debtors 170,000 
Government Securities 70,000 
Cash 50.000 

650,000 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
Trade creditors 214,000 
Bank 20,000 
Taxation 48.000 

282,000 

Financed by 
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 

10% Debentures 
Capital and Reserves 

Ordinary shares@€1 each 290,000 
Share premium 18,000 
Profit and Loss account 490,000 

The following information is also available: 

(i) 60,000 shares were issued at€1.30 per share.

€ € € 
490,000 

400,000 (100,000} 390,000 

200,000 300,000 

252,000 
110,000 

70,000 
432,000 

247,000 
34,000 
39,000 

368,000 320,000 112,000 
968,000 802.000 

170,000 120,000 

230,000 
------

798,000 452,000 682,000 
968,000 802,000 

(ii) Fixed assets, which cost €60,000 and on which total depreciation of €30,000 had been

(iii) 
(iv) 

(v) 
(vi) 

provided, were sold for €40,000.
€50,000 Debentures were issued on 1/1/2007.
Dividends paid during the year amounted to €54,000.
Taxation charge on profits for year 2007 was €60,000.
Investments which cost €100,000 were sold for cash at their book value.

You are required to: 

(a) (i) Prepare an Abridged Profit & Loss account to ascertain the operating profit for the year (85) 
ending 31/12/2007 

(ii) Prepare the Cash Flow statement for Hayes Pie for the year ending 31/12/2007,
including Reconciliation statements.

(b) (i) Explain why earning profit does not always result in a corresponding increase in 
cash balances. 

(ii) Write a note on the Accounting Standards Board. In your answer refer to the main
activity of the Board and how it has influenced the preparation of Cash Flow statements. (15) 

(100 marks) 

-
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Ouestion6 

Abridged Profit and Loss account for the year ending 31/12/2007 

Operating profit 
Less interest 
Profit before tax 
Taxation 
Profit after tax 
Dividends paid 
Retained profit 
Profit and Joss balance 1/1/2007 
Profit and loss balance 31/12/2007 

169,000 
(17,000) ■ 
152,000 
(60,000) ■ 

92,000 
(54,000) ■ 

38,000 
452.000 

I 490.000 

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities 

Operating profit 
Depreciation charge for the year 
Profit on saJe of fixed assets 
Increase in stock 
Increase in debtors 
Decrease in creditors 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 

WI 
W2 

€ 

169,000 
150,000 
(10,000) 

(108,000) 
(60,000) 
(33,000) 
108.000 

Cash Flow statement of Hayes PLC for the year ended 31/12/2007 
€ 

Operating Activities 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Return on Investments and Servicing of Finance ■ 
Interest paid 

Taxation ■ 
Tax paid W3 

Capital Expenditure and Financial investment ■ 
Sale of fixed assets 
Purchase of fixed assets 
Sale of investments 

Equity Dividends paid II 
Dividends paid 
Net cash outflow before liquid resources and financing 

Management of Liquid Resources ■ 
Government securities 

Financing ■ 
Issue of Debentures 
Issue of ordinary shares 
Share premium 
Decrease in Cash 

40,000

(190,000) 
100.000 

50,000

60,000

18,000 

€ 

1os.ooo 11 

(17,000) ■ 

(51,000) 111 

(50,000) 

(54.000) 1\1 
(64,000) 

(70,000) (lj 

128,000

(6,000) Ill 
1
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Reconciliation of net cash to movement in net debt 

Decrease in cash 
Cash used to purchase liquid resources 
Cash received from issue of debentures 
Change in net debt 
Net debt at 1/1/2007 
Net debt at 31/12/2007 

(b) 

(i) •
Credit sales/purchases affect profit but do not affect cash.
Non-cash losses and gains affect profit but not cash.

€ 
(6,000) 
70,000 

(50,000) 
14,000 

(70,000}
(84.000) 

  

Purchase and sale of fixed assets by cash affect cash but not profit.
Introduction or withdrawal of capital in cash affect cash but not profit.

(ii) ■
Tile Accounting Standards Board issues new accounting standards called Financial
Reporting Standards (FRS). lt also amends and withdraws old accounting standards.

FRS 1, which was issued by the ASB in 1991 and revised in 1996 requires large companies
to prepare a Cash Flow Statement for each activity period.
It requires that individual cash flows should be entered under standard headings according to the
activity that gives rise to them.

Workings 

1. Depreciation
2. Profit on disposal
3. Taxation

100,000 - 30,000 - 220,000 = 
60,000 - 30,000 - 40,000 = 
39,000 + 60,000 - 48,000 = 

150,000 

10,000 
51,000 

1
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2. Cash Flow Statement

The following are the Balance Sheets of Norris pie as at 3 l /12/2008 and 31/12/2009 together with an
abridged Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31/12/2009.

Abridged Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2009

Operating Profit 
Interest for the year 
Profit before taxation 
Taxation for the year 
Profit after taxation 
Dividends paid 
Retained profits for the year 
Retained profits on 01/01/2009 
Retained profits on 31 /I 2/2009 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2009 

Fixed Assets € € 
800,000 Land and Buildings at cost 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Machinery at cost 

(60,000) 740,000 
380,000 

Less accumulated depreciation (200,000) 180,000 

Financial Assets 
Quoted Investments 

Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors 
Government Securities 
Bank 
Cash 

212,000 
188,000 
15,000 

3,000 
418,000 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
Trade creditors 280,000 
Interest due 5,000 
Taxation 45,000 
Bd t� 

(339,000) 
Net Current Assets 

Financed by 
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than 1 year 

10% Debentures 
Capital and Reserves 

Ordinary Shares at €1 each 
Share Premium 
Profit and loss account 

The following information is also available: 

680,000 
3,000 

236.000 

920,000 

60,000 

79,000 
1,059.000 

140,000 

919.000 
1,059.000 

€ 
179,000 
(18,000) 
161,000 
(43,000) 
118,000 
(64,000) 
54,000 

182,000 
236.000 

31/12/2008 

€ € 

725,000 
(50,000) 675,000 
450,000 

(175,000) 275.000 
950,000 

25,000 

194,000 
180,000 

6,000 
2.000 

382,000 

255,000 

40,000 

(295,000) 
87,000 

1.062,000 

220,000 

660,000 

182.000 842,000 
1,062,000 

I. There were no disposals of buildings during the year but new buildings were acquired.
2. There were no purchases of machinery during the year. Machinery was disposed of for €30,000.
3. Depreciation charged for the year on Machinery in arriving at the operating profit was €55,000.

You are required to: 
(a) Prepare the Cash Flow Statement of Norris pie for the year ended 31/12/2009 including

Reconciliation Statements. ( 48) 
(b) (i) Outline the benefits of preparing a Cash Flow Statement.

(ii) Distinguish between a cash expense and a non cash expense. (12) 

(60 marks) 1
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Question 2 

(a) 

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities 

Operating Profit 
Depreciation charge for the year 
Loss on sale of machinery 
Increase in Stock 
Increase in Debtors 
Increase in Creditors 
Net Cash inflow from operating activities 

€ 
179,000

65,000 

10,000 

(18,000) 
(8,000) 
25,000

253.000 

Cash flow Statement of Norris Pie for the year ended 31/12/2009 

Operating activities 

Net Cash Inflow from operating activities 

Return on investments and servicing of finance ID 
Interest paid 

Taxation 

Corporation Tax paid 

Capital expenditure and financial investment • 
Investments 

Payment to acquire tangible fixed assets 
Receipts from sale of fixed assets 

Equity dividends paid ■ 
Dividends paid during the year 
Net Cash inflow before Liquid Resources and Financing 

Management of liquid resources ■ 
Purchase of Government Securities 

Financing 
Repayment of Debentures 
Receipt from Issue of Shares 
Receipt from Share Premium 
Decrease in cash 

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt 

Decrease in Cash during the period 

Cash used to purchase liquid resources 
Cash used to repurchase of debenture loan 
Change in Net Debt 
Net Debt 1/1/2009 
Net Debt 31/12/2009 

€ 

(3s,ooo) 11 
(75,000) 

I30,000 

(80,000) 
20,000 
3,000

€ 

253,000 II 

(13,ooo> 11 

(3s,ooo> 11 

(80,000) 

(64,000) ■ 
58,000 

(15,000) ■ 

(57,000} 
(14,000) ■ 

(14,000) ■ 

15,000 ■ 
80,000 

81,000 

(212,000) 

I(131,000) 

1
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Question 2 - continued. 

(b) (I
It shows the cash inflows and outflows during the past year
It shows that profits do not always equal cash
It aids financial planning/ it is used to predict future cash flows
It provides information to assess current liquidity

Cash expense - reduces both profit and cash e.g. wages 
Non-cash expense - reduces profit but not cash e.g. depreciation, provision for bad debts 

Workings 

Depreciation 
Depreciation on Machinery 55,000 
Depreciation on Buildings 10.000 
Depreciation for the year 65,000 

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 
Cost of machine disposed 70,000 
Depreciation on disposed machine 30,000 
Book value 40,000 
Less depreciation on disposal 30.000 
Loss on disposal 10,000 

Taxation 
Taxation due 31/12/2008 40,000 
Taxation for year 2009 43.000 

83,000 
Less taxation due 31/12/2009 (45,000) 38,000 

Interest 
Interest for year 2009 18,000 
Less interest due 3 I /12/2009 (5,000) 13,000 

1
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7. Cash Flow Statement

The following are the Balance Sheets of Danton pie as at 31/12/2010 and 31/12/2011: 

Balance Sheets as at 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 

Fixed Assets € € 

Land & buildings 850,000 
Less accumulated depreciation (120,000} 730,000 
Machinery 349,000 
Less accumulated depreciation (225,000) 124,000 

854,000 
Financial Assets 

Quoted investments 60,000 

Current Assets 
Stocks 111,000 
Debtors 380,000 
Government securities 60,000 
Bank 75,000 
Investment income due 3,000 

629,000 
Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 

Trade creditors 107,000 
Corporation tax 110,000 
Interest due 10,000 

227,000 402,000 
1!316!Q0Q 

Financed by 
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 

10% Debentures 
(€50,000 redeemed on 31/12/2011) 200,000 

Capital and Reserves 
Ordinary shares @€1 each 800,000 
Share premium 120,000 
Profit and Loss account 196,000 1,116,000 

1!316,QQQ 

The following information is also available for the year 2011: 

(i) Buildings, which cost €90,000 were disposed of at a profit of €13,000.
(ii) There were no disposals of machinery during the year.
(iii) The quoted investments yield a fixed return of 5% per annum.
(iv) The total dividend for the year was Sc per share.

€ € 
780,000 

(110,000) 670,000 
230,000 

(165,000) 65,000 
735,000 

60,000 

135,000 
180,000 

22,000 
2,000 

339,000 

93,000 
45,000 
15,000 

153,000 186,000 
281!000 

250,000 

600,000 
100,000 
31,000 731,000 

281,0QQ 

(v) Depreciation charged for the year in arriving at operating profit included €12,000 on buildings.
(vi) Corporation tax due at 31/12/2010 was paid in full.

You are required to: 

(a) (i) Prepare an Abridged Profit & Loss account to ascertain the operating profit for 
the year ending 3 l / 12/20 I I. 

(ii) Prepare the Cash Flow statement for Danton pie for the year ending
31112/2011, including Reconciliation Statements. (88) 

(b) (i) Explain why earning profit does not always result in a corresponding increase
in cash balances. Use figures from this question to support your answer.

(ii) Outline two responsibilities of the Directors of a plc. (12) 

(100 marks) 

1
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Question 7 

(a) 

(i) Abridged Profit and Loss account for the year ending 31/12/2011

Operating profit
Investment Income
Less debenture interest
Profit before tax
Taxation
Profit after tax
Dividends
Retained profit
Profit and loss balance O l/0 l/2011
Profit and I oss balance 31/12/2011

€ 
337,000 

3,000 

(25,000) 
315,000 

(110,000) 11 
205,000 

(40,000) 11 
165,000

31,000  ]96.000 

(ii) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities

Operating profit 
Depreciation charge for the year WI
Profit on sale of buildings 
Decrease in stock 
Increase in debtors 
Increase in creditors 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Cash Flow statement of Danton pie for the year ended 31/12/2011 
Operating Activities € 

Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Return on Investment and Servicing of Finance ■ 
Investment income received 
Interest on debentures paid 

Taxation ■ 
Tax paid W3 

Capital expenditure and financial investment ■ 
Receipts from sale of buildings W4 
Payments to acquire buildings W5 
Payments to acquire machinery W6 

Equity dividends paid ■ 
Dividends paid 

2,000 I (30,000) 

101.000

I(160,000) 
(119,000) 

Net cash outflow before liquid resources and financing 

Management of liquid resources ■ 
Purchase of government securities 

Financing ■ 
Repayment of debentures 
Receipts from the issue of ordinary shares 
Receipts from share premium 

Increase in Cash 

(50,000)
1 200,000 

20,000 

€ 
337,000 

72,000 

(13,000) 
24,000 

(200,000) 
14,000

234.000 

€ 
234,ooo II 

(28,000) 

(45,000)■ 

(178,000) 

(40,000)■ 
(57,000) 

(60,000)■ 

170.000 

�-

1

117



(b) 

Reconciliation of net cash to movement in net debt 

Increase in cash Cash used to purchase liquid resourcesRepurchase of debentures Change in net debt Net debt at 01/01/2011 Net debt at 31/1/2/2011

€53.000 

I 60,000 50,000 163,000 (228,000)1(65.000) 

Workings 

1. Depreciation
2. Investment income
3. Taxation
4. Sale of buildings

Depreciation on disposed building
5. Purchase of buildings
6. Purchase of machinery

(i) 

225,000 - 165,000 + 12,000

2000 + 3000 3000 

110,000 + 45,000 - 110,000

90,000 + 13,000 - 2,000(dep) 
110,000 + 12,000 - 120,000 

850,000 - [780,000 - 90,000] 
349,000 230,000 = 

Danton pie's Profit and Loss ale and Cash Flow Statement show that an operating 
profit of €337,000 was made but the increase in cash for the year was €53,000. 
Reasons: Credit sales earn profit but do not increase cash. Debtors increased by €200,000 

Non-cash gains/losses increase/decrease profit but not cash. Profit on sale ofbuildings/ depreciation €13,000/€72,000. 

72,000 

2,000 

45,000

101,000

2,000 

160,000

119,000

Sale/Purchase of fixed assets Increase/decrease cash but not profit. Receipts €101,000, 
Payments €160,000 and €119,000 

(ii) 

Introduction/withdrawal of capital increases/decreases cash but not profit.Receipts €220,000, payments €50,000 

Responsibility of Directors To comply with the Companies Acts To keep proper accounting records enabling financial statements to be prepared
Prepare annual financial statementsSelect suitable accounting policies Sign financial statements 
Safeguard the assets of the company Publish Final Accounts and Cash Flow Statement at least once a yearPresent an Annual Report to shareholders at AGM to include: Directors' report Auditor's Report 

Financial Statements 

1
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2. Cash Flow Statement

The following are the Balance Sheets of Doyle pie as at 31/12/2013 and 31/12/2012 together with an
abridged Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2013.

Abridged Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2013 
Operating Profit 
Interest for the year 
Profit before taxation 
Taxation for the year 
Profit after taxation 
Dividends paid 
Retained profits for the year 
Retained profits on 01/12/2013 
Retained profits on 31/12/2013 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2013 

Fixed Assets 
Land and Buildings at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Machinery at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Financial Assets 
Quoted Investments at cost 
Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors 
Government Securities 
Bank 
Cash 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 

Trade creditors 
Interest due 
Taxation 
Bank 

Net Current Assets 

Financed by 

900,000 
(70,000) 
420,000 

(270,000) 

215,000 
178,000 
20,000 

4,000 
417,000 

290,000 
3,000 

80,000 
6,000 

(379,000) 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than 1 year 

10% Debentures 
Capital and Reserves 
Ordinary Shares @ € l each 
Share Premium 
Profit and Loss account 

The following information is also available: 

690,000 
4,000 

214,000 

830,000 

150,000 
980,000 

50,000 

38,000 
1,068.000 

160,000 

908,000 
1,068.000 

€ 
185,000 
(16,000) 
169,000 
(45,000) 
124,000 
(60,000) 
64,000 

150,000 
214.000 

31/12/2012 

825,000 
(50,000) 
495,000 

{250,000) 

192,000 
170,000 

5,000 
3,000 

370,000 

285,000 

75,000 

(360,000) 

670,000 

150,000 

775,000 

245,000 
1,020,000 

30,000 

10,000 
1,060,000 

240,000 

820,000 
1,060.000 

I. There were no disposals of buildings during the year but new buildings were acquired.
2. There were no purchases of machinery during the year. Machinery was disposed of for €30,000.
3. Depreciation charged for the year on machinery in arriving at the operating profit was €40,000.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare the Cash Flow Statement of Doyle plc for the year ended 31/12/2013 including
Reconciliation Statement(s). (51) 

(b) (i) Explain the reasons why Doyle plc, who has an operating profit of €185,000, has 
generated a greater net cash inflow from operating activities. 

(ii) List three accounting obligations of a large public company under the Companies Act. (9) 
(60marks) 

1
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Question 2 

(a) 

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities 

Operating Profit 
Depreciation charge for the year 
Loss on sale of machinery 
Increase in stock 
Increase in debtors 
Increase in creditors 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 

€ 
185,000

60,000 

25,000 

(23,000) 
(8,000) 
5,000 

244,000 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT of Doyle pie for the year ended 31/12/2013 
€ € 

Operating activities 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Returns on investments and servicing of finance ■ 
Interest on debentures paid 

Taxation 
Corporation tax paid 

Capital expenditure and financial investment ■ 
Investments 
Payment to acquire tangible fixed assets 
Receipts from sale of fixed assets 

Equity dividends paid ■ 
Dividends paid during the year 

Net cash inflow before liquid resources and financing 
Management of liquid resources ■ 

Purchase of Government Securities 
Financing 

Repayment of debentures 
Receipt from issue of shares 
Receipt from share premium 

Decrease in cash 

■ 

(20,000)
1.·(75,000) 

30.000 

(80,000)
1 20,000 

4,000

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt 
Decrease in cash during the period 
Cash used to purchase Government Securities 
Cash used to purchase debentures 
Change in net debt 
Net debt 1/1/2013 
Net debt 31/12/2013 

244,000

(13,000)■ 

(40,000) llf 

(65,000) 

(60,000)166,000

(20,000) ■ 

(56,000) 
no.oomil 

(10,000)
1 20,000 

80,000

90,000

(232,000)1(142.000) 

1
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(b) 

(i) rm

Doyle plc has generated €59,000 [€244,000 - €185,000] more cash inflow during the year
because:
Depreciation €60,000 and loss on sale of machinery €25,000 reduce profit but had no affect on
cash inflow.
An increase in creditors during the year increases cash inflow by €5,000 but has nil affect on
profit
The increase in debtors and stock during the year of €8,000 and €23,000 respectively also
contributed to a reduction in net cash inflow but have no effect on profits.

en> Ill 

Accounting Obligations of a large public company 
Provide a full set of accounts, balance sheet and a cash flow statement to shareholders at AGM 
File/register a full set of accounts and balance sheet with the registrar of companies 
Provide explanatory notes to these accounts 
Must have its accounts audited 
They must also present an annual report to the company shareholders at its AGM. This report 
should include a director's report, an auditor's report as well as the published accounts. 

Question 2 - workings 

Depreciation 
Depreciation provision on machinery 1/1/2013 
Add Depreciation charge for the year on machinery 

Less Depreciation provision on machinery 31/12/2013 
Depreciation on disposed machine 

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 
Cost of machine disposed - [495,000 - 420,000] 
Depreciation on disposed machine 
Book value 
Less receipts from sale 
Loss on disposal 

Taxation 
Taxation due 31/12/2012 
Taxation for year 2013 

Less taxation due 31/12/2013 
Tax paid 

Interest 
Interest due 3 l / 12/2012 
Interest for year 2013 

Less interest due 31/12/2013 
Interest paid 

250,000 
40,000 

290,000 
270.000 
� 

75,000 
20,000 
55,000 
30,000 

(25.000) 

75,000 
45,000 

120,000 
(80,000) 
� 

16,000 
16,000 
(3,000) 
� 

I 
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CORRECTION OF ERRORS 

This article looks at one of the core topics of double entry which is often ignored by 

students but not by examiners. Here, we will cover the basic rules needed and then 

we will use these rules on the 100 mark question 7 from 2004. 

A suspense account is used only when the trial balance has failed to balance. There 

are several reasons why but we will look at a simple system based on the original 

debit entry and the original credit entry. Any imbalance between debit and credit 

will mean that suspense is used. 

We will use the following steps when dealing with the standard 5 error type question 

asked at higher level. 

1 Put in the original entries into the original accounts and put the entries into boxes. 

2 Put in the correct entries into the correct accounts 

3 Correct the mistake 

We will apply these rules later in the S. Craddock question 

S. Craddock is a furniture dealer and this is important when it comes to trading in

goods (furniture) as opposed to buying and selling fixed assets

The 3 basic bookkeeping principles from first year are essential when dealing with 

double entry 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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7. Corrtttion of en'Or.i and suspense account

The Trial Balance of S. Craddock, a furniture and carpet trader, failed to agree on 3 l/1212003. The
difference was entered in a Suspense Account and the following Balance Sheet was prepared.

Balance Sheet as at 31/l2/Z003 
Fixed Assets € € 

Premises 650,000 
Fixtures & fittings 72.000 722,000 

CutTE'nt Assets 
Stock (including suspense) 88,600 
Debtors 33,300 
Cash 400 

122,300 
Less: Current Liabilities 

Creditors 52,000 
Bank 27.000 79.000 43.300 

:Z!2j 300 
Financed by: 

Capital 730,000 
Add: Net profit 63.300 

793,300 
Less: Drawings 28,000 765300 

76S 300 

On checking the books, the following errors were discovered: 

(i) Furniture, purchased on credit from J. Dolan fut-€16,500, had been entered as €6,500 on the
incorrect side of Dolan' s account and credited as €1,650 in the Fixtures & Fittings account

(ii) A debtoJ- who owed Craddock €900 sent a cheque for €750 and €100 in cash in full settlement
This was correctly recorded in the books. Ho,,tever,no entry had been made in the books of the
subsequent dishonouring of this cheque or of the writing off of the remaining debt in full bec-ause
of bankruptcy.

(iii) Bedside Lockers, previously sold on credit for €340, had been returned to Craddock:. These
goods had been incorrectly entered as €34 on the credit of the Fixtures & fittings account and as
€40 on the debit of the Purchases account.

{iv) A private debt fut-€1,600, owed by Craddock, had been offset in full against a business debt of 
€1, 700, owed to the firm fut-carpet repairs previously carried out. No entry ha.d been made in the 
books in respect of this offset 

(v) Craddock had returned furniture, previously pmcliased on credit from a :supplier for €8,800, and
had entered this ttansaction in the relevant ledges- accounts incorrectly as €8,880. However, a
credit note subsequently arrived from the supplier in respect of the return shov,-ing a transport
charge of €200 to cover the cost of the return. The only entry made in respect of this credit note
was a credit of€8,600 in the creditor's account.

You arr requiffd to: 

(a) Journalise the necessuy corrections.
(b) Show the Suspense Account.
{c) Prepare a Statement showing the correct net profit.
(d) Prepare a corrected Balance Sheet

(55) 
(10) 
(15) 
(20) 

(IOOmarks) 

Furniture, puccbased ou credit from J. Dolan for €16,500, had been eotered as €6,500 on the 
incorrect side of Dolan' s account and credited as €1,650 in the Fixtures & Fittings account. 

1 Put in the original entries into the original accounts and put the entries into boxes 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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We are told that the purchase of furniture {stock} was entered as 6,500 on the
incorrect side of J. Dolans account {creditor). Remember the rule for personal 
accounts of debiting the receiver (us) and crediting the giver (Dolan) .As we are
receiving and Dolan is giving the incorrect side must be the debit 

J Dolan A/C 
Incorrect side ----- � I 

And credited as 1,650 in the Fixtures and Fittings account 

Fixtures & Fittings A/C 

I 
We now have the wrong side of the right account (Dolan} and an incorrect use of a
fixed asset account even though we bought stock (furniture} 

At this crucial stage of step 1 we ask do original debits and original credits balance
and how much is the difference (if any) 

They do not balance and the difference is 4850. This will be our suspense figure and 
we can check it in the journal later 

2 Put in the correct entries into the correct accounts
J Dolan A/C 

Incorrect side 

Purchases A/C 
16500 

I 

3 Correct the mistake 

16500 

Dolan has 6500 on the debit side that should not be there and it can be cancelled by
6500 on the credit side. 
Likewise the fixtures account should not have been used and this can too be 
cancelled by an entry on the opposite side. As we can not put in single entry 
corrections at step 3 we use the suspense account 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Step 1 

Step 3 

Step 2 

Step 3 

.I Dolan A/C

Fixtures A/C

1650 
I 

Purchases A/C

16500 I 

Suspense A/C

6500 I 

Step 2 
Step 3 

Step 1 

Step 3 

16500 

6500 

1650 

Only the fresh items in bold affect the general journal and the original entries in the
boxes are ignored. 

p� & Fittinp
� 

C:reditonlDolan
Suspense 
Bcmgoorrection of i� recording of the
� of fwniturc on cm=dit 

These entries were worth 3 marks each. 

J.650. 
16.$00. 

4,150 e 

A debtor who owed Craddock €900 ,ent a cheque for €750 and €100 in cam in full settlement.
This was c�y recoafed in the boob. However,no entry had been made in the boob of the 
subsequent dimooouring of this cheque or of the writing off of the remaining debt in full because
ofbanbuptcy. 

1 Put in the original entries into the original accounts and put the entries into boxes 

Debtors 
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Bank 

Cash 

Discount allowed 

At this stage we know that suspense will not be used as the debits and credits 

balance. To dishonour the cheque we reverse step 1 except the CASH which is ok 

Step 2 

Step 2 

Step 1 

Step 1 

Step 1 

Debtors 

750 

50 

Bank 

�1 
Cash 

�1 

Step 1 

Step 1 

Step 1 

Step 2 

Discount allowed 

�1 
Step 2 

We now write off the remaining 800 as bad 

Debtors 

Step 2 750 Step 1 

Step 2 so Step 1 

Step 1 

Step 2 

Bad debts 
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Step 2 

Only the fresh items in bold affect the general journal and the original entries in the 
boxes are ignored. 

�ar�t 
BM:kaccount 
Diseoont Allowed disallowed 
BldDebuaccoum 

Debtor' 
Bas recommg of dislmnouring a chc:quc and 
��ofabaddebt 

BOO 8 
7508 

so• 

800 0 

Bedside Loclcers., previously sold on credit for €340, had been returned to Craddock These 
goods bad been incouect1y entered as €34 on the credit oftbe Fixtures & fittings account and as 
€40 on the debit of the Puccbases account. 

The second sentence tells us about the original entries 

Fixtures & Fittings 

I
Step 1 

Purchases 
Step 1 

Sales Returns 
Step 2 (correct entry) 

Debtors 
I Step 2 (correct entry) 
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Step 3 correct the error 

After step 1 we had a debit of 40 and a credit of 34 and so suspense will be needed 

and the difference will be 6. 

We can now fix the mistake 

Fixtures & Fittings 

Step 3 34

1 

Step 1 

Purchases 

Step 1 Step 3 40 

Fixtures & Fittings 

Step 3 34

1 

Step 1 

Suspense 

Step 3 40 

I
Step 3 34 

Only the fresh items in bold affect the general journal and the original entries in the 

boxes are ignored. 

Fbcwrcl aod Ymiop 
p� 

su..
Sllllltilals 

Dobtcn 

Being� .............. tnlenid � 
intbebooks 
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A pnirate debt toc�l,600, owed by Craddock, had been offset m full agamst a bus.me.ss debt of 
€1, 700, owed to the :fum foe caipet repain previously carried out. No entry had been made in the 
boob m respect of this offset. 

As no entry was made in the books we will not need suspense as there is no 
imbalance 
This is a case of the owner wiping a private debt against a business debt and leaving 
the business worse off as assets are reduced. 

It looks like this. 

Drawings 
Diseoum Allowed 

Debtors 
� �ngof M off'setof a priqlc debt owed by 
Craddock apimt a ck:bt owed by a �to the rum

1.600 9 
100• 

l.700 0

Craddock: had returned fbmitute, previously purehased on credit from a supplier for €8,800, and 
had entered this transaction in the relevant ledger accounts incottect:ly as €8,880. However, a 
credit note subsequently am"v'M from the supplier in respect of the return mowing a transport 
clw'ge of €200 to co�w the cost of the return. The only entry made in respect of this credit note 
was a credit of€8,600 in the creditor's account 

Error 5 needs great care as it involves purchases returns, creditors and a transport 
charge. 
We will use sentence 1 and sentence 3 to put in the original entries 

Purchases Returns 

I
Step 1 

Creditors 
Step 1 Step 1 

As the 8600 causes the imbalance this will be our suspense figure. 
The correct figure will be 8800 MINUS the 200 for transport= 8600 

Step 2 & 3 
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Step 1 

Step 2 &3 8320 
Step 1 

Step 2 & 3 
Step 2 & 3 

The explanation here is that purchases returns had 8880 instead of the correct 
amount of 8600 hence the entry of 280. 

8600 

8320) 
280 

The creditors had 8600 on the owe more side (credit) and 8880 on the owe less side 
(debit) This suggests owing 280 less when the correct figure is 8600. The 8320 on the
debit side (owe less) sorts out the problem 

These are the journal entries 

Creditors 
SUspense 

Pwdmesllduml 
kml •ree&lt of mcomd � of a mdit mn 
-�_. . .., .�

1.)208 

280 e 

We can now prepare the full suspense based on the suspense entries in the journal 
(i) (iii) and (v).

Pm� (i) 
� (ii) 
• Oripw �

Supeme AfflMlllt 
e 

411.50. 
,. 

�• CNditots 
Mt!I. 

(v) 

To correct the net profit we look at all journal entries and tick those that would 
affect the trading, profit and loss 

For these items 

A debit in the journal reduces the net profit 
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A credit in the journal increases the net profit 

This is because debiting an expense increases it and debiting a revenue item reduces 

it and vice versa 

Statemat of COffe\Ct Net Pnftt 

Original oet protlt. pct" boob 
Add � nllcMal 

� 

Lui PurdmN 
Bldddlls 
Sala Retur11:$ 
Distotmt allowed 
�tdsnll 

�NdPftllll 

f 

16,500 9 
BOO 9 
3409 
100 8 
•• 

£ 

63.300 9 
50 0 
�· 
63.l'JO

�-

The remaining entries in the journal must be assets and liabilities and we can now 

correct the Balance Sheet as follows 

Remember that by debiting an asset it increases but by debiting a liability it 

decreases 

Remember that by crediting an asset it decreases but by crediting a liability it 

increases 

Balflnee SIMlt u atllll2/l803 

C.nut ... 
Stock 
Debtor5 
Cm 

(nJIIOO + I.QO • :M) 

(IUOO-J.14') 
()J,.300- l.700 � 340) 

I.AM CftldUon: •-••,...du....._ I ptr 
Cndltorl ($400() -1.mJ + 21.000) 
Baa (27.,000 + ,., 

EXTRA ADJUSTMENT FROM LCHL 1991 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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7. Correction of errnrs and suspense accotmt

The Trial Balance ofM. O'Meara, a garage owner, failed to agree on 3 l/I2/2005. The difference was
entered in a Suspense Account and the following Balance Sheet was prepared.

Fixed Assets 
Premises 
Equipment 
Furniture 

Current.Assets 
Stock (including suspense) 
Debtors 
Cash 

Less: Cu.rent Liabmtics 
Creditors 
Bank 

Financed by: 
Capita! 
Add: Net profii 

Drawings 

B:11:Jnce Sheet as at 31/12/2005 

€ 

54,000 
28.000 

On checking the books, the following errors were discovered: 

€ 
700,000 
60,000 
20,000 

91,400 
35,200 

127,100 

790,000 
64,100 

854,100 
29.000 

780,000 

45.JOO
825,!00 

825.100 
.8.25_JQQ 

(i) A motor car, purchased on credit from D. Foran for €13,000, had been entered on the
incorrect side of Foran's account as El ,300 and credited as €3,100 in the Equipment account.

(ii) O'Meara had returned a motor car, previously purchased on credit for €14,600 from a supplier.
O'Meara entered this transaction as€ 16,400 on the correct sides of the correct accounts in the ledger.
A credit note subsequently arrived from the supplier showing a restocking charge of €500 to cover the
cost of the return. The only entry made in respect of this c redit note was a credit of€14,100 in the
creditor's account.

{iii) A debtor who owed O'Meara €1,000 sent a cheque for€800 and €l50 in cash in full 
settlement. This was correctly recorded in the books. However, no entry has been made in the 
books of the subsequent dishonouring of this cheque or of the writing off of the remaining debt in 
full because of bankruptcy. 

(iv) A private debt for €770, owed by O'Meara, had been offi;et in full against a business debt of €820 
owed to the finn for car repairs previously carried out. No entry had been made in the books in 
respect of this offset. 

(v) A cheque for €2,250 paid by O'Meara out of a private bank account for 15 months hire of diagnostic 
equipment up to 31/3/2006 had not been entered in the books. 

You are required to: 

(a) Journalise the necessary corrections.
(b) Show the Suspense Account.
{c) Prepare a Statement showing the correct net profit. 
(d) Prepare a corrected Balance Sheet. 
(� Explain with examples the difference between 'error of commission' and 

'error of principle'. 

Page 8 of HI 
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Question 7 

(8) 

(b} 

(i) Purchases account
Equipment account

Suspense account 
Creditors account 

Being correction of incorrect recording of the 
purchase of a motor car on credit. 

(ii} Purchases returns account 
Creditors account 

Suspense account 

Being recording of return of motor car and credit note 
incorporating a restocking charge. 

(iii) Debtor account
Bank account 
Discount account 

Bad debts account 
Debtor account 

Being recording of a dishonoured cheque and a bad debt. 

(iv) Drawings account
Discount account

Debtors account 

Being recording of owner's private debt offset against a 
business debt for repairs owed to firm. 

(v) Rent/ profit and loss account
Rent/ balance sheet

Capital account 

Being private funds used to pay twelve months rent for the 
current year and three months rent for the following year. 

Original difference 

Suspense Account 
€ 

15,900 Equipment 
Creditors 

Dr 

13,000 ,i:Jl,. =F,.j .J,,t•t 3, IOO @2

850 iffl 

850 

(i) 
(ii) 

Cr 

l,800�i\,'t!1
14,300 (�1 

14,100 � 

,.a. 8001,�.�, 
50 lat 

850 ffilj 

tiili1ll'820t�

I
. 

I =·· 

1
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Question 7 - continued 

(c) 

Statement of corrected net profit 

Original Net Profit as per books 
Add Discount allowed disallowed 

Less Purchases 
Purchases returns 
Bad debts 
Discount 
Rent 

Correct Net Profit 

(iii) 

(i) 
(ii) 
(iii) 
(iv) 
(v) 

€ 
64,JOO� 

50 �N 
-----=-= 

64,150 

(18.000} 
Afi.15-0 � 

(d) 

(e) 

� 
Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2005 

Fixed assets 
Premises 
Equipment (60,000 + 3,100) 
Furniture 

Current Assets 
Stock (9 I ,400 15,900) 
Debtors (35,200 + 850 - 850 - 820) 
Cash 
Rent prepaid 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within l year 
Creditors (54,000 + 14,300 I 1,800) 
Bank (28,000 + 800) 

Financed by 
Capital (790,000 + 1,250) 
Add Net Profit 

Less Drawings (29,000 + 770) 

E € 

75,500 �
34,380ff 

500�t>tg
� J 10,830 

56,soo;J 
28.800 fg)j (85.300) 

792,250 � 
46.150 

838,400 
(29.770) � 

€ 

7����t., 
,r. 

20.000 
783, l 00 

25.530 
filIBJilQ 

808,630 
808.630 m!} 

An error of commission occurs when the correct amount is posted to the correct side of the incorrect 
account. E.g Goods sold on credit to Pat O'Brien debited in error to John O'Brien's account 

An Error of Principle arises when an item is posted to the incorrect class of account. E.g. An electrical 
shop owner purchased a vehicle and entered it in the purchases account instead of the vehicles account 
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7. Correction of errors and susoense account

The Trial Balance ofL O'Shea, a boutique owner, failed to agree on 3 l/l 2/2007. The difference
was entered in a suspense account and the following Balance Sheet was prepared.:

Balance Sheet as nt 31/12/2007 

Fixed Assets 
Premises 
Motor Vehicles 
Furniture and equipment 

• Current Assets
Stock 
Debtors 
Cash 

Less: Current Liabilities

Creditors (including suspense) 
Bank 

Financed by: 
Capital 
Add: Net profit 

Drawings 

€ 

12,200 
5.600 

On checking the books, the following errors were discovered: 

€ 

400,000 
20,000 
J 6.000 

17,000 
5,600 
3.200 

25,800 

(l 7 .800)

441,000 
15.000 

456,000 
12,000 

436,000 

8,000 
444.000 

(i) An overdraft of €400 in the bank account had been brought down on the incorrect side of the
nominal ledger and consequently had been entered on the incorrect side of the trial balance.

(ii} O'Shea sold privately owned jewetlery to a debtor of the business on credit for €2,800. This 
sale had been treated in error as a cash sale of stock. O'Sheo intended that the proceeds of 
this sale were to be retained in the business. 

(iii} A debtor who owed L O'Shea €700 sent a cheque for €550 and €!00 in cash in full 
settlement. This was correctly entered in the books. However, no entry hnd been made in the 
books of the subsequent dishonouring of this cheque or of the writing off of the remaining 
debt in full because ofbunkruptcy. 

(iv} O'Shea won a motor vehicle valued at €20,000 in a grand prize draw. L O'Shea gave the 
vehicle to the business and took an old van from the business valued at €8,000, which was to 
be used for private purposes. The only entry made in the firm's books regarding both mowr 
vehicles was n debit in the cash book of €8,000. 

(v) Cash payments of fl 60 for repairs Lo the business motor vehicle and £JOO for repairs to
private motor vehicles had both been credited lo the creditors account and also credited to 
motor vehicles accouut.

You are required to: 

{a) Journalise the necessary corrections. 

{b) Show the Suspense account. 

(c} Prepare a Slatemenl showing the correct Net profit. 

( d) Prepare n corrected Balance Sheet.

(e) Explain with examples what is meant by:

(i} Error of Commission;

(50) 

(6) 

(}4) 

(20) 

(ii} Error of Principle. (10) 

(100 marl<s} 
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Question 7 - Correction of errors 

(a) 

{i) 

Journal entries 

Suspense 
Bank 

Being correction of overdraft brought down on [l] 
incorrect side of bank account 

(ii) Sales

(iii) 

(iv) 

Casb
Debtors

Capital
Being recording of sale of private jewellery to a
business debtor treated incorrectly ns a cash sole [l J

Debtor
Bank 
Discount allowed disallowed 

Bad debts account 
Debtor 

Being recording of dishonouring a cheque[!] 
and recording bad debt. 

Suspense 
Bank 

€ 

800 [2] 

2,800 [;!] 

2,800 [2] 

600 [3] 

600 [2] 

8,000 [2] 

Motor vehicles 12,000 [2] 

(v) 

(b) 

Capitol 
Being capital introduced in the form of a motor van and [I] 
!he cancellation of on incorrect entry in the bank accoun1.

Creditors 
Motor vehicles 

Suspense 
Repairs 
Drawings 

Bank 
Being repairs and drawings omitted from cash book {1] 
And entered in error in both creditors and motor vans 
account 

Bank (I) 
Bank (4) 

Suspense Account 
800 [2] Original di ffermce 

8.000 [2J Creditors (5) 

l4 

260 [2J 
260 [2] 

160 [2] 
I 00 [2J 

€ 

800 fij 

2,800 [2] 

2,800 [2j 

550 [3] 
50 [3] 

600 

8,000 [!2] 

12,000 [2] 

520 [2] 

260 [2] 

8,280 
[2} 
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Question 7 - continued 

(c) 

Statement of corrected net profit 

Original Net Profit as per books 
Add Discount disallowed (3) 

Less 
Sales (I) 
Bad Debts (3) 
Repairs (5) 

Corrected Ne! Profit 

(d) 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2007 

Fixed Assets 
Premises 
Motor vehicles (20,000 + I 2,000 + 260) 
Furniture and Equipment 

Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors 
Cash 

(5,600 + 2,800 + 600 - 600) 
(3,200 2,800) 

Credilors: Amounts falling due within l ye:ir 
Creditors (12,200 - 260 8,280) 
Bank (5,600 + 800 + 550 + 8,000 + 260) 

Financed By 
Capital 
Net Profit 

Drawings 

(e} 

(441,000 + 2,800 +12,000) 

{J 2,000 + I 00) 

f 

2,800 
600 
]60 

€ 

17,000 [I] 
s,4oo m 

400 DJ

3,660 m
I5.2l0 [4] 

€ 
15,000 fJJ 

[2j 
15,050 

[3] 

€ € 
400,000 [l] 
32,260 m 

fjJ 448,260 

25,800 

455,800 [2] 
ll,490 [1] 

467,290 
12.IOO [2]

An error of commission occurs when the correct a mo uni is posted to the correct side of the incorrect 
account. Example: Goods sold on credit to Brian Brady debited in error to John Brady's account. [5] 

An error of principle arises when an item is posted to the incorrect class of account. [5] 
sxamp!e: A boutique owner purchased a vehicle and treated it as a purchase of stock 
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7. Correction of crrnrs :rnd suspense account

The Trial Balance ofC. McCarthy, a mo(or dealer, failed to agree on 31/12/2009. The difference was
entered in a suspense account and the following Balnnce Sheet was prepared:

Balance Sheet :is at 31/12/2009 

Fixed Assets 
Premises 
Equipment 
Motor Vehicles 

Current Assets 
Stock (including suspense) 
Debtors 
Cash 

Less: Creditors; amounts falling due within 1 ye:i, 
Creditors 
Bank 

Financed by: 
Capital 
Net profit 

Drawings 

On checking the books the following errors were discovered: 

€ 

56,000 
31.000 

€ € 

600,000 
30,000 
60.000 690,000 

182,400 
38,200 

1.000 
221,600 

(87,000) 134,600 

750,000 
81,200 

83] ,200
(6,600)

,a24.600 

824,600 
8?4.600 

(i} McCarthy sent a cheque for £620 in full settlement of a business debt of €660 and this was 
recorded correctly in the books. However, no entry had been made in the books ofU1e 
subsequent dishonouring of this cheque and the payment on account of€300 cash by McCarthy. 

(ii) McCarthy had returned a motor car previously purchased on credit for €15,600 from a supplier.
McCarthy entered this transaction as €16,500 on the correct sides of the correct accounts in the
ledger. A credit note subsequently arrived from the supplier showing a transport charge of €600
to cover the cost of the return. The only entry made in respect of this credit note was a credit of
€] 5,000 in the creditor's account.

(iii) McCarthy won a motor vehicle valued at €30,000 in a draw. McCarthy gave this vehicle to the
• business and took an old vehicle from the business valued at €22,500 which was to be used for 

private purposes. The only entry made in lhe firm's books regarding both vehicles was a debit in
the cash book of €22,500.

(iv) Cosh payments of €450 for repai:rs to equipment had been credited to the creditors account and
also credited to the motor vehicles account.

(v) A cheque for €5,250 paid by McCurthy out ofa private bank account for l 5 momhs hire of
diagnostic equipmenl up to 3 l/03/20 IO had not been entered in !he books.

You are rcqufrcd to; 

(a) Journalise the necessary corrections.
(b} Show the Suspense Account. 
(c) Prepare a Statement showing the correct net profit.
(d} Prepare a corrected Balance Sheet. 
(e) Identify three different types of errors that affect the balancing of a

Trial Balance.

(50) 
(6) 

(]4) 
(20) 

(JO) 

(100 marks) 
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Question 7 

(a} 

(i) Bank
Discount

Creditor 
Creditors 

Cash 
Being recording of dishonoured cheque issued by 
McCarthy and payment on account of€300 in co.sh [f] 

(ii) Purchases returns
Creditors

Suspense
Being recording of return of motor vehicle and credit note,
incorporating a restocking charge. [l]

(iii} Suspense
Bank 

Purchases 
Capital 

Being Capital introduced in the form of a motor van 
and the cancellation of an incorrect entry in the bank 
account [1] 

(iv) Creditors
Motor Vehicles

Suspense 
Repairs 

Bank/cash 
Being cash payments for repairs credited in error 
lo creditors and motor vehicles account. [1] 

(v) Rem -Profit & Loss
Rent Account -Balance Sheet

Capital
Being privale funds used to pay twelve months rent for the
current year and three months rent prepaid. [ l J

(b) 

Suspense Account 

Dr 
£ 

620 [2] 
40 [2] 

300 [2] 

l ,500 (3]
13,500 [3)

22,500 [3] 

7,500 t21 

450 ti]
4sor:n 

450 [?J 

4,200[2} 
1,050 [2] 

Bank (iii} 22,500 [2] 
Original difference 
Creditors (ii) 
Creditors (iv} 

Cr 

€ 

660�J 

300 [2] 

15,000 ($] 

22,500 [Jj 

7,500 [i] 

900 [2J 

450 (2:l 

5,250 [2} 

6,600 
15,000 [2] 
_-2.QQ['.l] 

22.500 

-

I 
. 

. 

,-

I 
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(c) 

(d) 

Statement of Corrected Net Profit 

Original Net Profit a.s per books 
Less Discount (i) 

Purchases Returns (ii) 
Purchases (iii) 
Repairs (iv) 
Rent - P&L (v) 

Correct Net Profit 

Balance Sheet as at 3]112/2009 

Fucd Assets 
Premises 

f 

40 [7] 
1500 [?-J 

7,500 Ct] 
450 [2.J 

4,200 [2J 

€ 

600,000 ['JJ 
60,450 f-2.1 

€ 

81,200 [2] 

€ 

Motor vehicles (60,000 + 450) 
Equipment 30.000 HJ 69o,4so 

Current Assets 
Stock (182,400 + 6,600) 
Debtors 
Cash (1,000 - 300 450) 
Renl 

189,000 [2] 
38,200 [I] 

2so l2J 
1.050 fi-] 228,500 

Less Creditors; amounts falling due within 1 year 
Creditors (56,000 + 360 13,500 450) 42,410 [3] 
Bnuk {3 I ,000 - 620 + 22,500) 52.880 [2.] (95.290) 

Financed by 

(e) 

Capital (750,000 + 7,500 + 5,250) 
Corrected Ne1 Profit 

Less Drawings 

762,750 f2J 
67.510 

830,260 
[J] 

Entering one amount on the debit side of one ledger account and entering a 
difTcrem amount on the credil side of another ledger account. [4] 
Mathematical errors - figures and additions [3] 
Posting only one side of the double enlry [3J 

133210 
Ji2ll6!} [ I ]

823,660 
8?3 660 [J] 
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2. Correctic:m of errors and suspense account

The Trial Balance ofN. O'Connell, a garage owner, foiled to agree on 31/12/201 l. TI}e difference was
entered in a Suspense Account and tlic final accounts were prepared which showed a net profit of 
€41,000.

On checking the books, the following errors and omissions were discovered:

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

4 

(iv} 

(v) 

O'Connell's private car valued at €7,000 was presented to the business. This car was 
later sold on credit to a debtor of tbe business for €7,600. The sale had been treated ns a 
cash sale. 
O'Connell hnd returned a motor car, previously purchased on credit from a supplier, for 
€9,000 and had entered this transaction in the relevant ledger accounts incorrectly as 
£9,900. However, a credit note subsequently arrived from a supplier showing a 
restocking charge ofE'300 to cover !he cost of the return. The only entry made in 
respect oftbis credit note was a credit entry of€8,700 in the creditors account. 
A private debt offl,000 owed to O'Connell had been offset in full settlement against a 
business debt of€1,260 owed by O'Connell. No entry had been made in the books in 
respect of this trnnsaction. 
Payments from a business bank account for repairs to business premises €600 and 
insurance of private dwelling €520 were entered correctly in the bank account but 
respectively credited lo premises account and credited to insurance account. 
Car parts, previously sold on credit for €920, had been returned lo O'Connell. These 
returns had been incorrectly entered as €20 on the credit of equipment account and as 
€290 on the debit of purchases account. 

Required: 

(a) Journalise the necessary corrections.
(b) Prepru-e a statement showing the corrected net profit.
(c) (i) What is the purpose of preparing a Trial Balance? 

(40) 
( I4) 

(ii) State and explain two types of errors not revealed by the Trial Balnnce. (6) 

(60 Marks} 

,rage 3 ofJO 
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Q�estion 2 Correction of errors 

{a) 

(i) 

(ii) 

Debtor 
Bank 

Being transfer from bank account to debtors account due to 
previous incorrect entry 

Purchases returns/Purchases 
Creditor 

Suspense 
Being correction ofinc�ect entries in purchases rerums 
.:ind creditors account. t11 

(iii} Creditor 
Capital 
Discount 

Being private debt owed to O'Connell offset against 
a debt owed to a creditor ofO'ConneH's business. [hl 

(iv} Premises 
Insurance 
Repairs 
Dmwings/Capilal 

Suspense 
Being recording of payments of repairs and drawings and 
cnncellali(}!l_ofincorrect entries in buildings and insurance 
accounts. [J] 

(v) Equipment
Suspense

Purchases 
Sales returns 

Debtors 
Being sales returns 920 entered in error ns 20 in equipment 
account and 290 irr purchases :iccounL [fJ 

Debit 

7,600 [2] 

1,200 [2J 
7,500 ffi1 

l,260 [lJ 

600 fi.J 
520 (2] 
600 [�] 
520 [�] 

20 E?J 
270@ 

920 

Credit 

7,600 [?J 

8,700 &J 

1,000 ['.?] 
260@] 

2,240 [IJ 

290�} 

920 [2] 
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(b} 

(c) 

(i) 

Statement of Corrected Nef Profit 

Original Net Profit as per books 
Add: Discount received 

Purchases 

Less: Purchases Returns 
Jnsurance 
Repairs 
Saies returns 
Corrected Net Profit 

{iii) 
(v} 

(ii} 
{iv) 
(iv) 
(v) 

260 [�] 
290 [1] 

l,200 [2) 
s2orn 
600 Hu 
920 ti] 

€ 
41,000 ITiJ 

---2J_Q 
41,550 

(3,240) 
3s,310 G4J 

A Trial Balance is prepared in order to test the accuracy of double entry bookkeeping before 
preparing Final Accounts. A Trial Balance should have lhe same total of debits and credils 
and have the same amounts because under double entry bookJceeping every debit entry should 
have a corresponding credit entry. 

(ii) Errors not revealed by a trial balance:
Errors of original entry errors made in books of first entry
Errors of principle incorrect class of account - entering an asset io an expense account 
Errors of complete omission - where both debit and credit are omitted 
Errors of commission posting to wrong nccount but to tJ1e correct side of correct rype of account 
Compensating errors - where errors of equal value cancel ench other out 
Reversal of entries where the debit entry is on the credit side and t!1e credit entry is on the debit 
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7. Correction of Errors and Suspense Account

The Trial Balance ofE Cagney, a grocer, failed to agree on 31/12/2013. The difference was entered in 
a Suspense Account and the following Balance Sheet was prepared. 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2013 

€ € Fixed Assets 
Premises 
Equipment 
Motor Vehicles 

€ 
650,000 
35,000 
72,000 757,000 

Current Assets 
Stock (including suspense) 
Debtors 
Cash 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
Creditors 

185,400 
36,300 
1.500 

223,200 

Bank 
58,500 
32,000 (90,500) 132,700 

889.700 
Financed by: 

Capital 
Add: Net profit 

Less Drawings 

810,000 
87.200 

897,200 
(7,500) 889,700 

889.700 

On checking the books, the following errors were discovered: 

(i) A debtor, who owed Cagney €830, sent a cheque for €780 in full settlement and this was recorded
correctly in the books. However, no entry was made in the books of the subsequent dishonouring
of this cheque or of the closing of the debtor's account after the receipt of a first and final payment
of I Oc in the €1.

(ii) Cagney had returned goods, previously purchased on credit for €15,800 from a supplier.
Cagney entered this transaction as € 18,500 on the correct sides of the correct accounts in the
ledger. A credit note subsequently arrived from the supplier showing a restocking charge of
€800 to cover the cost of the return. The only entry made in respect of this credit note was a
credit of €15,000 in the creditor's account.

(iii) A cheque for€4,260 was paid by Cagney out of a private bank account to cover 15 months
hire of equipment for the business up to 31/03/2014. No entry had been made in the books.

(iv) Cagney won a private holiday prize for two worth €6,000 in total. One ticket had been given
to a salesperson as part payment of sales commission for the year and the other to an
advertising firm as payment in full of a debt of€3,250. No entry had been made in the
books.

(v) Cagney's private car valued at €8,800 was presented to the business. He took a used freezer
from the business for an agreed value of€800. The only entry made in the books was a debit
of€800 in the equipment account. The freezer had a book value of€1,300.

You are required to: 

(a) Journalise the necessary corrections.

(b) Show the Suspense Account.

(c) Prepare a statement showing the correct net profit.
(d) Prepare a corrected Balance Sheet.
(e) Identify three types of errors that affect the balancing of a Trial Balance.

(54) 
(6) 

(14) 
(20) 
(6) 

(100 marks) 
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Question 7 

(a) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(b) 

Dr. Cr. 
€ € 

Debtors ale 830 11 
Bank ale

780 II Discount allowed ale - disallowed 50 · .
Bank ale 1!� I Bad debts ale

Debtors ale 830 Ii 

Being recording of dishonoured cheque received by 
Cagney and the payment IO cent in the €1 as a first and 
final payment of debt ■ 

Purchases returns ale 3,500 

ICreditors ale 11,500 •. ·
Suspense ale 15,000 11 

Being recording of return of goods and credit note 
incorporating a restocking charge. ■ 

Rent ale- (P&L) 3,408
1 Debtors for Rent ale (Balance Sheet) 852 

Capital ale 4,260 II 
Being recording of private funds used to pay twelve months 
rent for the current year and three months rent prepaid. ■ 

Sales commission ale 3,000 ICreditors (advertising) ale 3,250 

Capital ale 6,000 II 
Discount received ale 250 

Being recording of capital introduced used for the 
purpose of clearing a debt and payment of commission If 

Vehicles ale 8,800 ■ 
Capital ale 8,800 ■ 

Drawings ale 800 

ILoss on transaction( disposal) P & Lale 500 

Suspense ale 800

Equipment ale 2,100 ■ 
Being recording of a private motor car given to the 
business by Cagney and freezer taken as part payment II 

I 
Original difference 
Equipment (v) 

Suspense Account 
14,200 1· · Creditors/ purchases retums(ii) 15,000 ■

800 

� � 
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(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

Statement of Corrected Net Profit 

Original Net Profit as per books 
€ 

so I 
€ 

87,200 
Add Discount disallowed (i) 

Discount received (iv) 

Less Bad debts (i) 
Purchases Returns (ii) 
Loss on Freezer transaction (v) 
Rent ale (iii) 
Sales commission (iv) 

Correct Net Profit 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/2013 
€ 

Fixed Assets 
Premises 
Motor vehicles (72,000 + 8,800) 
Equipment (35,000 - 2,100) 

Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors 
Cash 
Rent prepaid 

(185,400 - 14,200) 
(36,300 + 830 830) 

171,200 I .. · 
36,300

1,500 

852

Less Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 

Creditors (58,500 - 11,500 - 3,250) 43,750 IBank (32,000 + 780 - 83) 32,697 

Financed by 
Capital (810,000 + 4,260 + 8,800 + 6,000) 
Corrected Net Profit 

Less Drawings (7,500 + 800) 

Errors in figures and addition 
Posting only one side of the double entry 

250 

747

1 
3,500

· .. 
· .· 
.
. •· 
.. 
:
•.
· 500 ... 

3,408 
3,000 

€

-1QQ 
87,500 

(1 l,155) 
�-

€ 

6iH: I 763,700 

209,852 

(76,447) 

829,060 I'· 76,345 

905,405 
(8,300)11 

133,405 

897.105 

897,105 j897.105 

Entering one amount on the debit side of one ledger account and entering a different amount 

on the credit side of another ledger account. 
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PUBLISHED ACCOUNTS 

Introduction 

It is not always possible to predict with total accuracy what questions are likely to be 

examined in any one year. However, anyone examining the trends of recent years 

would have to rate very highly the possibility of Published Accounts featuring in the 

100 marks section in 2005. Adjustments associated with Published Accounts tend to 

be easier than other final accounts questions but there is a significant portion of 

marks for the Notes section at the end and for the theory question normally 

associated with the topic. 

Before looking at a sample question, we will look at a checklist for the topic. 

Essential list for Published Accounts 

► Published Layout

► Depreciation and Revaluation

► Patents

► Dividends Paid and Proposed

► Debenture Interest

► Cost of Sales

► Distribution expenses

► Administration expenses

► Notes

► Theory

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Sample Question 2005 

Published Accounts 

Gayle Ltd. has lll1 Authorued Capital of€800,000 dil,ided into 600,000 On:lin;u-y Shares at €1 each and 
200,000 9% Prefermce Shares at €1 each. The following Trial Balance was extntcted from its boob at 
31/12/2004. 

Vehicles at =t 
Vehicles -Arounulated Dcp on lfl/2004 
Investment Income 
Buildings at cost 
Buildings-Accumulated Dcp on 111/2004 
Debtors and Creditms 
9"/4 Imrestments 
Stock at 111/2004 
Patent at 1/1/2004 
Administration expenses 
Pmd1aseaand Sales 
R.cntal loeome 
8% Debentures 2008/2009 
Distribution Costs 
Profit on Sale ofLand 
Bank 
VAT 
Interim Dri1idends 
Profit and Loss at 1/li2004 
Issued Capital 

Ordinary Shares 
Preferena: Shares 

Provision for Bad De,bts 
Debro:ture Interest Paid 
Discount 

1e following information is relevant: 

1 Stock on 31/12/2004 is €96,000. 

€ 
220,000 

700,000 

289.000 
240,000 
73,000 
40,000 

172.000 
1,150,000 

248,000 

48,000 

24,000 

12,000 

1216000 

€ 

33,000 
10,000 

42,000 
163,000 

1,880,000 
60,000 

200,000 

65,000 

71,000 

52,000 

400,000 
200.,000 
27,000 

13,000 
l 216000

) The Patmt was acquired on 111/2000 for€80,000. It is being amortised over 8 years in equal 
insta1meuts. The amortisation is to be included in cost of sales . 

.i) On 1/7!2004, the Ordumy shareholden received an interim dividend of €15,000 and the 
Prefermce shareholders received €9,000. The directors propose the payment of the PrefemJ.ce 
dividend due and a .final dividend on Ordumy shares to bring that total dividend up to 7c per share. 

,) Provide for Debro:ture lntffest due, Investment IntcRst due, Auditors fees €9,500, Directors fees 
€50,000 and Coq,oration tax €B7,000. 

) Depreciation is to be pro�ided for on Buildings at a rate of 2% s1raight line and is to be allocated 
20% on Distribution costs and 80% on Administration expenses. There was no purchase or sale of 
bui1dmgs during the year. Vehicles :are to be depreciated at the rate of20"/o of cm1. 

i) During the year land adjacent to the company's pmnises, which had cost €80,000 was sold for
€145,000. At the end of the year the COlllp3lly re-valued its Buildings at €900,000. The company
v.ishcs to � this value in this year's accounts.

ii) Included in.Adminimatian expenses is the receipt of€12,000 for Parent royalties.

ou are required to: 

Prcpaff' the published Profit and Loss accoont for the yeac 31/12,'2004 and a Balance Sheet as at 
that date, in accordllllcc with the Companies Acts and appropriate accounting standards, showing 
the following notes: 

1. Accoooting policy note for tangible fixed assets and stock.
2. Operating profit.
3_lntffest payable.
4. Dividends.
5. Tangible fixed assets.

State three ilnns of information that must be included in a Directors' Report. 
Explain the ta:m "excqrti.ona1 item" and give an example. 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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1. Workings

Buildings Revaluation Reserve Account 

01/01/04 700,000 

Revaluation 200,000 

reserve 

Ace Dep Buildings A/C. 

31/12/04 01/01/04 

Revaluation 56,000 Bal 42,000 

Reserve b/d 

31/12/03 14000* 

• 2% of 700,000 = 14,000

31/12/04 

Buildings 200,000 

Acc. Dep 56,000 

This is split 20/80 between Distribution and administration expenses 

14,ooo Is= 2800 (1 part) 

2800 x 4 = 11,200 (4 parts) 

Remember, if depreciation and revaluation happen on the same date 

- Depreciate first

- Revalue afterwards

The relevant figures now are 

Buildings 700,000 + 200,000 = 900,000 (Tangible Assets) 

Revaluation Reserve = 200,000 + 56,000= 256,000 (Financed By) 

2. 

Patents 

80
,,

000 

8 

= 10,000 for each year 

We are told to include this figure in Cost of Sales. 

Opening balance of 40,000 - 10,000 

= 30,000 ➔ Intangible Assets. 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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I 

3. 

Interest 

4. 

200,000x 8% 

Less Paid 

= 16,000 (Full year) 

12,000 

4,000 Crs falling < l year 

Investment Income 

240,000 x 9% = 21,600 (Gain in P+L A/c) 

10,000 (Received) 

11,600 due to us (Current Asset) 

s. 

Dividends 

Ordinary Dividend Paid = 15,000 

Dividend Paid = 9,000 

Preference 

Ordinary Dividend Due 

Preference Dividend Due 

= 13,000 (400,000 X 7c = 28,000-15,000) 

= 9,000 (200,000 X 9% = 18,,000 

6. 

Table 

Cost of Sales 

Opening Stock 73,000 

Purchases 1,150,000 

Closing Stock (96,000) 

Patents (W2) 10,000 

Depreciation (Wl) 

Admin Expenses 

Directors Fees 

Auditors Fees 

Depreciation Van 

*(20% of 220,000} 

Distribution Costs 

1,137,000 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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9,000 due 

Distribution Administration 

2,800 11,200 

184,000 

50,000 

9500 

*44,000

248,000 

294,,800 254,700 
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W7 

W8 

W9 

Debtors 

Trade 289000 

Less Bad debt Provision 

+ Investment

Income due

Other Creditors 

Directors fees due 50,000 

Auditors fees due 9,500 

Interest due 4
t
000 

63,500 

Other Operating Income 

Rent 60,000 

Discount 13,000 

Patent Royalties 12,000 

85,000 

27,000 

11
1
600 

273,600 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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GAYLE PLC 

Published Profit and Loss A/c for year ended 31.12.04 

Turnover 1,880,000 

Cost of Sales (W6) ( 1
1
137

1
000} 

Gross Profit 743,000 

Distribution costs (W6) 294,800 

Administration expenses (W6) 254,700 {549
1
500} 

193,500 85,000 

Other operating income (W9) 278
1
500 

Operating profit 65,000 

Profit on sale of land 21,600 365,100 

Investment income (W4) (16
1
000} 

52,020 

Interest payable 

349,100 

Profit on ordinary activities {87
1
000} 

before taxation 262,100 

Taxation 

{46
1
000} 

Dividends - paid 24000 216,100 

Proposed 22
1
000 

Retained profit for the year 52,000 

Profits brought forward at 

1/1/04 268,100 

Profits carried forward at 

31/12/04 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Balance Sheet as at 31/12/04 

Fixed assets 

Intangible assets 30,000 

Tangible fixed assets 1,043,000 

9% investments 240,000 1,313,000, 

Current Assets 

Stock 96,000 

Debtors (W7) 273,600 

Bank 48,000 

417,600 

Creditor Amounts due in less 

than a year 

Trade creditors 163,000 

Other creditors (W8) 63,500 

**Taxation 158,000 

Proposed dividends (WS) 22,000 

(406,500) 

Net current assets 11,100 

Total assets less current 

liabilities 1,324,100 

Financed By 

Creditors amounts due after 200,000 

falling 1 year 

Ca�ital and Reserves 

Called up capital 600,000 

Revaluation reserve (Wl) 256,000 

P+l Balance 31/12/03 268,100 1,324,100 

AWKWARD ITEMS 

The patent royalty income of €12,000 is included with Administration expenses 

giving a net figure of €172,000. 

When we remove a gain from an expense account the expense goes back to its 

original amount of €184,000 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Notes. 

Accounting policy note for tangible fixed assets and stock 

Buildings were revalued at the end of 31/12/04 and have been included in the 

accounts at their revalued amount. Depreciation is calculated in order to write off 

the cost or value of tangible fixed assets over their estimated useful economic life as 

follows. 

Buildings - 2% per annum - straight line basis 

Vans 20% on cost. 

Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower of cost or net realisable 

value. 

Operating Profit 

The operating profit is arrived at after charging: 

Depreciation on Buildings 

Depreciation vans 

Amortisation of Patents 

Directors fees 

Auditors fees. 

Interest Payable 

14,000 

44,000 

10,000 

50,000 

9,500 

Interest payable on 8% debentures (Repayable by 2008/2009) = 16,000 

Dividends 

Ordinary Dividends 

Interim Paid 3. 75c per share = 15,000 

Final Proposed 3.25c per share = 13.000 28,000 
Preference Dividends 

Interim paid 4.Sc per share 9,000 

Final proposed 4.Sc per share 9,000 18,000 

Tangible Fixed Assets 

Cost 01/01/04 

Disposal 

Transfer to revaluation 

Depreciation 01/01/04 

Charge for year 

Transfer to revaluation 

Buildings 

780,000 

(80,000) 

200.000 900,000 

42,000 

14,000 

(56,000) Nil 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Net value at 01/01/04 

Net value at 31-12-04 

738,000 (780000-42000) 

900,000 

3 items from a Directors report 

Dividends for the year 
Retained Earnings for the year 
Any change in the nature of the Business 

Exceptional items 

187,000 

143,000 

These are large items that must be shown separately due to their size e.g. unusually 
large bad debts. 

Other possible theory areas based on Published accounts. 

1.) Accounting concepts are broad basic assumptions, which underlie the 
periodic financial accounts of business enterprises. 

Four main accounting concepts 

• Going concern means the firm is being kept in its present trading use

• Accruals -Income we should have received/ Expenses should have been

paid

• Consistency -use the same accounting systems

• Prudence -the firm should overstate it's losses and understate it's gains

Other concepts 

• Entity -the business is separate from the person

• Money measurement -monetary transactions only are included in the

accounts.

• Realisation -when sale occurs is important and not when we are paid

• Double entry : Assets = Liabilities + Capital

• Objectivity-Accountant should not use personal bias

2.) Accounting bases are the methods chosen to apply the concept e.g. 

depreciation at cost 

3.) Accounting policies are the specific bases chosen e.g. First In First Out 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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4.) Why are accounts regulated? 

Regulation means the imposition of requirements regarding the content 

preparation and presentation of external reports and statements. 

Keywords 

• Consistent

• Comparison

• Compliance {laws)

• Uniform {EU)

5.) Regulatory Agencies 

• Government

• Accountancy professions (FRS's)- Financial Reporting Standards

• EU Directives

• Stock Exchange - published information criteria

6 ) Government Regulatory legislation 

Companies Act 1990 

Companies Act 1963 

Companies Act 1983 

Companies Act 1986 

7 ) Criteria on company size {based on 2 consecutive years figures} 

Annual turnover €3m 

Bal Sheet total €1.Sm 

8 ) Reporting Requirements 

€12m 

€Gm 

Profit & Loss 

Shareholders I 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Large Private (Public) Full Full Full Full 

Medium Short Short Full Abridged 

Small Short None Abridged Abridged 

9.) An accounting standard is a method of preparing financial information, which 

is acceptable to the Accountancy Bodies. 

10.) Financial Reporting Council 

• Oversees the implementation of accounting standards

• All new standards are called Financial Reporting Standards

• Issues new, amends or withdraws standards

• The urgent issues task force reports to the financial reporting council

12.) Stock exchange disclosure requirements 

• Half yearly abbreviated Profit & Loss

• Financial arrangements with directors (details)

• Break down of all Loans

• Geographical analysis of Turnover and Profit.

13.} Role of Auditor 

• To examine and report on financial statements

• To decide on "true and fair view" aspect of accounts

• To carry out independent examinations of books and express an opinion

on the statements

Functions of audits 

• To assure shareholders of accounting accuracy

• To assure other stakeholders

• To advise the management

• To ensure company owns all listed assets

• To ensure all liabilities are included

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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• To ensure accounts are consistent

• Auditors must use professional integrity

• Auditors are entitled to all records

• Auditor should be OBJECTIVE

• Not looking for fraud but should report it if they discover it

• Ensure Companies act is obeyed.

Qualified report 

• Auditor is unable to reach full conclusions about the financial statements

• Accounts may not give a true and fair view

Unqualified report 

• This is a clean report

• Financial statements give a true and fair view.

14.) Responsibilities of Directors 

• Keep proper records

• Safeguard all assets

• Select suitable accounting policies

• Recommend a dividend

• Decide on reserves

• Report changes in nature of business/ going concern

• Give a review of yearly activities

Sample Question 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

1

164



Reyes Pie 

Reyes Pie has an Authorised capital of 750,000 dividend into 500,000 Ordinary 

Shares at El each and 250,000 6% Preference shares at El each. The following trial 

balance was extracted from its books on 31.12.2003. 

Buildings-cost at 1-1-2003 

Buildings-accumulated depreciation on 1-1-2003 

Debenture Interest paid 

Provision for bad debts 

Administration expenses 

Salaries and General Expenses 

Discount 

Investment Income 

Profit on sale of land 

Patents at 1-1-2003 

9% Investments 1-1-2003 

Debtors and Creditors 

Purchases and Sales 

Stocks 1-1-2003 

Rent 

Advertising 

Interim dividends for first 6 months 

• Profit and Loss balance 1-1-2003

8% Debentures (2006/2007) including 20000 

issued on the 30-9-2003 

Bank 

VAT 

i Issued Capital 

350,000 Ordinary Shares at 1 each 

150,000 Preference Shares at 1 each 

The following additional information is provided 

(i) Stocks at 31-12-2003 is 24,400

(ii) Provision is to be made for

690,000 

52,000 

4,000 

1,250 

65,000 

140,000 

14,200 

3,500 

40,000 

27,000 

48,000 

30,000 53,500 

480,000 740,000 

23,500 

9,200 

18,700 

13,250 

51,600 

90,000 

15,600 

13,000 

350,000 

150,000 

1,561,650 1,561,650 

. 

I 

I 

Director's fees 10,000 

Auditor's fees 6,200 
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Corporation Tax 26,000 

Debenture interest due at 31-12-2003 

Investment Income due at 31-12-2003 

(iii) Depreciation is to be provided as follows:

Building-2% straight line (there were no purchases or sales of buildings 

during the year). During the year land which cost 70,000 was sold for 110,000. At 

the end of the year the company re-valued it's buildings at 900,000. The 

company wishes to incorporate this value in this year's accounts. 

(iv) The patent was acquired on 1-1-2001 for 36,000. It is being amortised

over 8 years in equal instalments. The amortisation should be included in

the Cost of sales.

(v) On 1-7-2003 interim dividends of 8,750 and 4,500 were paid to the

ordinary and preference shareholders respectively. The directors propose

the payment of the preference dividend due and a final dividend on

ordinary shares of 3c per share.

(vi) The Debentures are secured by a fixed charge over the company's

tangible fixed assets.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare the published Profit and loss Account for the year ended 31-

12-2003 and a Balance Sheet as at that date in accordance with the
Companies Acts and latest Accounting standards showing the

following notes

1 Accounting policy note for tangible fixed assets and stock 

2 Operating profit 

3 Interest payable 

4 Dividends 

5 Tangible fixed assets 

Solution to Reyes Pie 

1. Workings

Buildings 

01/01/03 690,000 

Revaluation Reserve Account 

31/12/03 

Revaluation 210,000 Buildings 210,000 

reserve 

Acc. Dep 65,800 

Ace Dep Buildings A/C. 

31/12/03 01/01/03 

Revaluation 65,800 Bal 52,000 
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Reserve I b/d 
31/ 12/ 03 13,800*

• 2% of 690,000 = 13,800

This is an administration expense. 
Remember , if depreciation and revaluation happen on the same date

- depreciate first 
- revalue afterwards

The relevant figures now are 

Buildings 690,000 + 210,000 = 900,000 (Tangible Assets) 
Revaluation Reserve = 210,000 + 65,800= 275,800 (Financed By) 

2. 

Patents 

36.000 
8 

= 4,500 of each year

We are told to include this figure in Cost of Sales. 

Opening balance of 27,000- 4,500 
= 22,500 ➔ Intangible Assets. 

3. 

Interest 

4. 

70,000x 8% 
20,000 X 8% X 3/12 

Investment Income 

s. 

Dividends 

48,000x 9% = 

= 5,600 (Full year) 
= 400 (Part year)

6,000 (P+ L expense)
- 4,000 (Paid) 

2,000 due (Creditors < 1 year) 

4,320 {Gain in P+L A/c) 
-3,500 {Received) 

820 due to us (Current Asset)

Ordinary Dividend Paid = 8,750 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

1

167



Preference Dividend Paid = 4,500 

= 10,500 (350,000 X 3c) Ordinary Dividend Due 

Preference Dividend Due = 4,500 (150,000 X 6% = 9,000 

-4,500 paid

4,500 due 

6. 

Table 

Cost of Sales Distribution 

Opening Stock 23,500 

Purchases 480,000 

Closing Stock (24,400) 

Patents (W2) 4,500 

Depreciation (Wl) 

Admin Expenses 

Salaries + Gen 

expenses 

Rent 

Advertising 18,700 

• Directors Fees

i Auditors Fees 

483,600 18,700 

W7 Other Debtors 

VAT 13,000 

Investment 

Income due 820 

13,820 

W8 Other Creditors 

Directors fees due 10,000 

Auditors fees due 6,200 

Interest due 2,000 

18,200 

Published Profit and Loss A/c for year ended 31.12.03 

Turnover 

Cost of Sales (WG) 

Gross Profit 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

Administration 

13,800 

65,000 

140,000 

9,200 

10,000 

6,200 

244,200 

740,000 

(483,600} 

256,400 
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Distribution costs (W6) 18,700 

Administration expenses (W6) 244,200 (262,900) 

(6,500) 

Other operating income 

Discount received 14,200 

Operating profit 7,700 

Profit on sale of land 40,000 

Investment income (W4} 4.320 

Interest payable 52,020 

(6,000) 

Profit on ordinary activities 46,020 

before taxation 

Taxation (26,000) 

20,020 

Dividends - paid 13,250 

Proposed 15,000 28,250 

Loss retained for the year (8,230) 

Profits brought forward at 

1/1/03 51,600 

Profits carried forward at 

31/12/03 43,370 

Balance Sheet as at 31/12/03 

Fixed assets 

Intangible assets 22,500 

Tangible fixed assets 900,000 

9% investments 48,000 970,500 

Current Assets 

Stock 24,400 

Trade debtors (30,000- 1,250) 28,750 

Other debtors (W7) 

13,820 66,970 

Creditor Amounts due in less 

than a year 

Trade creditors 53,500 

Other creditors (WS} 18,200 

Taxation 26,000 

Proposed dividends (WS) 15,000 

Bank 15,600 128,300 
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Net current assets (61,330) 

Total assets less current 

liabilities 909.170 

Financed By 

Creditors amounts due after 90,000 

falling 1 year 

Ca�ital and Reserves 

Called up capital 500,000 

Revaluation reserve (Wl) 275,800 

P+L Balance 31/12/03 43,370 909.170 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Notes. 

Accounting policy note for tangible fixed assets and stock 

Buildings were revalued at the end of 31/12/03 and have been included in the 

accounts at their revalued amount. Depreciation is calculated in order to write off 

the cost or value of tangible fixed assets over their estimated useful economic life as 

follows. 

Buildings - 2% per annum - straight line basis. 

Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower of cost or net realisable 

value. 

Operating Profit 

The operating profit is arrived at after charging: 

Depreciation on Buildings 

Amortisation of Patents 

Directors fees 

Auditors fees. 

Interest Payable 

13,800 

4,500 

10,000 

6,200 

Interest payable on 8% debentures (2006/2007) including 20,000 received on 

30/09/03 = 6,000 

Dividends 

Ordinary Dividends 

Interim Paid 2.Sc per share = 8,750 

Final Proposed 3c per share = 10,500 

Preference Dividends 

Interim paid 3c per share 4,500 

Final proposed 3c per share 4,500 

Tangible Fixed Assets 

Cost 01/01/03 760,000 

Disposal (70,000) 

Transfer to revaluation 210,000 

Depreciation 01/01/03 52,000 

Change for year 13,800 

Transfer to revaluation (65,800) 

© p ii' - rv. 

9,250 

9,000 

900,000 

Nil 
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4. Published Accounts

Ross Pie has an Authorised Capital of €800,000 divided into 600,000 Ordinary Shares at€ 1 each and 200,000
IO% Preference Shares at €1 each. The following Trial Balance was extracted from its books on 31/12/2005.

€ 

9% Investments 1/1/2005 200,000 
Patent 64,000 
Land and buildings (re-valued on 1/7/2005) 860,000 
Delivery vans at cost 140,000 
Delivery vans - accumulated depreciation on l /1/2005 
Revaluation Reserve 
Debtors and Creditors 200,000 
Purchases and Sales 700,000 
Stock l /l/2005 70,000 
Directors' Fees 89,000 
Salaries and General Expenses 175,000 
Discount 
Advertising 23,000 
Investment Income 
Profit on sale of Land 
Rent 30,000 
Interim dividends 29,000 
Profit and Loss Balance 1/1/2005 
6% Debentures including €100,000 

issued on l /8/2005 
Bank 
VAT 
Issued Capital 

300,000 Ordinary Shares at €1 each 
160,000 IO% Preference Shares 

2,580.000 

The following information is also relevant: 

(i) Stock on 31/12/2005 was valued on a first in first out basis at €72,000

€ 

64,000 
265,000 
95,000 

1,221,000 

6,260 

9,000 
80,000 

78,000 

280,000 
18,440 
3,300 

300,000 
160,000 

2.580.000 

(ii) The patent was acquired on l/l /2003 for €80,000. It is being amortised over IO years in equal
instalments. The amortisation is to be included in cost of sales.

(iii) On 1/7/2005 the Ordinary shareholders received an interim dividend of€2l ,000 and the Preference
shareholders received €8,000. The directors propose the payment of the Preference dividend due and a final
dividend on Ordinary shares to bring the total Ordinary dividend to 15c per share.

(iv) On 1/7/2005 land, which cost €100,000 was sold for €180,000. On this date the remaining land and
buildings were re-valued at €860,000. Included in this revaluation is land now valued at €160,000 but
which originally cost €50,000. The re-valued buildings had cost €530,000.

(v) Depreciation is to be provided as follows:
Delivery vans at the rate of 20% of cost. 
Buildings at the rate of 2% of cost per annum until date of revaluation and thereafter at 2% per annum 
of re-valued figure. 

(vi) Provide for debenture interest due, investment income due, auditors fees of€8,400 and taxation €40,000.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare the published profit and loss account for the year ended 31/12/2005, in accordance with the
Companies Acts and appropriate reporting standards, showing the following notes:

I. Tangible fixed assets.
2. Stock.
3. Dividends.
4. Operating profit
5. Profit on sale of property. (48) 

(b) What is an audit? Describe an auditor's report that is 'qualified'. (12) 

(60 marks) 

Page 5 oflO 
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Question 4 

(a) Profit and Loss Account of Ross PLC for the year ended 31/12/2005

Workings € 

Turnover 1,221,000 

Cost of Sales (70,000 + 700,000 72,000 +8,000) (706,000) 
Gross profit 515,000 

Distribution costs Wl (51,000) 

IAdministrative expenses W2 (314,700) (365,700) 
149,300 

Other operating income 
Discount 6,260 

Operating profit 155,560 

Profit on sale of land 80,000 
Investment Income 18,000 

253,560 

Interest payable (13,300) 
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation • 240,260 

Taxation (40,000) 
Profit after taxation 200,260 

Dividends paid 29,000 

IDividends proposed 32,000 (61,000} 
Profit retained for year 139,260 

Profit brought forward at 1/1/2005 78,000 

Profit carried forward at 31/12/2005 217,260 

Notes to the Accounts 

1. Tangible Fixed Assets ■ 
Land Buildings Vehicles Total 

Cost or valuation 1/1/2005 150,000 530,000 140,000 820,000 

Disposal (100,000) (100,000) 
Revaluation surplus 110,000 170,000 280,000 

Value at 31/12/2005 160.000 200.000 )40.000 1.000.000 
Depreciation at 1/1/2005 64,000 64,000

Depreciation charge for year 12,300 28,000 40,300 

� � 104,300 
Net book value 1/1/2005 150,000 530,000 76,000 756,000 

Net book value 31/12/2005 160,000 687,700 48,000 895,700 

2. Stock ■ 
Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

3. Dividends ■ 
Ordinary dividends

Interim paid 7.0c per share 
Final proposed 8.0c per share 

Preference dividends 
Interim paid 5.0c per share 
Final proposed 5.0c per share 

8 

21,000 

24,000 

8.000 

8,000 

45,000 

16,000 

I 

■ 

I 
• 

■ 

I 
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4. Operating Profit B 
The operating profit is arrived at after charging: 

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 
Patent amortised 
Directors remuneration 
Auditors fees 

5. Profit on sale of property ■

40,300 
8,000 

89,000 
8,400 

The company sold land for €80,000 greater than it cost. Cost was €100,000.

(b) Audit ■ 
An audit is the independent examination of, and the expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of an enterprise by an appointed auditor. 
The main objective of an audit is to enable the auditor, in keeping with the requirements of 
the Companies Acts, to report on the truth and fairness shown by: 

• the balance sheet, the profit or loss shown by the profit and loss account and
• any other information required to be disclosed in the financial accounts.

The Companies Acts do not require the auditor to certify that the company records are 
correct or accurate but that the accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the business. 

Qualified Auditor's Report ■ 
A qualified auditor's report is when an auditor in his/her opinion is not satisfied or is unable to 
conclude that all or any of the following apply: 
• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at

the end of the year and of it's profit and loss account for the year.
• the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts
• all the information necessary for the audit was available
• the information given by the directors is consistent with the financial statements
• the net assets are more than 50% of the called up capital

The report will state the elements of the accounts or of the director's report that are unsatisfactory. 

Workings 
I Cost of sales 

Stock 1/1/2005 70,000 
Purchases 700,000 
Patents written off 8,000 
Stock 31/12/2005 (72,000) 706,000 

2. Distribution costs
Advertising 23,000 
Depreciation - delivery vans 28.000 51,000 

3. Administrative expenses
Directors fees 89,000 
Salaries and general expenses 175,000 
Rent 30,000 
Auditors fees 8,400 
Depreciation - Buildings 12,300 314,700 
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4. Published Accounts

Lemont PLC has an Authorised share capital of€700,000 divided into 500,000 ordinary shares at €1 each 
and 200,000 8% preference shares at €1 each. The following trial balance was extracted from its books at 
31/12/2007. 

Buildings at cost 
Buildings Accumulated Depreciation on 1/1/2007 
Vehicles at cost 
Vehicles Accumulated Depreciation on 1/1/2007 
Quoted Investments at Cost (market value €220,000) 
Unquoted Investments at cost (directors' valuation €70,500) 
Debtors and Creditors 
Stock 1/1/2007 
Patent 1/1/2007 
Distribution costs 
Administrative expenses 
Purchases and Sales 
Rental Income 
Profit on sale of land 
Dividends paid 
Bank 
VAT 
8% Debentures 2012/2013 
Profit &Loss Account at 1/1/2007 
Investment income received Quoted 

Unquoted 
Issued Capital 
Ordinary Shares 
8% Preference Shares 
Provision for Bad Debts 
Debenture Interest paid 
Discount 

The following information is relevant: 
(i) Stock on 31/12/2007 is €222,000

€ 
650,000 

200,000 

200,000 
60,000 

277,000 
65,000 
50,000 

260,000 
160,000 

1,250,000 

43,000 
77,000 

10,000 

3,302.000 

€ 

41,000 

38,000 

197,000 

1,990,000 
50,000 
70,000 

70,000 
300,000 
50,000 
10,000 
3,000 

350,000 
100,000 
20,000 

13,000 
3,302.000 

(ii) During the year, Land adjacent to the company's premises, which had cost €90,000 was sold for €160,000.
At the end of the year the company re-valued its Buildings at €800,000. The Company wishes to
incorporate this value in this years accounts.

(iii) Provide for debenture interest due, auditors fees €8,000, directors fees €50,000 and corporation tax
€85,000.

(iv) Included in administrative expenses is the receipt of€8,000 for patent royalties.
(v) Depreciation is to be provided for on Buildings at a rate of2% straight line and is to be allocated

20% on distribution costs and 80% on administrative expenses. There was no purchase or sale of
buildings during the year. Vehicles are to be depreciated at a rate of20% of cost.

(vi) The patent was acquired on 1/1/2003 for €90,000. It is being amortised over 9 years in equal instalments.
The amortisation to be included in Cost of Sales.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare the published Profit & Loss account for the year 3 l / 12/2007, in
accordance with the Companies Acts and appropriate accounting standards, showing the following notes:

I. Accounting policy note for Tangible fixed assets and stock.
2. Operating Profit
3. Financial fixed assets
4. Dividends
5. Tangible fixed assets.

(b) (i) State how a company would deal with a Contingent Liability which is possible but unlikely.

(50) 

(ii) What regulations must accountants observe when preparing financial statements for publication? (10)

(60 marks) 

Page Sof12 OVER-> 
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Question 4 

(a) 

Profit and Loss Account of Lemont PLC for the year ended 31/12/2007 

Turnover 
Cost of Sales 
Gross Profit 
Distribution Costs 
Administration Expenses 

Other operating income 
Operating Profit 
Investment Income 
Profit on sale of land 

Interest payable 
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 
Taxation 

Dividends paid 

Profit brought forward at 1/1/2007 
Profit carried forward at 31/12/2007 

II 

II 

WJ 
W2 

€ 
1,990,000 

I (1,103,000) 
887,000 

(302,600) 
I (236,400) , ' 

348,000 

71,000 I) 
419,000 

13,000 

I 70,000 .·· 
502,000 

c24.ooo> 11 
478,000 

<ss,ooo) 11 
393,000

(43,000 ■ 
350,000

50,000 

I 400.000 

Notes to the Accounts 

1. Accounting policy notes. II 
Tangible Fixed Assets 
Buildings were re-valued at the end of2007 and have been included in the accounts at their 
re-valued amount. 
Depreciation is calculated in order to write off the value or cost of tangible fixed assets over 
their estimated useful economic life as follows: 
Buildings 2% per annum straight line 
Delivery vans 2 0% of cost 
Stocks - Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower of 

cost and net realisable value. 

2. Operating Profit Ill 

3 

The operating profit is arrived at after charging: 
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 
Patent amortised 
Directors remuneration 
Auditors fees 

Financial Fixed Assets 
Quoted investments 
Unquoted Investments 

■ 

53,000 

10,000 

50,000

8,000

1/1/2007 
200,000

60,000

2 60,000

31/12/2007 
200,000

60,000

2 60,000

The market value of the quoted investments on 31/12/2007 was €220,000. 
The directors valuation of the unquoted investments on 3 l/12/2007 was €70,500
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4 Dividends m 
Ordinary dividends 
Paid 1 0.0c per share 35,000 

Preference dividends 
Paid 8.0c per share 8,000 43,000 

5 Tangible Fixed Assets � 
Land& 

Buildings Vehicles Total 
1/1/2007 740,000 200,000 940,000 

Disposal (90,000) (90,000) 
Revaluation surplus 150,000 150,000 
Value at 31/12/2007 800.000 200.000 1,000.000 

Depreciation 1/1/2007 41,000 38,000 79,000 
Depreciation charge for the year 13,000 40,000 53,000 

54,000 78,000 132,000 
Transfer on revaluation (54,000) (54,000) 

Depreciation Nil 78,000 78,000 

Net book value 1/1/2007 699,000 162,000 861,000 
Net book value 31/12/2007 800,000 122,000 922,000 

Workings 
Cost of sales 

Opening stock 65,000 
Purchases 1,250,000 
Closing stock (222,000) 
Patents amortisation 10,000 1,103,000 

Distribution costs 
As per Trial balance 260,000 
Depreciation Buildings 2,600 

Vehicles 40,000 302,600 
Administrative Expenses 

As per Trial balance 160,000 
Directors fees 50,000 
Auditors fees 8,000 
Patent Royalties 8,000 
Depreciation Buildings 80% 10,400 236,400 

Other Operating Income 
Rental 50,000 
Discount 13,000 
Royalties 8,000 71,000 

Investment Income 10,000 + 3,000 13,000 

(b) 

(i) When a Contingent Liability is possible but unlikely, it is not necessary to make provision in
the accounts. However, a note should show the nature of the liability, an estimate of the amount
and an opinion regarding the outcome. ■

(ii) Accountants must observe regulations laid down by: ■
The Companies Acts
The Financial Reporting council/ Accounting Standards Board
The Stock Exchange
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6. Published Accounts

Zodiac pie has an Authorised Capital of €950,000 divided into 650,000 Ordinary Shares at €1 each 
and 300,000 8% Preference shares at €1 each. The following Trial Balance was extracted from its 
books at 31/12/2008. 

Vehicles at cost 
Vehicles-Accumulated Dep. on 1/1/2008 
Investment income 
Buildings at cost 
Buildings -Accumulated Dep. on l /1/2008 
Debtors and Creditors 
7% Investments 
Stock at l /1/2008 
Patents at 1/1/2008 
Administrative expenses 
Distribution costs 
Purchases and Sales 
Rental income 
6% Debentures 2013/2014 
Profit on sale of land 
Bank 
VAT 

Dividends paid 
Profit and Loss at 1/1/2008 
Issued Capital 

Ordinary Shares 
Preference Shares 

Provision for bad debts 
Debenture interest paid 
Patent Royalties 

The following information is relevant: 

(i) Stock 31/12/2008 is €89,000

€ 
280,000 

860,000 

243,000 
320,000 
81,000 
28,000 

212,000 
198,000 

1,340,000 

62,900 

72,000 

15,000 

3.711.900 

€ 

I 12,000 
5,600 

52,800 
191,000 

2,005,000 
48,000 

300,000 
72,000 

66,000 

84,000 

600,000 
150,000 
14,500 

11,000 
3.711,900 

(ii) The Patent was acquired on 1/1/2004 for €84,000. It is being amortised over 6 years in equal
instalments. The amortisation is to be included in cost of sales.

(iii) Provide for debenture interest due, investment interest due, auditors fees €7,400, directors fees
€40,000 and corporation tax €62,000.

(iv) Depreciation is to be provided for on buildings, at a rate of 2% straight line and is to be allocated
40% distribution costs and 60% administrative expenses. There was no purchase or sale of buildings
during the year. Vehicles are to be depreciated at the rate of20% of cost.

(v) During the year land adjacent to the company's premises, which had cost €60,000 was sold for
€132,000. At the end of the year the company re-valued its buildings to €950,000. The company
wishes to incorporate this value in this year's accounts.

(vi) Included in administrative expenses is the receipt of €17,000 for discount.

You are required: 

(a) To prepare the published profit and loss account for the year 31/12/2008 and a balance sheet
as at that date in accordance with the Companies Acts and appropriate accounting standards
showing the following notes:

(b) 

1. Accounting policy note for tangible fixed assets and stock
2. Operating profit
3. Interest payable
4. Tangible fixed assets

(i) State three items of information that must be included in a Director's Report.
(ii) Explain the term "exceptional item" and give an example.

Page7of10 
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Ouestion6 

Profit and Loss Account of Zodiac PLC for year ended 31/12/2008 

Turnover 
Cost of Sales 
Gross Profit 
Distribution Costs 

Administrative Expenses 

Other Operating Income 
Operating Profit 
Investment income 
Profit on sale of land 

Interest payable 
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 
Taxation 

Dividend paid 

Profit brought forward at 1/1/2008 
Profit carried forward at 31/12/2008 

Workings 

Cost of Sales 81,000 + 1,340,000 + 14,000 -89,000 

Distribution Costs 198,000 + 6,880 + 56,000 

Administrative Expenses 212,000 + 7,400 + 40,000 + 10,320 + 17,000 

Other Operating Income 48,000 + 11,000 + 17,000 

Debtors 243,000 -14,500 + 16,800 

Other Creditors 7,400 + 40,000 + 3,000 

Investment Income 5,600 + 16,800 

Revaluation Reserve 90,000 + 52,800 + 17,200 

Taxation 62,000 + 66,000 

= 

= 

= 

= 

= 

= 

== 

= 

= 

€ 
2,005,000 

(1,346,000) 
659,000 

(260,880) 11 
398,120 

,2s6.720) rm 
111,400 
76.ooo rm

187,400 
22,400 II 
12.000 m 

281,800 
(18.000) 

I
" 

263,800 :,,(62,000) ·.
201,800 
(72,000) (�1 
129,800 

2�;:� lll 

1,346,000 

260,880 

286,720 

76,000 

245,300 

50,400 

22,400 

160,000 

128,000 
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Balance Sheet of Zodiac PLC as at 31/12/2008 

Fixed Assets 
Intangible Assets 
Tangible Assets 
Financial Assets 

Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors 
Bank 

Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year: 
Trade Creditors 
Taxation 
Other Creditors 

Net Current Assets 
Total assets less Current Liabilities 

89,000 

HI// 245,300 ••·· 
62.900 

191,000 ,-;
.
..
.. 128,000 '" 

50,400 ... 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than 1 year 
6% Debentures 

Capital and Reserves 
Issued shares 
Revaluation Reserve 
Profit carried forward 

Notes to the Accounts 

397,200 

(369,400) 

750,000

160,000 

213,800 

1. Accounting policy notes on Tangible Fixed Assets and Stock ■

27,800 

1,423.800 

300,000 ll 

1.123.800 

1,423.800 

Buildings were revalued at the end of 2008 and have been included in the accounts at their
revalued amount. Vehicles are shown at cost. Depreciation is calculated in order to write
off the value of the tangible assets over their estimated useful economic life, as follows:
Buildings 2% per annum straight line basis. 
Delivery vans 20% of cost. 
Stocks Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower of 

cost and net realisable value. 

2. Operating Profit ■
Operating profit is arrived at after charging;

Depreciation on Tangible Assets 
Patent amortised 
Directors remuneration 
Auditors fees 

73,200 

14,000 
40,000 

7,400 

1
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(b) 

3. Interest payable Ill
Interest payable on debentures (Repayable by 2013/2014) 18,000 

4. Tangible Fixed Assets■
Land &Buildings Vehicles Cost Total 

1/1/2008 920,000 280,000 1,200,000 
Disposal (60,000) (60,000) 
Revaluation surplus 31/12/2008 90,000 90,000 
Value at 31/12/2008 950,000 280.000 1,230.000 

Depreciation 1/1/2008 52,800 112,000 164,800 
Depreciation charge for year 17,200 56,000 73,200 

70,000 168,000 238,000 
Transfer on Revaluation {70,000} (70,000} 
Depreciation 31/12/2008 Nil 168,000 

Net Book Value 1/1/2008 867,200 168,000 1,035,200 
Net Book Value 31/12/2008 950,000 112,000 1,062,000 

(i) Directors Report II

A Directors Report must contain the following:

• The amount to be transferred to Reserves.
• A report of any changes in the nature of the company's business during the year.
• A fair review of the development of the business of the company during the year and

of the position at the end of the year.
• The principal activities of the company and any changes therein.
• Details of any important events affecting the company since the end of the year.
• Any likely future developments in the business.
• An indication of activities in the field of research and development.
• Significant changes in fixed assets.
• Details of own shares purchased.
■ A list of the company's subsidiaries and affiliates.
• Evaluation of the company's compliance with it's safety statement.
• Details of directors' share holdings and dealings during the year.

(ii) Exceptional Item II
This is a material item of significant size. It is a profit or loss that must be shown separately in
the Profit and Loss Account because of size.

Example - Profit or loss on sale of a fixed asset or large bad debt.

1
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3. Published Accounts

Marx pie has an authorised share capital of€800,000 divided into 600,000 ordinary shares at €1 each and 200,000
5% preference shares at €1 each. The following trial balance was extracted from its books at 31/12/2010:

Buildings at cost 
Buildings-Accumulated Depreciation on 1/1/2010 
Vehicles at cost 
Vehicles Accumulated Depreciation on l / l /2010 
Quoted Investments at cost (market value €160,000) 
Unquoted Investments at cost (director's value €50,000) 
Debtors and Creditors 
Stock 1/1/2010 
Patent 1/1/2010 
Administrative expenses 
Distribution costs 
Purchases and Sales 
Rental Income 
Profit on sale ofland 
Dividends paid 
Bank 
VAT 
6% Debentures 2015/2016 
Profit &Loss Account at 1/1/2010 
Investment income received - quoted 

unquoted 
Issued Capital 

Ordinary Shares 
5% Preference Shares 

Provision for Bad Debts 
Debenture Interest paid 
Discount 

The following infonnation is relevant: 

(i) Stock on 31/12/2010 is €80,000.

€ 
700,000 

220,000 

300,000 
80,000 

295,000 
72,000 
70,000 

240,000 
250,000 

1,150,000 

23,000 
78,000 

6,000 

3.484.000 

€ 

91,000 

8,000 

199,000 

1,880,000 
60,000 
55,000 

60,000 
400,000 
40,000 
5,000 
1,000 

450,000 
200,000 
25,000 

10,000 
3.484.000 

(ii) During the year, land adjacent to the company's premises, which had cost €120,000, was sold for €175,000.
At the end of the year the company revalued its buildings at €850,000. The company wishes to incorporate
this value in this years accounts.

(iii) Provide for debenture interest due, auditors' fees €10,000, directors' fees €60,000 and corporation tax
€80,000.

(iv) Included in administrative expenses is the receipt of€10,000 for patent royalties.
(v) Depreciation is to be provided for on buildings at a rate of2% straight line and is to be allocated

30% to distribution costs and 70% to administrative expenses. There was no purchase or sale of
buildings during the year. Vehicles are to be depreciated at a rate of20% of cost.

(vi) The patent was acquired on 1/1/2007 for €100,000. It is being amortised over 10 years in equal instalments.
The amortisation is to be included in cost of sales.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare the Published Profit and Loss account for the year 31/12/2010, in accordance with the
Companies Acts and appropriate accounting standards, showing the following notes:

1. Accounting policy note for tangible fixed assets and stock
2. Operating Profit
3. Financial fixed assets
4. Dividends
5. Tangible fixed assets.

(b) (i) State how a company should deal with a Contingent Liability which is probable.
(ii) Explain the difference between an auditor's qualified and unqualified report.

(48) 

()2) 

(60 marks) 
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Question3 

(a) 

Profit and Loss Account of Marx pie for the year ended 31/12/2010 

Turnover 
Cost of Sales Wl 

Gross Profit 
Distribution Costs W2 

Administrative Expenses W3 

Other operating income W4 

Operating Profit 
Investment Income ws 

Profit on sale of land

Interest payable 
Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Taxation

Dividends paid

Profit brought forward at 1/1/2010 

Profit carried forward at 31/12/2010 

*Penalties are applied where entries are in incorrect sequence.

Workings 
1. Cost of Sales 72,000 + I, 150,000 - 80,000 + 10,000

2. Distribution costs 250,000 + 4,200 + 44,000

3. Administrative Expenses 240,000 + 60,000 +10,000 + 10,000 + 9,800

4. Other Operating Income 60,000 + 10,000 + 10,000

5. Investment Income 5,000 + 1,000 

Note Depreciation - Buildings 2% (700,000) = 14,000
30% (14,000)
70% (14,000)

1,880,000 fl 
(1,152.000) . •.

= 

= 

= 

= 

= 

= 

= 

728,000 
(298.200) I 
(329,800) 
100,000 

80.000 ■
180,000

6,000 I 55,000 
241,000 
(24,000) 111 
217,000 
(80,000) II
137,000 
c23.ooo) II
114,000
40,000 Ii 154.000 

1,152,000

298,200

329,800 

80,000

6,000

4,200 

9,800 

Notes to the Accounts 

l. Accounting policy notes. ■ 
Tangible Fixed Assets 
Buildings were re-valued at the end of 2010 and have been included in the accounts at
their re-valued amount. Vehicles are shown at cost. 
Depreciation is calculated in order to write off the value or cost of tangible fixed assets
over their estimated useful economic life as follows:
Buildings 2% per annum straight line
Vehicles 20% of cost

Stocks - Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

•  1

183



2 

3 

4 

5 

(b) 

Operating Profit IJ 
The operating profit is arrived at after charging: 

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 
Patent amortised 
Directors remuneration 
Auditors fees 

Financial Fixed Assets II 
Quoted investments 
Unquoted Investments 

01/01/2010 
300,000 
80.000 

380,000 

The market value of the quoted investments on 31/12/2010 was €160,000. 

58,000 
10,000 
60,000 
10,000 

31/12/2010 
300,000 
80,000 

380.000 

The director's valuation of the unquoted investments on 31/12/2010 was €50,000 

Dividends II 
Ordinary dividends 
P-aid 2.89c per share 13,000 

Preference dividends 
Paid 5.0c per share 10,000 

Tangible Fixed Assets ■ 
Land & Buildings Vehicles cost Total 

€ € € 
01/01/2010 820,000 220,000 1,040,000 
Disposal (120,000) (120,000) 
Revaluation surplus 150,000 150,000 
Value at 31/12/2010 850,000 220,000 1,070.000 
Depreciation 01/01/2010 91,000 8,000 99,000 
Depreciation charge for the year 14,000 44,000 58.000 

105,000 52,000 157,000 
Transfer on revaluation (105,000) (105,000} 
Depreciation 31/12/2010 Nil 52,000 52,000 

Net book value 01/01/2010 729,000 212,000 941,000 
Net book value 31/12/2010 850.000 168.000 1,018.000 

(i) When a Contingent Liability is probable, the estimated amount should be provided for
in the accounts and a note should show the nature of the loss. Ill

(ii) Unqualified and Qualified Auditor's Report ■
An unqualified auditor's report is often referred to as a clean report. A report is
unqualified when the auditor in his/her opinion is satisfied that the following apply:

• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the year and of it's profit and loss account for the year.

• the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts.
• all the information necessary for the audit was available
• the information given by the directors is consistent with the financial statements
• the net assets are more than 50% of the called up capital

A qualified auditor's report is when an auditor in his/her opinion is not satisfied 
or is unable to conclude that all or any of the above apply: 

The report will state the elements of the accounts or of the director's report that are 
unsatisfactory. 
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6. Published Accounts

Moorfields pie has an Authorised Capital of €850,000 divided into 550,000 Ordinary shares at €1
each and 300,000 6% Preference shares at €1 each. The following Trial Balance was extracted
from its books at 31/12/2012.

Vehicles at cost. ....................................................................... . 
Vehicles Accumulated Dep. on l/l /2012 ............................. . 
Investment income .................................................................. . 
Buildings at cost ...................................................................... . 
Buildings -Accumulated Dep. on 1/1/2012 ........................... . 
Debtors and Creditors .............................................................. . 
4% Investments ....................................................................... . 
Stock at l /1/2012 ..................................................................... . 
Patents at 1/1/2012 .................................................................. . 
Administrative expenses ......................................................... . 
Distribution costs ..................................................................... . 
Purchases and Sales ................................................................. . 
Rental income .......................................................................... . 
5% Debentures 2017/2018 ...................................................... . 
Profit on sale of land ............................................................... . 
Bank ........................................................................................ . 

VAT ......................................................................................... . 
Dividends paid ......................................................................... . 
Profit and Loss at 1/1/2012 ..................................................... . 
Issued Capital 

Ordinary Shares ................................................................ . 
Preference Shares .............................................................. . 

Provision for bad debts ........................................................... .. 
Debenture interest paid ............................................................ . 
Patent Royalties ...................................................................... . 

The following information is relevant: 
(i) Stock 31/12/2012 is €85,000

€ 
260,000 

880,000 

240,000 
300,000 
72,000 
36,000 

206,000 
194,000 

1,260,000 

57,800 

50,000 

8,000 

3.563.800 

€ 

105,000 
4,200 

50,500 
184,000 

2,040,600 
64,000 

200,000 
80,000 

74,000 

85,000 

500,000 
150,000 
12,500 

14,000 
3,563.800 

(ii) The Patent was acquired on 1/1/2008 for €60,000. It is being amortised over IO years in equal
instalments. The amortisation is to be included in cost of sales.

(iii) Provide for debenture interest due, investment interest due, auditors fees €6,500, directors fees
€35,000 and corporation tax €60,000.

(iv) Depreciation is to be provided for on buildings, at a rate of 2% straight line and is to be allocated
40% distribution costs and 60% administrative expenses. There was no purchase or sale of
buildings during the year. Vehicles are to be depreciated at the rate of 15% of cost.

(v) During the year land adjacent to the company's premises, which had cost €70,000 was sold for
€150,000. At the end of the year the company re-valued its buildings to €970,000. The
company wishes to incorporate this value in this year's accounts.

(vi) Included in administrative expenses is the receipt of€18,500 for discount.

You are required: 

(a) To prepare the published profit and loss account for the year 31/12/2012 and a balance sheet
as at that date in accordance with the Companies Acts and appropriate accounting standards
showing the following notes:

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

(b) (i)

(ii) 

Accounting policy note for tangible fixed assets and stock 
Operating profit 
Interest payable 
Tangible fixed assets (85) 

Name the bodies/institutions that regulate the production, content and presentation 
of company financial statements. 
What is an Audit? Explain a qualified auditor's report. {15) 

(100 marks) 
1
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Question 6 

(a) Profit and Loss Account of Moorfields pie for the year ended 31/12/2012

Turnover
Cost of sales 
Gross profit 
Distribution costs 
Administrative expenses 

Other Operating income 
Operating profit 
Investment income 
Profit on sale of land 

Interest payable 
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 
Dividend paid 
Profit retained for year 
Profit brought forward at l/1/20 12 
Profit carried forward at 31/12/2012 

WJ 

W2 
W3 

W4 

W5 

W6 

Penalties: Up to 5 marks for incorrect sequence 

Balance Sheet ofMoorsfields pie as at 31/12/2012 

Fixed Assets 
Intangible Assets 
Tangible Assets 
Financial Assets 

Current Assets 
Stock 
Debtors 

€ 
W7 

W8 

€ 

Bank 

85,000 I235,300 

57,800 378,1 00 

Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 

Trade Creditors 
Taxation 
Other Creditors 

Net current assets 
Total assets less current liabilities 

W9 

WtO 

184,000 

134,000 

43,500

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than 1 year 
5% Debentures 

Capital and Reserves 
Issued shares 
Revaluation Reserve W J 1 
Profit carried forward 

I (361,500} 

650,000

158,100

424,500

I 

€ 
2,040,600 

1
, 

(1,253,000) 
787,600

(240,040) 1··· . 
(276,560) 
271,000 

96,500 ■ 
367,500

12,000 

I 80,000 

459,500

(10.000) I
449,500

(60,000) 
389,500

cso,ooo> 11 
339,500

85,000 

I 424.500 · '. 

30,000 I
1,086,000 

300,000 

1,4 I 6,000 

16,600 
1,432.600 

200,000 ■ 

1,232,600

1,432,600 
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Notes to the Accounts 

1. Accounting policy notes for tangible fixed assets and stocks II 
Tangible fixed assets 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Buildings were revalued at the end of 2012 and have been included in the accounts at their revalued 
amount. Vehicles are shown at cost . 
Depreciation is calculated in order to write off the value or cost of tangible fixed assets over their 
estimated useful economic life as follows: 
Buildings 2% per annum straight line 
Delivery vans 15% of cost 

Stocks Stocks are valued on a First in First out basis (FIFO) at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value. 

Operating Profit ■ 
The operating profit is arrived at after charging: 

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 
Patent amortised 
Directors remuneration 
Auditors fees 

Interest payable■ 
Interest payable on Debentures [Repayable during years 20l 7/2018] 

Tangible fixed Assets II 
Land& 

Assets Buildings Vehicles 
Value 1/1/2012 950,000 260,000 
Disposal (70,000) 
Revaluation surplus 90,000 
Value 31/12/2012 21q.ooo 260�000 
Depreciation: 
Balance 1/1/2012 50,500 105,000 
Depreciation charge for year 17,600 39,000 

68,100 144,000 
Transfer on revaluation (68,100) 

-

Depreciation 31/12/2012 Nil 144,000 

Net Book Value 1/1/2012 899,500 155,000 
Net Book Value 31/12/2012 970,000 116,000 

56,600 
6,000 

35,000 
6,500 

10,000 

Total 
1,210,000 
(70,000) 

90,000 
1,ll!:I"OOQ 

155,500 
56,600 

212,100 
(68,100) 
}44.000 

1,054,500 
1,086,000 
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(b) 

Workings: 

Wt Cost of Sales 72,000 + 1,260,000 • 85,000 + 6,000 1,253,000 

W2 Distribution Costs 194,000 + 7,040 + 39,000 240,040 

W3 Administrative Expenses 206,000 +6,500 +35,000 + 10,560 + 18,500 276,560 

W4 Other operating income 64,000 + 14,000 + 18,500 96,500 

ws Investment Income 4,200 + 7,800 12,000 

W6 Debenture interest payable 5% X 200,000 10,000 

Debenture interest due 10,000 · 8,000 2,000 

W7 Patents 60,000 6,000. 36,000 - 6,000 := 30,000 
10 

W8 Debtors 240,000 - 12,500 + 7,800 235,300 

W9 Taxation 74,000 + 60,000 134,000 

W 10 Other creditors 2,000 + 6,500 + 35,000 43,500 

Wll Revaluation Reserve 90,000 + 50,500 + 17,600 158,100 

Bodies/Institutions II 
• The Government Legislation

• The European Union Directives

• Accounting Standards Board - FRS's and SSA P's

• The Stock Exchange - Listing Rules

What is an Audit? II 
An audit is an examination of the financial statements of an enterprise by an appointed auditor. The 
Audit is conducted by an auditor who is independent. The auditor expresses an opinion and certifies 
whether the accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the business. 
The Companies Acts require the auditor to certify that the accounts give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the business. 

A qualified Auditor's Report ■ 
A qualified auditor's report is when an auditor in his/her opinion is not satisfied or is unable to 
conclude that all or any of the following apply: 
• The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the

end of the year.
• The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts.

• All the information necessary for the audit was available.
• The information given by the directors is consistent with the financial statements.

• The net assets are more than 50% of the called up capital.

The report will state the elements of the accounts that are unsatisfactory. 
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3. Published Accounts

Danner pie has an authorised share capital of€900,000 divided into 700,000 ordinary shares at €1 each and
200,000 4% preference shares at €1 each. The following trial balance was extracted from its books at 31/12/2013:

Buildings at cost .................................................................. . 
Buildings - Accumulated Depreciation on O 1/01/2013 ..... . 
Vehicles at cost .................................................................... . 
Vehicles Accumulated Depreciation on 01/01/2013 ....... . 
Quoted Investments at cost (market value €110,000) ........ .. 
Unquoted Investments at cost (directors' value €60,000) .. . 
Debtors and Creditors .......................................................... . 
Stock 01/01/2013 ................................................................. . 
Patent 01/01/2013 ................................................................ . 
Administrative expenses ..................................................... . 
Distribution costs ................................................................. . 
Purchases and Sales ............................................................. . 
Rental income .................................................................... . 
Profit on sale of land ........................................................... . 
Dividends paid ..................................................................... . 
Bank .................................................................................... . 
VAT ..................................................................................... . 
5% Debentures 2018/2019 .................................................. . 
Profit & Loss account at 01/01/2013 ................................. . 
Investment income received quoted ................................. . 

unquoted ........................... . 
Issued Capital 

Ordinary Shares .......................................................... .. 
4% Preference Shares .................................................. . 

Provision for bad debts ...................................................... . 
Debenture interest paid ...................................................... .. 
Discount .............................................................................. . 

The following information is relevant: 
(i) Stock on 31/12/2013 is €90,000.

€ 
750,000 

240,000 

250,000 
70,000 

290,000 
82,000 
84,000 

230,000 
260,000 

1,000,500 

22,000 
81,000 

5,000 

3,364.500 

€ 

81,000 

25,000 

198,000 

1,770,000 
30,000 
20,000 

65,000 
350,000 
41,000 
2,000 
1,500 

550,000 
200,000 
20,000 

11,000 

3,364.500 

(ii) During the year, land adjacent to the company's premises, which had cost €110,000 was sold
for €130,000. At the end of the year the company revalued its buildings at €900,000. The
company wishes to incorporate this value in this year's accounts.

(iii) Provide for debenture interest due, auditors' fees €15,000, directors' fees €50,000 and
corporation tax €90,000.

(iv) Included in administrative expenses is the receipt of €3,000 for patent royalties.
(v) Depreciation is to be provided for on buildings at a rate of 2% straight line and is to be allocated

25% to distribution costs and 75% to administrative expenses. There was no purchase or sale of
buildings during the year. Vehicles are to be depreciated at a rate of 20% of cost.

(vi) The patent was acquired on 01/01/2010 for€120,000. It is being amortised over 10 years in
equal instalments. The amortisation is to be included in cost of sales.

Required: 
(a) Prepare the Published Profit & Loss account for the year 31/12/2013, in accordance with the

Companies Acts and appropriate accounting standards, showing the following notes:
1. Accounting policy note for tangible fixed assets and stock
2. Operating Profit
3. Financial fixed assets

4. Tangible fixed assets. (51) 

(b) (i)
(ii)

State three items of information that must be included in a Directors' Report. 
Explain the term 'Exceptional Item' and use an example to support your answer. (9) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 3 

(a) 

(b) 

Profit and Loss Account of Danner pie for the year ended 31/12/2013 

Turnover 
Cost of sales 
Gross profit 
Distribution costs 
Administrative expenses 

Other Operating income 
Operating profit 
Investment income 
Profit on sale of land 

Interest payable 
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation II 
Taxation 

Dividends paid 

Profit brought forward at 1/1/2013 
Profit carried forward at 31/12/2013 

Workings 
1. Cost of Sales (82,000+1,000,500 90,000 +12,000)
2. Distribution costs 260,000 + 3,750 + 48,000
3. Administrative expenses 230,000 + 50,000 +15,000 + 3,000 + 11,250
4. Other Operating income 30,000 + 3,000 + 11,000
5. Investment income 2,000 + 1,500
6. Dep. Buildings 2% x 750,000 15,000. 25% = 3,750. 75% = 11,250

€ 
1,110,000 11 
1.004.500 ■ 

765,500 
(311,750)■ 
(309.250) 111 
144,500 
44.ooo II

188,500 
3,500 IJ 

20,000 m 
212,000 
01.soo) m
194,500
(90,000) 11 
104,500 
c22,ooo) 11 
82,500 
41,000 II{ 

123.500 11 

1,004,500 
311,750 

= 309,250 
44,000 

= 3,500 

7. Dep. Vehicles 20% x 240,000 48,000 

(i) •

A Director's Report must include the following:
• The amount to be transferred to reserves.
• A report of any changes in the nature of the company's business during the year.

I 

• A fair review of the development of the business of the company during the year and of
the position at the end of the year.

• The principal activities of the company and any changes therein.
• Details of any important events affecting the company since the end of the year.
• Any likely future developments in the business.
• An indication of activities in the field of research and development.
• Significant changes in fixed assets.
• Details of own shares purchased.
• A list of the company's subsidiaries and affiliates.
• Evaluation of company's compliance with its safety statement.
• Details of directors' share holdings and dealings during the year.

(ii) ■
Exceptional Item: This is a material item of significant size. It is a profit or loss
that must be shown separately in the profit and loss account because of size.
Example: Profit or loss on sale of fixed asset or large bad debt .

•  1
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Notes to the Accounts 

I. Accounting policy notes. II
Tangible Fixed Assets

Buildings were re-valued at the end of 2013 and have been included in the accounts at their re

valued amount.

Depreciation is calculated in order to write off the value or cost of tangible fixed assets over their

estimated useful economic life as follows:

Buildings 2% per annum straight line 

Delivery vans 20% of cost 

Stocks - Stocks are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower of cost and net 

realisable value. 

2. Operating Profit II

3 

4 

The operating profit is arrived at after charging:

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 

Patent amortised 

Directors remuneration 

Auditors fees 

Financial Fixed Assets ll 
Quoted investments 

Unquoted Investments 

1/1/2013 
250,000 

70.000 

280.000 

63,000 

12,000 

50,000 

15,000 

31/12/2013 
250,000 

70.000 

280,000 

The market value of the quoted investments on 31/12/2013 was €110,000. 

The director's valuation of the unquoted investments on 31/12/2013 was €60,000. 

Tangible Fixed Assets ■ 
Land & Buildings Vehicles cost 

Assets 

Value 1/1/2013 860,000 240,000 

Disposal (110,000) 

Revaluation surplus 150,000 

Value at 31/12/2013 900.000 240.000 
Depreciation 

Balance 1/1/2013 81,000 25,000 

Depreciation charge for the year 15,000 48,000 

96,000 73,000 
Transfer on revaluation (96,000) 
Depreciation � 

Net book value 1/1/2013 779,000 215,000 

Net book value 31/12/2013 900,000 167,000 

Total 

1,100,000 

(110,000) 

150,000 

1,140,000 

106,000 

63,000 

169,000 

(96,000) 

� 

994,000 

1,067,000 
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Net value at 01/01/03 

Net value at 31-12-03 

708,000 (760000-52000) 

900,000 

CONTROL ACCOUNTS (60 mark 

question) 
This topic has appeared almost every second year and last appeared in 2011. 

In this issue we will look at a fully worked Debtors control account and in next 

months issue we will look at a Creditors control question and answer 

In large firms a control or summary account is kept for the large number of debtors 

and creditors who trade with the business. In this issue we will focus on debtors 

control accounts. 

The totals of the day books are posted to the summary or control account and each 

individual item is posted to the individual personal account. 

The ideal situation is that the accurate bookkeeper will have a control account 
balance = the sum of the individual balances from the personal accounts. 

We will look at a simple debtors transaction 

May 3rd We sold goods on credit to Mr. A for (10. 

MaySth We sold goods on credit to Mr. B for (15. 

May 6th We sold goods on credit to Mr. C for (20. 

What happens to these entries. 

Firstly, all three are entered in the sales day book 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Sales day book € 

3-5-04 Mr A 10 

5-5-04 Mr B 15 

8-5-04 Mr C 20 

Total credit sales 45 

The total of the sales book is transferred to the sales a I c and to the debtors control 

account as follows: 

131-05-04 Credit sales €45

Sales A\C 

131-5-04 Sundry debtors

Debtors Control A \C 

The same 3 entries are posted to the 3 individual debtors accounts. 

I 03-05-04 Credit sales €10

I 05-05-04 Credit sales €15

I 08-05-04 Credit sales €20 

Mr.A A\C 

Mr.B A\C 

Mr.C A\C 

€45 

The control account tells us that the debtors collectively owe our firm €45. 

The sum of the individual personal accounts tells us that we are owed 10 + 15 +20 = 

45 

REMEMBER that the Debtors Control account is a summary of what is contained in 

the individual accounts. 

1. Entries therefore go on the same sides.

2. Cash Sales should not affect debtors

3. Bills Payable do not affect debtors.

A fully worked example 

Q3 Debtors control account 

The Debtors Ledger Control Account of Richie Ryan showed the following balances -

€43448dr and €848cr. on 31-12-06. These figures did not agree with the schedule 

(list) of debtors balances extracted on the same date. An examination of the books 

revealed the following: 
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(i) Ryan had sent an invoice to a customer for €630. This had been entered

in the appropriate day book as €360. However, when posting from this

book to the ledger, no entry had been made in the personal account.

(ii) Interest amounting to €87, had been charged to a customer's overdue

account and entered correctly in the books. Following a complaint by the

customer this charge was reduced to €60 but this reduction had not been

entered in the books.

(iii) A customer's account had been credited with cash sales of €165.

(iv) Discount disallowed to a customer €58 had been treated as discount

allowed in the discount account, but entered correctly in the personal

account.

(v) A credit note was sent to a customer for €241. No entry had been made

in the returns book but €41 was debited to the debtors account.

(vi) Bills payable €600 had been entered on the debit side of the debtor's

account.

(vii) A credit note for €90 was sent to a customer and entered in the books.

However, the accounts clerk forgot to deduct a restocking charge of 30%.

When the error was realised the clerk immediately sent another credit

note for €63 and debited this to the debtor's account.

You are required to show the following: 

(a) Adjusted Debtors Ledger Control Account.

(b) Adjusted Schedule of Debtors showing the original balance.

SOLUTION 

There are 7 different errors and we will put the control workings on the left side and 

the list of debtors workings on the right side. In the middle we will have a target 

figure e.g. if we sell goods on credit for €300,then the target figure will be+ €300 as 

debtors owe us €300 MORE.

Control List 

+300
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The figures in bold are the original entries. If the control, list and target figure match 
up we are correct. 

+ 

{i} Ryan had sent an invoice to a customer for €630. This had been entered
in the appropriate day book as €360. However, when posting from this
book to the ledger, no entry had been made in the personal account.

Answer 
Entered in the day book as 360 means entered in the control account as 360 but 
we are told that no entry had been made in the personal account. 

Control + 

No entry 
made yet 

List 

What is the target figure? 
"Invoice sent" means that we sold goods on credit for €630.

Debtor now owes us €630 more. 
Target figure is+ €630.

The corrections are in italics

The details in the corrected control account and corrected list will be "sales" 

+ Control + List
360 

I 
170 

+630

(ii} Interest amounting to €87, had been charged to a customer's overdue 
account. Following a complaint by the customer this charge was reduced 
to €60 but this reduction had not been entered in the books. 

If we charge interest, debtors owe us more. 

+ Control + List 

Following a complaint the interest is reduced to 60. 
1

195



The target figure will be +60 
Corrections are in italics

+ Control
27 

+ List

+60

(iii} A customer's account had been credited with cash sales of €165. 

Note Cash sales do not affect debtors balances in the control or in the list. 

+ Control + list 

27 

165 

The customer's account means the list. 
Cash sales do not affect debtors so the target figure will be 0 
+ Control + 

0 

List-
165 

(iv} Discount disallowed to a customer €58 had been treated as discount 

allowed in the discount account, but entered correctly in the personal 

account. 

Only the control account is wrong as we are told that the personal (list) is ok. 
The discount disallowed was entered as discount allowed in the discount account. 
This was posted to the" owe less "side of control. 

+ Control + 

58 

Discount disallowed means that debtors will owe us more. 
Target figure = +58 

+ Control 
116 I 
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+58

(v) A credit note was sent to a customer for €241. No entry had been made

in the returns book but €41 was debited to the debtors account.

If we send a credit note it represents sales returns causing debtors to owe us less. 

As the control account depends on day book totals our control account has no entry. 

The debtors account (list) was debited with 41. 

+ Control + List 

The target figure will be -241 as the debtors returned goods to us. 

+ Control + List 

241 282 

-241

Bills payable €600 had been entered on the debit side of a debtors account.(list) 

Bills payable do not affect debtors. 

The target figure will be 0. 

+ Control + List

600 

0 

(vi) A credit note for €90 was sent to a customer and entered in the books.

However, the accounts clerk forgot to deduct a restocking charge of

30%. When the error was realised the clerk immediately sent another

credit note for €63 and debited this to the debtor's account.
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A credit note sent means sales returns of 90 causing debtors to owe us less and this 

was entered correctly. 

We apply a restocking charge of 30% which causes debtors to owe us more. 

The clerk then debited the debtor account {list) with 63 

+ Control + 

90 

Sales returns cause debtors to owe us 90 less. 

A restocking charge causes debtors to owe us 27 more (30% of 90) 

The target figure will be -90+27= -63 

+ Control + 

90 

-63

Remember original entries are in bold.

Corrections are in italics.

Balance B/D 

Credit sales 

Discount Disallowed 

Sales returns 

Schedule of debtors 

Original balance 

Add Credit sales 

Cash sales error 

42,689 

Less Interest reduction 

Sales returns 
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43,448 Balance B/D 

270 Interest reduction 

116 Sales returns 

27 Balance c/d 

43,861 

27 

282 

list 

list 

630 

165 

90 

90 

36 

848 

27 

241 

42,745 

43,861 
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Bills payable error 

Sales returns 

Balance as per control 

600 

CONTROL ACCOUNTS (60 mark 

question) 

939 

42,745 

This topic has appeared almost every second year and last appeared in 2011 

In this issue we will look at a fully worked Creditors control account from that 2011 

paper 

In large firms a control or summary account is kept for the large number of creditors 

who trade with the business. In this issue we will focus on creditors control accounts. 

The totals of the day books are posted to the summary or control account and each 

individual item is posted to the individual personal account. 

The ideal situation is that the accurate bookkeeper will have a control account 

balance = the sum of the individual balances from the personal accounts. 

We will look at a simple creditors transaction 

May 3rd We bought goods on credit to Mr. X for €10. 

May5th We sold goods on credit to Mr. Y for €15. 

May 6
th 

We sold goods on credit to Mr. Z for €20. 

What happens to these entries. 

Firstly, all three are entered in the Purchases day book 

Purchases day book 

3-5-06 Mr X

5-5-06 MrY

8-5-06 Mr Z

Total credit Purchases 

€ 
10 

15 

20 

45 

The total of the Purchases book is transferred to the Purchases a I c and to the 

Creditors control account as follows: 

PURCHASES A\C 

131-05-06 Sundry Creditors 451
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CREDITORS Control A \C 

1
31-05-06 Credit Purchases

The same 3 entries are posted to the 3 individual creditors accounts. 
Mr.XA\C 

1
3-5-06 Credit Purchases

Mr.Y A\C 

1
5-5-06 Credit Purchases

Mr.ZA\C 

1
8-5-06 Credit Purchases

The control account tells us that we collectively owe creditors €45. 

45 

The sum of the individual personal accounts tells us that we owe 10 + 15 +20 = 45

15 

REMEMBER that the Creditors Control account is a summary of what is contained in 
the individual accounts. 

1. Entries therefore go on the same sides.
2. Cash Purchases should not affect Creditors
3. Bills Receivable do not affect Creditors

A fully worked example 

SOLUTION 

There are 7 different errors and we will put the control workings on the left side and 
the list of Creditors workings on the right side. In the middle we will have a target 
figure e.g. if we buy goods on credit for €500,then the target figure will be+ €500 as 
we owe creditors €500 MORE.

Creditors Control Creditors List 

I
500

+500 I
500
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Cnditors Control Account 

The Creditors Ledger Control Account ofN_ Nolan showed the follm.\ijng balmces -€62, 125 er and 
€772 dron31/12/2004. These figures did not agree with the Schedule (list) ofCreditors' Balances 
e.'l.1racted on the same date. An examination of the books revealed the following: 

(i) An invoice received from T. Mw:phy showing the purchase of goods for €1,200 less trade
discount 20% had been entered correctly in the appropriate day book but had not been
posted to the peri;onal account

(ii) A credit note was rec.ei,ted from a supplier for €277. Tiie only entJ:y made in the books ·was
€27 credited to a creditor's account.

(iii) A creditor bad charged Nolan interest of€85 on an overdue account Tiie only entty made
in the books for this interest bad been €25 debited to the creditor's account. After a
complaint by Nolan this charge bad been reduced to €45 but this reduction had not been
reflected in the boob

(iv) Cash purchases by N. Nolan of€760 had been debited to a supplier's account.

(v) Nolan had returned goods €480 to a supplier and entered this correctly in the books.
However, a credit note amved showing a deduction of 100/4 as a restocking charge. Tiie
total amount of this credit note was credited ro the creditor's account but no otberentJ:y was
made in the books.

(vi) Discount disallowed by a supplier of €170 bad bttn treated as discount received in the
books.

You are 1·equired to: 

(a) Prepare the Adjusted Creditors Ledgtt Control Account
(b) Prepare the Adjusted Schedule of Creditors showing the original balance.
( c) Explain why Creditors' Control Accounts: are prepared.

An invoice received from T. Mmphy showing the purchase of goods for €1,200 less trade 
discount 20% had been entered correctly in the appropriate day book but had not been 
posted to the personal account 

Answer 

Entered in the day book as €1200 less 20% means entered in the control account 

as €960 but we are told that no entry had been made in the personal account. 

Control + 

960 

What is the target figure? 

No entry 

made yet 

List 

"Invoice received" means that we bought goods on credit for €1200 less 20% 

discount 

We now owe €960 more. 

Target figure is+ €960 

The corrections are in italics
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The details in the corrected control account and corrected list will be "credit 

purchases" 

Control + 

960 

+960

A credit note was received :from a supplier for 
€27 credited to a creditor's account 

Control + 

List 

1960 

The only entry made in the books \Vas 

List 

+ 

+ 

27 

A credit note received means that we owe €277 less to creditors but as things stand 

our control has no entry and our list shows that we owe €27 more. We must fix the 

error and put in the correct figure of €277 

Control + List + 

277 304 27 

-€277 

A creditor bad clmged Nolan interest of €85 on an overdue aceotm.t. The only entry made 
in the books for this interest had been €25 debited to the creditor's account. After a 
complaint by Nolan this charge had been reduced to €45 but this reduction bad not been 
reflected in the books. 

We were charged €85 interest causing us to owe MORE

The only entry made was €25 on the debit of the LIST which incorrectly means that 

we owe less. 

Control + List + 
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Then we are told that the interest was REDUCED to €45 but not yet recorded. 

We need to show that OVERALL we owe €45 more as a result of the adjusted interest 

Control + List + 

45 70 

+€45 

Cashpmcbases by N. Nolan of€760 had been debited to a supplier's account 

Note Cash Purchases do not affect Creditors balances in the control or in the list. 

Control + List 

The suppliers account means the list. 
Cash Purchases do not affect Creditors so the target figure will be 0 
+ Control + List-

+ 

76
0 

I 

760 

0 
Nolan had retumed goods €480 to a supplier and entered this correctly in the books. 
However. a credit note arrived showing a deduction of l 0% as a restocking charge.. The 
total amount of this credit note \\<as credited to the creditor's account but: no other entry was 
made in the books. 

We returned goods €480 and entered this correctly in the books. 
Control + 
480 

List 
480 

+ 

A restocking charge means that we are penalised and instead of our bill falling by ,
€480, it goes back up by €48 (10% of €480) 
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Overall we owe €432 less as a result of the return and this will be our target figure. 

We entered the total of the new credit note €480 less 10% = €432 on the credit side 

of creditors. 

Control + List + 

432 

At the moment we owe €480 less in the control and in our list we have a -€480 and a 

+(432. 

Overall our list says - €48. 

We correct the control and list as follows remembering to maintain our target figure 

Control + List + 

48 432 

-(432 

Discount disallo\1t'ed by a supplier of €170 had been treated as discount received in the 
books. 

Discount received means that we owe creditors less and was recorded as follows 

Control + List + 

17
0 I 17

0 I 
It should have been discount disallowed which is the opposite to discount received. 

If we double €170 and put it on the owe more side we will fix the problem. 

It affects both the control and the list as the question tells us originally entered "in 

the books" 

Control + List + 

340 340 
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All the fresh entries are in italics and are put into the corrected Creditors Control 

and/ or the corrected list of Creditors as follows. 

The marks beside the entries represent the marks awarded for each entry. 

Adjusted Creditors Control .Attount 

€ 

Balmcebld 7118 Balancehld 

Creditmi(e (n) 2770 Intei-est 

Balancecld 61,281 lwtcd;:ingclmp 
Discmm:t Disallowed 

Balmcecld 

Wl2 

Balance hid 772 B�b/d 

(iii) 

(v) 

(ls"i) 

€ 

62,125 0 
45 e 

4s e 

340 e 

772 0 

Wl2 

62,2U 
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2. Debtors Control Account

The Debtors Ledger Control Account of J. Forrester showed the following balances - €30,000 dr and
€530 er on 31/12/2006. These figures did not agree with the Schedule (List) of Debtors' Balances
extracted on the same date. An examination of the books revealed the following:

(i) Discount disallowed to a customer €46 had been treated as discount allowed in the discount
account.

(ii) Interest amounting to €90, charged to a customer's overdue account, had been posted to the
interest account as €110. Following a complaint by the customer this was reduced to €40.
This reduction had not been entered in the books.

(iii) Cash sales €1,600 and credit sales €820 had both been entered by Forrester on the credit
of the customer's account.

(iv) A credit note was sent to a customer for €520. The only entry made in the books was €52
debited to the customer's account.

(v) An invoice sent by Forrester to a customer for €1,560 had been entered in the appropriate
day book as €1,650. When posting from this book to the ledger no entry had been made in
the customer's account.

(vi) Forrester had accepted sales returns €300 from a customer and entered this correctly in the
books. The accounts clerk sent out a credit note showing a restocking charge of I 0% of
sales price but made the necessary adjustment only in the customer's account. Later this
charge was reduced to 4% but this reduction was not reflected in the accounts.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare the Adjusted Debtors Ledger Control Account.

(b) Prepare the Adjusted Schedule of Debtors showing the original balance.

(c) Explain: (i) Contra item.
(ii) How 'Opening Balance €530' above could arise.

Page3 oflO 

(22) 

(30) 

(8) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 2 - solution 

Adjusted Debtors Ledger Control Account 

Balance b/d 
Discount disallowed (i)
Restocking charge ( vi) 
Balance c/d 

Balance b/d 

€ 
3 0,000

1 92
12

530 

�
29,424

Balance bid 

Interest (ii) 
Credit note (iv) 
Sales overstated (v)
Balance c/d 

Balance b/d 

Schedule of Debtors Accounts Balances 

Balance as per list of debtors 

Add Sales cash and credit error 
Sales 

Deduct Interest 
Credit note 
Reduction in charge 

Net Balance as per adjusted Control Account

(c) 

(i) Contra Item ■

(iii)
(v) 

(ii)
(iv) 
(vi) 

€ 

3,240

11,560 

50

1 
572 
ll 

€ 
530

1
·. 70 

520 

90
29,424
�

530 

€ 
24,734 ■

4,800 

29,534

640 
28,894■

A contra item is an offset of a debtor against a creditor where debtor and creditor are the same
person 

(ii) Opening Balance €530 ■

• A full payment of a debt followed by a credit note (returns or reduction)
• Over payment of a debt
• Full payment followed by discount
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2. Creditors Control Account

The Creditors Ledger Control Account of K O'Shea showed the following balances -€17,550 er and
€630 dr on 31/12/2007. These figures did not agree with the Schedule (List) of Creditors' Balances
extracted on the same date. An examination of the books revealed the following

(i) K O'Shea had received an invoice from a supplier for€510. This had been entered in the
appropriate day-book as €570. However, when posting from this book to the ledger, no entry had
been made in the personal account.

(ii) A credit note was received from a supplier for€ 120. The only entry made in the books was
€102 credited to a creditor's account.

(iii) A creditor had charged K O'Shea interest of €76 on an overdue account. The only entry
made in the books for this interest had been €67 credited to the creditor's account. After a
complaint by K O'Shea this charge had been reduced to €50 but this reduction had not been
reflected in the books.

(iv) Cash purchases by K O'Shea of€140 had been debited to a supplier's account.

(v) K O'Shea had returned goods €110 to a supplier and entered this correctly in the books.
However, a credit note arrived showing a deduction of 10% as a restocking charge. The
total amount of this credit note was debited to the creditor's account and €90 was
entered on the incorrect side of the nominal ledger.

(vi) Discount disallowed by a supplier of €32 had been treated as discount received in the books.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare the Adjusted Creditors Ledger Control Account.

(b) Prepare the Adjusted Schedule of Creditors showing the original balance.

(c) Outline the advantages of Control Accounts to a firm.

(24) 

(30) 

(6) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 2 

Note: In the case of candidates taking the Irish version of the paper: 

Where a candidate prepares a Debtors Control Account as a result of the translation error in 
Section I, Question 2, part (a) of the Irish version of the paper, allow allocated marks for 
candidate's response to this part of the question where the correct figure or part of the correct 
computation is applied. 

(a) 

Adjusted Creditors Control Account 

Balance b/d Balance b/d 
Invoice (i) 60 Interest (iii) 
Credit Note (ii)

630

1 120 Discount disallowed (vi) 
Credit Note (v) 79 Balance c/d 
Balance c/d 17,405 

� 
Balance bid 630 Balance b/d 

(b) 

Schedule of Creditors Accounts Balances 

Balance as per list of debtors 
Add Invoice 

Discount disallowed 
Cash purchases 
Restocking charge 

(i) 
(vi) 
(iv) 
(v) 

Deduct Credit note adjustment (ii) 
Interest (iii) 

Net Balance as per adjusted Control Account 

€ 5�1140 
110 

2221
11 

17,550

150 
64 

630 

� 
17,405 

€ 
16,19011 

824 
17,014 

239 
16,11s II 

I(c) 

L 

2. 
3. 
4. 

They act as a check on the accuracy of the ledgers by comparing the balance of the control account 
with the total as per the schedule. 
Errors can be found more speedily using Control Accounts. 
They are useful when a firm needs to find credit sales or credit purchases from incomplete records. 
They allow amounts owed by Debtors and amounts owed to creditors to be ascertained quickly by 
simply balancing the control accounts. 
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2. Debtors Control Account

The Debtors Ledger Control Account of S. O'Leary showed the following balances: €32,500 dr and
€600 er on 31/12/2010. These figures did not agree with the Schedule (List) of Debtors Balances
extracted on the same date. An examination of the books revealed the following:

(i) Discount disallowed to a customer of €60 had been recorded as discount allowed in the
general ledger and credited as €16 in the customer's account.

(ii) Interest amounting to €140, had been entered correctly in the interest account, but credited
as €40 in the customer's account. Following a complaint by the customer
this was reduced by €20. This reduction had not been entered in the books.

(iii) Cash sales €1,200 and credit sales €710 had both been entered by O'Leary on the credit side
of a customer's account.

(iv) A credit note was sent to a customer for €45 after a restocking charge of €20 was applied.
The only entry made was €35 in the returns book. After a complaint was made by the
customer, the restocking charge was cancelled.

(v) An invoice sent by O'Leary to a customer for €1 ,450 had been entered in the appropriate
day book as €1,540. When posting from this book to the ledger no entry had been made in
the customer's account.

(vi) €140 was received from a debtor for a debt previously written off. This represents 70% of
the original bad debt. The debtor has undertaken to pay the remainder of the debt and
now wishes to trade again with O'Leary. No entries were made in the accounts.

Required: 

(a) Prepare the Adjusted Debtors Ledger Control Account. (22) 

(b) Prepare the Adjusted Schedule (List) of Debtors showing the original balance. (30) 

(c) (i) Which books of first entry are used in the production of Debtors Control Accounts?
(ii) Explain the importance of Control Accounts. (8) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 2 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

Adjusted Debtors Control Account 
€ 

Balance b/d 
Discount disallowed (i) 
Bad Debt recoverable (vi) 
Balance c/d 

Balance b/d 

32.500 

I
120 

60. 
600 

33.280 
32,540 

Balance b/d 
Interest 
Sales returns 
Sales overstated 
Balance c/d 

Balance b/d 

Schedule of Debtors Accounts Balances 

Balance as per list of debtors 
Add Discount disallowed 

Interest on account 
Debtors - cash and credit sales error 
Sales 
Bad debt recoverable 

Deduct 

(i) 
(ii) 

(iii) 
(v) 
(vi) 

Sales returns (iv) 
Net Balance as per adjusted Control Account 

Books of first entry 

(i) Sales

(ii) 

Sales Returns
General Journal
Cash Book - Receipts and Payments

(ii) 
(iv) 
(v) 

€ 

761· 

160 ·. · 
2,620 ·

.
:
.1,450 

�··

600
120 

30 
90: 

32,540 
33.280 

600 

€ 
27,63911 

4,366 

32,005 

____(@ I� 

I 

They act as a check on the accuracy of the ledgers by comparing the balance of the 
control account with the total as per the schedule. 

They locate errors quickly and narrow searching for errors to confined areas 

They are useful when a firm needs to find credit sales or credit purchases from 
incomplete records. 

They allow amounts owed by Debtors and amounts owed to Creditors to be 
ascertained quickly by simply balancing the control accounts. 
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4. Creditors Control Account

The Creditors Ledger Control Account ofB. Young showed the following balances: €63,552 er and
€490 dr on 31/12/2013. These figures did not agree with the Schedule (List) of Creditors' Balances
extracted on the same date. An examination of the books revealed the following:

(i) Cash purchases by Young of€890 had been debited to a supplier's account.

(ii) Discount €120 disallowed by a supplier had been treated as discount received €210 in the books.

(iii) A creditor had charged Young interest amounting to €110 on an overdue account. The only
entry in the books for this interest had been €11 debited to the creditor's account. After a
protest this interest was reduced to €50 but this reduction had not been reflected in the accounts.

(iv) Young had received an invoice from a supplier for €860. This had been entered in the
appropriate day book as €680. However when posting from the day book to the ledger no entry
had been made in the personal account.

(v) Young had returned goods €400 to a supplier and entered this correctly in the books. However
a credit note arrived showing a deduction of 5% for a restocking charge. The total amount of
this credit note was credited to the creditor's account. In relation to the credit note no other

entry was made in the books.

(vi) A credit note was received from a supplier for €313. The only entry made in the books was €31
credited to the supplier's account.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare the Adjusted Creditors Ledger Control Account.

(b) Prepare the Adjusted Schedule of Creditors showing the original balance.

(c) Explain (i) Contra item.

(ii) How 'an Opening Balance of €490' above might arise.

(24) 
(28) 

(8) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 4 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

Adjusted Creditors Control Account 
€ 

Balance b/d Balance b/d 
Credit Note (vi) 
Balance c/d 

490 -
. 313 IJ 

63.819 
Discount disallowed (ii) 
Interest (iii) 

Balance b/d 
� 

490 

Purchases (iv) 
Restocking charge (v) 
Balance c/d 

Balance b/d 

Schedule of Creditors Accounts Balances 

Balance as per list of Creditors 
Add Cash Purchases (i) 

Discount disallowed (ii) 
Interest (iii) 
Invoice (iv) 

Deduct Credit Note adjustment (v) 
Credit Note (vi) 

Net Balance as per adjusted Control Account 

(i) Contra Item ■

€ 

��1•...•. 860 

360 11 
344 IJ 

€ 
63,552 

330 

50 

180 
20 

490 
� 
63,819 

€ 
61,s92 11 

_bill 
64,033 

A contra item is an offset of a debtor against a creditor where the debtor and the creditor
are the same person/business.

(ii) Opening Balance €490 could arise as a result of: ■ 

I 

• A full payment of a debt followed by a credit note (returns or reduction) or full payment
followed by discount.

• Over payment of a debt.
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Farm Accounts 
This article looks at a topic that has appeared in 2012 and has been expected in 

most quarters for the past few years. Following the importance of theory in the 

2011 exam we will look at the theory parts first. 

Unlike other sections we are looking at a specific area of accounts with specific 

terminology. Yet the fundamentals of assets, liabilities income and expenditure is the 

same as for better known topics such as club and service firms. 

Purpose of farm accounts 

To record receipts and payments for the period. 

To establish a profit or loss for the farm. 

To establish the net worth of the farm. 

To show assets owned and amounts owed by the farmer 

To back up loan applications and European funding applications. 

Enterprise analysis accounts 

These are prepared to reveal a specific profit or loss for the specific area. E.g Cattle, 

sheep or crops. These accounts are similar to a bar trading account or the 

"contribution from the shop" in service firms. Enterprise specific profits are 

transferred to a general profit and loss. 

Terms associated with farm accounts 

Ewe = a female sheep 

Premium = an income supplement for farmers. 

Headage = payments to farmers in a disadvantaged area. 

Conacre = rent payment made by one farmer for the use of the land of another. 

Consumption of farm produce by the owner 

If the farmer uses milk, lamb etc. for personal use it is drawings and added to the 

drawings figure. However unlike in incomplete records when it affects purchases of 

stock it is added to the sales of that farm produce item. 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Example 

Sales of milk 4400 

Drawings of cash 5000 

Drawings of milk 300 

We increase drawings by 300 to become 5300 

We increase sales of milk by 300 to become 4700 

The logic is that if the farmer did not use it privately it would have been sold. 

Sample question and answer 

The following are the assets and liabilities of the Maher family who carry on a 

mixed farming business: farm buildings at cost €80,000: machinery at cost 

€55,000: electricity due €450: milk cheque due €1,200: value of cattle €45,000: 

value of sheep €20,000: stock of fuel €600. 

The following is a summary taken from their cheque payments and lodgement 

book for the year ended 31/12/03 

Lodgements Cheque Payments 

Balance 2,000 Fertiliser 3,300 

Milk 25,000 Sheep 12,000 

Sheep 19,000 Dairy wages 700 

Cattle 18,500 Cattle 19,000 

Lambs 7,200 General farm expenses 7,600 

Calves 3,100 Light heat and fuel 3,200 

Ewe Premium 3,500 Drawings 11,900 

Wool 800 Repairs 6,200 

Beef Premium 2,500 Veterinary fees and medicines 2,600 

Forestry Premium 1,700 ACC loan and 15 months 11,000 

interest at 8% pa on 31/3/03 

Balance 5,800 

83,300 83,300 

The following information and instructions are to be taken into account. 

a) Value of livestock on 31/12/03 - cattle €46,000, sheep €22,000

b) Farm produce used by family during year - milk €440, lamb €300

c) Farm expenses, fertiliser and veterinary fees are to be apportioned 60% to

"cattle and milk" and 40% to "sheep"

d) Other expenses are to be apportioned 80% to farm and 20% to household.

e) Depreciation to be provided on machinery at the rate of 20% of cost per

annum.

f} Veterinary fees and medicines include a cheque to BUPA for €1,300.

g) On 31/12/03 milk cheque due €1,650, creditors for fertilisers amounted to

€850 and stock of fuel €850.

You are required to: 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 
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Prepare a statement of capital for the farm on 1/1/03(20) 

Prepare enterprise analysis accounts for "cattle and milk" and "sheep" for the 

year ended 31/12/03.(20) 

Prepare a general profit and loss account for the year ended 31/12/03.(20) 

Maher 

Statement of capital on 1/1/03 

Assets 

Buildings 

Machinery 

Milk cheque due 

Cattle 

Sheep 

Fuel prepaid 

Bank 

Liabilities 

Electricity due 

Interest due 

ACC Loan 

Capital at 1/1 

Note1 

Solution 

450 

800 

80,000 

55,000 

1,200 

45,000 

20,000 

600 

2,000 

203,800 

10,000 11,250 
--�--

192,550 

As we have two unknowns we must use X as we do know that 

the loan & interest = 11,000 

Let X = loan 

X + 1.25 (0.08X) = 

X + O.lX 

15 

1000 

1000 X 

15 

1.lX

X

Loan

3

12 

= 

= 

= 

= 

= 

= 

= 800 

11,000 

11,000 

11,000 

10,000 

10,000 

12 months 

15 months 

In the above equation the 1.25 represents 1.25 years or fifteen months as told to us 

in the question. 

If the loan = X and annual interest is 8% 
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Note2 

Sale of milk 

- due at 1/1

+ due at 31/12

Then one years interest is .08X 

25,000 

(1,200) 

1,650 

25,450 

This shows the sales of milk for this year and is our income figure 

Note3 

Farm exps 7,600 

60% cattle 4,560 

40% sheep 3,040 

The question asks us to allocate the farm expenses on a 60/40 basis between cattle 

and sheep 

Note4 

Fertilisers 

+ Crs at 31/12

3,300 

850 

4,150 

60% cattle 2,490 

40% sheep 1,660 

This time we work out the fertilisers for THIS YEAR and split it specifically between 

cattle and sheep. 

Notes 

Vet fees 

-BUPA

60% cattle 

2,600 

1,300 

1,300 

780 

40% sheep 520 

BUPA represents the farming family health insurance and does not cover animals so 

this is drawings from the business 

We will now prepare a specific profit and loss account for cattle and note the way 

that drawings of milk is treated 

Enterprise a/c- cattle & milk 

Sale of milk 

Sale of cattle & calves (18,500+3,100) 

Beef premium 

Drawings of milk 

Less cost of sales 

Opening stock 

Purchases 

© Philip Curry, Ashfield College 

45,000 

19,000 

64,000 

25,450 

21,600 

2,500 

440 

49,990 
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- closing stock

General farm expenses 

Fertiliser 

Vet fees 

Dairy wages 

Cattle profit 

46,000 

18,000 

4,560 

2,490 

780 

700 26,530 

23,460 

Dairy wages are not split as sheep are not produced for the commercial sale of milk 

whereas cows are 

A specific account for sheep is also prepared in the same way. 

Enterprise a/c- sheep 

Sale of sheep 

Sale of lambs 

Ewe premium 

Wool 

Drawings of lamb 

Less cost of sales 

Opening stock 

Purchases 

- closing stock

General farm expenses 

Fertiliser 

Vet fees 

Sheep profit 

General Profit & Loss account for year ended 31/12/03 

Income 

Cattle - Profit 

Sheep - Profit 

Forestry premium 

Expenditure 

Light & heat 

Depreciation on machinery 

Loan interest 

Repairs 

Farm profit 

2,720 

8,800 

160 

4,960 

A general profit and loss is prepared for the entire farm. 

Note6 

,- L!I!_ ,.._ ____ _ _ _ _ _ I_I,.. II __ 

20,000 

12,000 

32,000 

22,000 

10,000 

3,040 

1,660 

520 

23,460 

15,580 

1,700 

40,740 

16,640 

24,100 

19,000 

7,200 

3,500 

800 

300 

30,800 

15,220 

15,580 
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light & Heat 
- due at 1/1
+ fuel prepaid at 1/1
- fuel prepaid at 31/12

- house portion 20%

3,200 

450 
600 

(850 ) 

3,400 

680 

2,720 

2720 is the light and heat expense for this year after deducting drawings. 

Note7 

Repairs 

- house 20%

Note8 

6,200 
1,240 

4,960 

Depreciation of machinery 55,000 @ 20% = 

- House

Note9 

Interest 

- house

200 

40 

160 

11,000 

2,200 

8,800 

The rest of the expenses are then split between farm and household use 

(drawings). 

In future exams it would be unlikely to see depreciation of a tractor as being 

partly house as it is almost wholly for farm use 
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2. Farm Accounts

Among the assets and liabilities of Sean and Mary Kelly, who carry on a mixed fanning business, on
1/1/2005 are: Land and Buildings at cost €290,000; Machinery at cost €60,000; Electricity due €400;
Value of Cattle €60,000; Milk cheque due €2,400; Stock of Fuel €800 and Value of Sheep €18,000.

The following is a summary taken from their cheque payments and lodgements books for the year
ended 31/12/2005.

Lodgements € Cheque Payments 
Balance 2,800 Fertiliser 
Milk 28,000 General farm expenses 
Sheep 22,000 Dairy wages 
Cattle 13,000 Sheep 
Lambs 12,600 Cattle 
Calves 5,900 Light heat and fuel 
EU Subsidy Sheep 3,400 Machinery 
EU Subsidy Cattle 2,500 Repairs 
Wool 1,800 Veterinary fees and medicines 
Forestry premium 2,100 Bank Loan plus 18 months' interest 
Six months interest from at 6% per annum on 30/4/2005 

4% Investment Bond -----2ill! Balance 
£24,100 

The following information and instructions are to be taken into account: 
Cattle Sheep 

(i) Value of Livestock on 31/12/2005 was €62,000 €25,000 

(ii) Farm produce used by the family during the year Milk €700; Lamb €300.

€ 
3,000 

15,000 
1,500 

19,000 
14,000 
3,400 
6,500 
6,300 
1,750 

16,350 
7,900 

£24,700 

(iii) General farm expenses, fertiliser and veterinary fees and medicines are to be apportioned 60% to
'Cattle and Milk' and 40% to 'Sheep'.

(iv) Other expenses are to be apportioned 80% to farm and 20% to household.

(v) Depreciation to be provided on Machinery at the rate of 10% of cost per annum.

(vi) Veterinary fees and medicines include a cheque for family health insurance for €650.

(vii) On 31/12/2005 a Milk cheque was due €1,800, Creditors for fertilisers amounted to €400 and
Stock of Fuel was €900.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare a Statement of Capital for the farm on 1/1/2005. (20) 
(b) Prepare an Enterprise Analysis Account for 'Cattle and Milk' and 'Sheep' for the year ended

31/12/2005. (20) 
(c) Prepare a general Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31/12/2005. (12) 
(d) Give three reasons why farmers should keep a full set of accounts. (8) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 2 

(a) 

(b) 

Statement of Capital 1/1/2005 
Assets € 

Land & buildings 290,000

Machinery 60,000 

Investments 30,000 

Milk cheque due 2,400 

Cattle 60,000 

Sheep 18,000 

Fuel 800

Bank 2,800

Liabilities 
Electricity due 400 

IBank Loan 15,000 

Loan interest due Wl 1,050 

Capital 

Enterprise Analysis Account - Cattle and Milk 
Income 

Sales - Milk W2 
- Cattle & Calves (13,000 + 5,900)

EU subsidy - cattle 
Increase in stock 
Drawings by family 

Expenditure 

Purchases - Cattle 
Dairy wages 
General farm expenses 
Fertiliser 
Vet fees 
Gross Profit 

27,400 

I
18,900 

2,500 

2,000 

700

14,000 

I
1,500

9,000

2.040 

660 

Enterprise Analysis Account -Sheep 
Income 

Sales Sheep & Lambs (22,000 + 12,600) 
EU subsidy - sheep 
Wool 
Increase in stock 
Drawings family 

Expenditure 

Purchases sheep 
General farm expenses 
Fertiliser W3 

Vet fees W4 
Gross profit 

 

34.600

I
3,400

1,800

7,000 

300 

19,000

I
6,000 

1,360 

440 

€ 

464,000 

16,450 

441,550 ■ 

51,500 

47,100 
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(b) 

d) 

Question 2 - (continued) 

General Profit and loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2005 

Income 
Gross profit - Cattle and Milk 

Sheep 
Interest WS 

Forestry premium 

Less Expenditure 
Light, heat and fuel (80%) W6 
Repairs (80%) 
Machinery Depreciation 
Loan Interest WI 
Net Profit 

To find out the profit of the farm 
To find out the net worth of the farm 
To find out the profit of each section of the farm 
To back up applications for grants and bank loans 
To facilitate planning/ budgeting 

Workings 
I • Interest - 18 months interest 

109% 
9% 
Interest for year 2005 
Less Drawings 

2 . Milk sales 
Add due 31/12 

Less due 1/1 

3 . Fertiliser 
Add due 31/12 

4. Veterinary fees
Less VHI

5. Investment Interest
Interest due

6. Light Heat and Fuel
Add stock 1/1
Less due 1/1
Less stock 31112
Less drawings (20% of2,900)

6% X J.5 = 9% 

5 

€ 
24,300

20,300

1,200 

I2.100 

2,320 

I
5,040 

5,320

240 

16,350 

1,350 

300 

60 

28,000 

1,800 

(2,400) 

3,000 

400 

1,750 

(650) 

600

600

3,400 

800

(400) 
(900) 
(580) 

€ 

47,900 

240 

27,400 

3,400 

1,100

1,200 

2,320
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4. Farm Accounts

Among the assets and liabilities of Tom and Anne Barry, who carry on a mixed fanning business, on
1/1/2008 are: Land and Buildings at cost €510,000; Machinery at cost €90,000; Electricity due €450;
Value of Cattle €80,000; Milk cheque due €2,600; Stock of Fuel €850 and Value of Sheep €20,000.

The following is a summary taken from their cheque payments and lodgements books for the year
ended 31/12/2008.

Lodgements € Cheque Payments 
Balance l /1/2008 33,100 Fertiliser 
Milk 29,000 General farm expenses 
Sheep 24,000 Dairy wages 
Cattle 16,000 Sheep 
Lambs 14,300 Cattle 
Calves 6,100 Light, heat and fuel 
Single Payment - Sheep 2,500 Machinery 
Single Payment Cattle 3,000 Repairs 
Wool 1,400 Veterinary fees and medicines 
Forestry premium 1,900 Bank Loan plus 18 months' interest 
Six months interest from at 4% per annum on 30/4/2008 

3% Investment Bond 900 Balance 31/12/2008 

El3212QQ 

The following information and instructions are to be taken into account: 
Cattle Sheep 

(i) Value of Livestock on 31/12/2008 was €84,000 €23,000 

(ii) Farm produce used by the family during the year - Milk €900; Lamb €500.

€ 
2,500 

13,200 
2,000 

20,000 
15,000 
3,600 
7,000 
6,600 
1,850 

9,540 
50,910 

El3212QQ 

(iii) General farm expenses, fertiliser, and veterinary fees and medicines are to be apportioned
70% to 'Cattle and Milk' and 30% to 'Sheep'.

(iv) Other expenses are to be apportioned 80% to farm and 20% to household.

(v) Depreciation to be provided on the following:
Machinery at the rate of l 0% of cost per annum. 
Land and Buildings at 2% per annum. (Land at cost was €300,000). 

(vi) Veterinary fees and medicines include a cheque for family health insurance for €1,100.

( vii) On 3 I /12/2008 a Milk cheque was due € 1,600, Creditors for fertilisers amounted to €500
and Stock of Fuel was €600.

You are required to: 

(a) Prepare a Statement of Capital for the farm on 1/1/2008. (20) 

(b) Prepare an Enterprise Analysis Account for 'Cattle and Milk' and 'Sheep' for the year
ended 31/12/2008. (20) 

(c) Prepare a general Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31/12/2008. (12) 

( d) (i) Which account, other than drawings, is affected by "farm produce used by family"? 
Explain your answer. 

(ii) Prepare the Barrys' Drawings Account. (8) 

(60 marks) 
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Ouestion4 

(a) 

(b) 

Assets Land & buildings Machinery Investments Milk cheque due Cattle Sheep Fuel Bank 
Liabilities Electricity due Bank loan Loan interest due 
Capital 1/1/2008 

Wl 

Statement of Capital 1/1/2008 € 510,000 90,000 / 60,000 2,600 80,000 20,000 , ' 850 33,100 
450

1 9,000 420 ° C 

Enterprise Analysis Account - Cattle and Milk 
Income Sales-Milk - Cattle & CalvesDrawings by family Single payment - cattle Increase in stock 
Expenditure Purchases -Cattle Dairy wages General farm expenses Fertiliser Vet fees Gross Profit 

W2 [16,000 + 6,100] 
[84,000 -80,000] 

Enterprise Analysis Account - Sheep 
Income Sales-Sheep & Lambs [24,000 + 14,300)] Drawings by family Single payment - sheep 

Wool Increase in stock 
Expenditure Purchases -sheep General farm expenses Fertiliser Vet fees Gross profit 

[23,000 - 20,000] 
W3 
W4 

€ 28,000 .. 22,100 · · 900 3,000 4,000 
15,000 2,000 9,240 2,100 525 

€ 38,300 500 2,500 1,400 3,000 
20,000 1· 3,960 900 225 

€ 

796,550 
(9,870) 786.68011 

€ 

58,000 

45,700 
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(c) 
General Profit and loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2008 

Income 
Gross profit Cattle and Milk

-Sheep
Interest 
Forestry premium 

Expenditure 
Light, heat and fuel (80%) 
Repairs (80%) 
Machinery Depreciation (80%) 
Buildings Depreciation (80%) 
Loan Interest 

Net Profit 

ws 

W6 

Wl 

€ € 
29,1 35 
20,615 
1,800 11

·
,
·
·.•··
: 

1.900 11 

2,120tt] 
5,280 f1

.
·t1

7,760ff! •·'><t>itt," 

3,360 !.•••�Ii.;·•.· 
96 I, 

-- '-,-,'.:(, 

53,450 

(d) (i) Drawings are debited and sales are credited. Sales are credited instead of purchases
because the farm produce are produced rather than purchased. ■ 

(ii) Drawings Account ■

Milk 
Lamb 
Interest 
Light and heat 
VHI 
Repairs 
Depreciation-Machinery 
Depreciation- Buildings 

Workings 
1. Interest

18 months interest= 4% x 1.5 = 6%
106% = 9,540. Therefore 6% = 540 
Interest for year 2008 is 
Less Drawings 

2. Milk sales
Add due 31/12
Less due 1/1

3. Fertiliser
Add due 31/12

4. Veterinary fees
less VHI

5. Investment Interest
Interest due

6. Light Heat and Fuel
Add stock 1/1
Less due l/1
Less stock 31/12
Less drawings (20% of 3,400)

€ 
900 
500 
24 

680 
1,100 
1,320 
1,940 

840 
� 

Capital ale 

120 
(24) 

29,000 
1,600 

(2,600) 

2,500 
500 

1,850 
LJ..J.QID 

900 
900 

3,600 
850 

(450) 
(600) 
(680) 

7. Land and Buildings Dep 510,000- 300,000 = 210,000 x 2% =

96 

28,000 

3,000 

750 

1,800 

2,720 

4,200 

€ 
7,304 

I 
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4. Farm Accounts

Among the assets and liabilities of Mike and Anne Byrne, who carry on a mixed farming
business, on 01/01/2011 are: Land and Buildings at cost €405,000; Vehicles and Machinery at
cost €85,000; Electricity due €360; Value of Cattle €70,000; Value of Sheep €15,000; Milk
cheque due €1,500 and Stock of Fuel €740.

The following is a summary taken from their cheque payments and lodgements books for
the year ended 31/12/2011:

Lodgements € Cheque Payments 
Balance 0 l /01/2011 28,100 Fertiliser 
Milk 27,000 General farm expenses 
Sheep 22,000 Dairy wages 
Cattle 15,000 Sheep 
Lambs 12,600 Cattle 
Calves 6,000 Light, heat and fuel 
Single Payment - Sheep 2,300 Machinery 
Single Payment - Cattle 3,200 Repairs 
Wool 1,200 Veterinary fees and medicines 
Forestry premium 1,700 Bank Loan plus 18 months' interest 
Six months interest from at 4% per annum on 30/4/2011 

3% Investment Bond 1.200 Balance 31/12/2011 

€ 
2,400 

12,100 
2,500 

19,000 
13,000 
2,400 
6,000 
5,400 
2,620 

19,080 
35,800 

€1201300 fl2Q,3QQ 

The following information and instructions are to be taken into account: 
Cattle Sheep 

(i) Value of Livestock on 31/12/2011 was €78,000 €22,000 

(ii) Farm produce used by the family during the year Milk €850; Lamb €480.

(iii) General farm expenses, fertiliser and veterinary fees and medicines are to be
apportioned 60% to 'Cattle and Milk' and 40% to 'Sheep'.

(iv) Other expenses and costs are to be apportioned 75% to general farm and 25% to household.

(v) Depreciation to be provided on the following:
Vehicles and Machinery at the rate of I 0% of cost per annum. 
Land and Buildings at 2% per annum. (Land at cost was €200,000.) 

(vi) Veterinary fees and medicines include a cheque for family health insurance for €1,090.

(vii) On 31/12/2011 a Milk cheque for €1,400 was due, Creditors for fertilisers amounted to €430
and Stock of Fuel was €500.

Required: 

(a) Prepare a Statement of Capital for the farm on 01/01/2011. (20) 

(b) Prepare an Enterprise Analysis Account for 'Cattle and Milk' and 'Sheep' for the year
ended 31/12/201 l. (20) 

(c) Prepare a general Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31/12/2011. (12) 

(d) Prepare the Byrnes' Drawings Account. (5) 
(e) Farmers prepare accounts to ascertain net profit. For what other purposes do they

prepare accounts? (3) 

(60 marks) 
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Question 4- Farm Accounts 

(a} 

(b} 

Statement of Capital 1/1/2011 
Assets 

Land & buildings 
Machinery 
Investments 
Milk cheque due 
Cattle 
Sheep 
Stock of fuel 
Bank 

Less Liabilities 
Electricity due 
Bank loan 
Loan interest due 

Capital 
Wl 

Enterprise Analysis Account - Cattle and Milk 
Income 

Sales Milk W2 
Sales Cattle & Calves (15,000 + 6,000) 
Single payment cattle 
Increase in stock value 
Drawings by family 

Expenditure 
Purchases - Cattle 
Dairy wages 
General farm expenses 
Fertiliser 
Vet fees 

Gross Profit 

€ 
405,000 

85,000 

80,000 

1,500 

70,000 

15,000 

740 

28,100 

360

1 
18,000 

840 

€ 
26,900

1 
21,000 

3,200 

8,000

850 

13,000

1 
2,500 

7,260

1,698 
918 

Enterprise Analysis Account -Sheep 
Income 

Sales - Sheep & Lambs (22,000 + 12,600) 
Single payment sheep 
Wool 
Increase in stock value 
Drawings family 

Expenditure 
Purchases - sheep 
General farm expenses 
Fertiliser 
Vet fees 

Gross profit 

W3 

W4 

• 

€ 
34,600

1 
2,300 

1,200 

7,000 

480 

19,000

14,840 

1,132 
612 

€ 

685,340 

€ 

(19.200) 
666,140 11 

59,950 

(25.376) 
� 

€ 

45,580 

(25,584) 
� 
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(c) 

(d) 

Income 
General Profit and loss Account for the year ended 31/12/2011 

€ 
Gross profit Cattle and Milk 
Gross profit Sheep 
Interest 
Forestry premium 

Less Expenditure 
Light, heat and fuel (75%) 
Repairs (75%) 
Machinery Depreciation 
Buildings Depreciation 
Loan Interest 

Net Profit 

W5 

W6 

Wl 

Drawings Ale 
€ 

Milk 
Lamb 
Interest 
Light and heat 
VHI 

850 Capital 
480 

60 
570 

1,090 

Repairs 1,350 

Depreciation - Machinery 2,275 
Depreciation - Buildings 1,025 

L1QQ 

34,574 
19,996 
2,400 1
1.700 

1,710

1 
4,050 

6,825 
3,075 

180 

€ 
7,700 

€ 

58,670 

I 

(e) Purpose of farm accounts I 
To establish the performance of each section of the farm for comparative purposes 
To back up applications for bank loans and specific grants 
To ascertain tax liability 
To facilitate planning/budgeting 
To find out the net worth of the farm 
To find out the amount owed by and owed to the farmer 

Workings 
I. Interest -18 months interest= 4% x 1.5 6%

106%= 19,080----.. 6% = 1,080

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Interest for year 2011 is
Less Drawings

Milk sales
Add due 31/12
Less due 1/1

Fertiliser Add due 31/12 

Veterinary fees Less VHI 

3% Investment Bond 

2,400-430 

2,620 -1,090 

240 
(60) 

27,000 
1,400 

(1,500) 

[Annual interest x 100 + 3] = 2,400 X 100 + 3] 

6. Light Heat and Fuel
Add stock 1/1
Less due 1/1
Less stock 31/12
Less drawings (25% of2,280)

2,400 
740 

(360) 
(500) 
(570) 

180 

26,900 

2,830 

1,530 

80,000 

1,710 
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